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Message from the chairperson and
chief executive | Korero matua a te
tiamana me te tumu whakarae

An election year is an especially good time to reflect on the
work we do. It gives our residents and voters some insight into
what Waikato Regional Council stands for, and it gives them
an understanding of some of the issues we face and the
decisions that will have to be made.

Over the 2016-2019 triennium, we focused on the seven
priorities in our strategic direction: supporting communities
to take action, forging and strengthening partnerships,
positively influencing future land choices, managing fresh
water, increasing communities’ understanding of risks and
resilience to change, enhancing our coastal and marine areas
and supporting quality of life through regional development.
We made great progress in some areas, and have set up the
incoming council to continue to grow in others.

Every year, hundreds of volunteers and landowners spend
thousands of hours working to protect our environment, and
we support them where we can. In the last year, we contributed
more than $1.5 million in funding to help landowners tackle
erosion and water quality issues, and improve biodiversity, on
about 400 individual properties. We also financially supported
various environmental initiatives - Maungatautari Ecological
Island, Karioi Project and Coromandel Coastal Walkways - and
helped fund voluntary emergency services Surf Life Saving,
Coastguard, Philips Search and Rescue Trust, Coromandel
Rescue Helicopter Trust and LandSAR.

Strategic partnerships have also strengthened for the
betterment of the Waikato. The region’s mayors have agreed
to work together on climate change actions. This includes
developing a roadmap of our activities as part of New Zealand’s
transition to net carbon zero by 2050. Councils can play an
important role in this area by working with communities to
reduce emissions. As an organisation, we’ve committed to
reduce our emissions by 2 per cent every year. In 2018/19 we
successfully achieved a 15 per cent reduction, although this
was largely due to less rainfall so our flood pumps didn’t
operate for as many hours.

The Waikato Mayoral Forum also agreed that a new regional
economic development entity should be formed, one which
focused on business development, innovation, industry
development and investment attraction services. In July 2018,
Te Waka: Anga whakamua Waikato was established to support
economic development in the region by promoting one set of
agreed priorities.

This year has seen the signing of an agreement by iwi, local
and central government agencies to develop a
Hamilton-Auckland Corridor Plan, which will ensure joined-up

planning between Auckland and the Waikato. A key project of
this, which the regional council is leading, is the start-up
Hamilton-Auckland passenger rail service. NZ Transport Agency
has just confirmed the funding of vital rail infrastructure, and
we’ll be helping to fund the operating costs of the service.

We have been working very closely with the Government in
the last 12 months, particularly on the topic of fresh water as
part of the Essential Freshwater review. As a regional council,
fresh water is one of our priorities, but we need to
acknowledge we are trying to turn around the impacts of over
150 years of land use intensification. That's why our Heathy
Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Plan Change 1, which has progressed
wellin the last year, will be implemented over 8o years unless
new technology enables us to move quicker.

Understanding environmental, economic and community
impacts is a big part of what we do, and things are always
changing. That's why we are regularly required to review our
plans. We've started a huge project in the past year called
Healthy Environments | He Taiao Mauriora. It's the combined
review of our Coastal Regional Plan and Waikato Regional Plan,
which will then become one plan, the Waikato Resource
Management Plan (to be implemented in 2028).

We're now seeing noticeable progress as a result of our new
and robust Regional Asset Management Plan. Paeroa has a
new mechanical floodgate across State Highway 26, which has
vastly improved our level of service to the town, and a new
flood protection scheme with fish-friendly pumps is being built
near Ngatea. We're developing a strategy to guide the
management of flood pump related impediments to native
fish as they migrate downstream, and to help with decision
making around future investment in flood protection. We have
some big decisions to make regarding our flood assets. Many
of them are old but they are expensive to replace, with the
cost exacerbated by stricter environmental, health and safety
and compliance regulations.

Our systems protect properties and infrastructure worth $31
billion and about $850 million of agricultural output every
year, but it's not always well known where they are or how
they work. We have mapped all of our flood assets on the
Waikato Regional Hazards Portal, developed this past year.
The portal improves access to natural hazard information
relating to the region. This fits with our policy to make all our
information easily available for the public to support local
decision making.



Financially, we’ve performed well this year and have achieved
an operating surplus of $11,000 compared to the forecast
deficit of $1.643 million set in the annual plan. The council’s
investment fund returned $6.596 million for the year, against
a budgeted return of $5.43 million. We have also just sold the
last of our Hamilton East properties ahead of our headquarters’
move to a new leased site in Hamilton’s CBD next year. This

Na maua,

ALAN LIVINGSTON

Chairperson

has been a good investment for the council, and proceeds from
the sale will be used to repay the remaining debt on the
building and to pay for the fit-out of our new space.

Please take the time to read our 2018/19 Annual Report. We're
proud of the work we do and our achievements, which would
not be possible without our partnerships and collaboration
with our communities.

VAUGHAN PAYNE

Chief Executive

The Comet is a new bus route successfully launched in Hamilton during the reporting period.
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2018/19 year in review | Te arotake o
te tau 2018/19

Financial Summary

Revenue

Projected revenue for the year was
$134.106 million.

Of this:

e $92.206 million was to come from
rates

e $13.898 million from subsidies and
grants

e $11.529 million from fees and
charges

e $6.643 million from returns on the
council's investments.

Cost of services

Waikato Regional Council's 2018/19
Annual Plan projected total
expenditure of $135.749 million.

Net operating position

A net operating deficit of $1.643
million was projected.

Capital expenditure

Operating capital expenditure
(including intangible assets) was
projected to be $5.498 million.

Infrastructural capital expenditure was
projected to be $12.133 million.

Actual revenue was $135.320 million. The key contributors to the variance from
projected revenue levels include:

e The council's investment fund returned $7.613 million for the year, against a
budgeted return of $6.643 million.

e Contributions for responses to biosecurity, increased maritime activity and
additional revenue associated with council's flood schemes contributed to a
favourable variance ($802,000) in other costs.

e Partly offsetting the positive variances is lower than planned Subsidies and Grants
($1.251 million). This was mainly from delays in the Regional Ticketing System and
lower public transport contract costs leading to reduced subsidies from the New
Zealand Transport Agency.

Actual expenditure for the year was $135.309 million. Non cash valuation adjustments
for employee entitlements and derivative financial instruments were collectively
over budget by $1.995 million. In both cases the decreased valuations were the result
of lower interest rates.

Favourable variances for depreciation, other expenses and lower interest costs more
than offset the valuation adjustments. Lower depreciation due to delays with the
implementation of the regional ticketing system and fleet replacement resulted in
$1.188 million lower costs. There were savings in interest expenses of $376,000.
Other costs included a variety of savings including the timing of expenditure on pest
control, forestry harvest costs and the development of sub catchment plans as part
of the Healthy Rivers project. Favourable public transport expenditure was the result
of delays in the implementation of new services in North Waikato and timings of a
mass transport plan for Hamilton.

Actual net operating surplus was $11,000, with $6.909 million transferred from
reserves.

Operational capital expenditure was $5.054 million. This expenditure includes costs
funded through the carryover of capital funding not spent in the previous financial
year. $7.224 million of unspent capital will be carried forward to 2019/20 to allow
for the completion of planned capital projects. The major projects included within
this budget carryover are the regional integrated public transport ticketing system
($1.835 million), Lower Waikato barge ($1.590 million), Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora
implementation IT infrastructure ($889,000), LiDAR ($726,000) and vehicle
replacement ($705,000).

Infrastructural capital expenditure was $12.951 million. This expenditure includes
costs funded through the carryover of capital funding not spent in the previous
financial year. $7.466 million of unspent capital will be carried forward to 2019/20



to allow for the completion of the planned capital works programme. The major
projects included within this budget carry over are Muggeridge's pump station
($4.344 million), Lower Waikato zone capital renewals ($1.623 million) and
Waihou/Piako zone capital renewals ($1.012 million).

Work on the carriages for the start-up Hamilton-Auckland passenger rail service got underway during the 2018/19 financial year.
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Our Strategic Direction

Waikato Regional Council’s strategic direction 2016-2019 sets
out our role in making our place, the mighty Waikato, the best
it can be. It shows the large number of things we continue to
do for our community. It also identifies our three long term
aims for the region and seven priority areas of work that we
will focus on in order to make a real difference in the short
term.

Our strategic direction is reviewed at the beginning of each
council term to ensure we continue to effectively address
current and emerging issues. The current 2016-2019 strategic
direction was adopted in December 2016.

Our vision for the region is to care locally, compete globally.
It's all about having a sustainable future where we are resilient
to changes and can take advantage of global opportunities.

On the ground it’'s about achieving our three long term
community outcomes of a healthy environment, strong
economy and vibrant communities. The outcomes are
connected, so success in one area cannot be at the expense
of another. We're looking to make decisions that provide
multiple benefits for the community, now and into the future.

We know that on our own we can’t deliver on everything in
our strategic direction and achieve the best for our region.
That’s why we’ve committed to working in partnership with
others: iwi, businesses, industry groups, central and local
government, tertiary education and research providers,
economic development agencies and you - the people of the
Waikato.



Long term outcomes

Our long term outcomes are consistent with the three themes
from our mission statement — healthy environment, strong
economy and vibrant communities.

These are the outcomes we aim to achieve to promote the
social, economic, environmental, and culture wellbeing of our
communities.

We monitor a dashboard of 32 measures to help track progress
towards our outcomes. The measures draw on the
independently reviewed and published Waikato Progress
Indicators (WPI).

The measures are reported as an improving, stable or
worsening trend. If a measure has not been completed or no
trend is available, this is indicated in the result section of the
table.

For more information on the WPI, please refer to our website:

www.waikatoregion.govt.nz/wpi.
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Our priorities

Seven strategic priorities guide our work in order to address
current and emerging issues and make a real difference in the
short term. Our priorities are to:

e support communities to take action on agreed outcomes

e forge and strengthen partnerships to achieve positive
outcomes for the region

e positively influence future land use choices to ensure long
term sustainability

e manage fresh water more effectively to maximise regional
benefit

e increase communities’ understanding of risks and resilience
to change

e enhance the values of the region’s coasts and marine areas

e shape the development of the region so it enhances our
quality of life.

Here’s a snapshot of what we’ve been doing to achieve our
priorities, and support delivering on our long term outcomes.

Support communities to take action on agreed
outcomes

The work we do, such as controlling harmful pests, preparing
for disasters, delivering road safety programmes and keeping
people safe on our waterways, is all geared towards improving
the quality of life in the Waikato. But we know we can’t do
everything alone. People working together is key to the success
of our rohe. This is why we focus on supporting landowners
and communities to take action on the issues that are most
important to them.

2018/19 ReSUIt

Number of Waikato Regional Council contributed
people in the more than $1.863 million to 129
community community groups or individuals
supported to take  across the region. The council was also

successful in securing $1.8 million in
grants from the Waikato River
Authority to help landowners
undertake catchment management
work in the Waipa, Lower Waikato and
Central Waikato zones over the next
two to three years.

action by council

*Funding platforms include Natural Heritage Fund,
Environmental Initiatives Fund, Enviroschools Fund, Small
Scale Community Initiatives Fund, Regional Emergency
Services Fund, catchment new works funding, Dr Stella
Francis Scholarship, Roger Harris Scholarship, Dame

Te Atairangikaahu Scholarship, KuDos Award, Ballance Farm
Environment Awards, EDS Conference.

Who we supported

Every year, hundreds of volunteers spend thousands of hours
doing good work to protect the Waikato’s natural environment.
Here are just a few of the groups we supported financially in
2018/19:

e Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust
To help with maintenance of the predator-proof fence.

e Moehau Environment Group
To help with pest control in the northern Coromandel
Peninsula.

e A Roacha Aotearoa
To help restore Mt Karioi as a seabird mountain.

e Coromandel Coastal Walkways Society
To help remove wilding pines and for predator control at
Rings Beach wetland and Matarangi Bluff Scenic Reserve.

e Tui2000
To help buy native plants for Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage
Park in Hamilton.

e Mahakirau Forest Estate Society
To buy traps for a predator control programme across nearly
600 hectares of protected native forest near Whitianga.

e Project Tongariro
To help with the restoration of the Waiotaka River riparian
corridor near Tdrangi.

We also help fund volunteer emergency services and in
2018/19, for the first time, we included funding for LandSAR.
This is what we granted in 2018/19:

e $379,600 to Surf Life Saving

$175,400 to Coastguard

e $50,000 to Philips Search and Rescue Trust

$50,000 to Coromandel Rescue Helicopter Trust

$40,200 to LandSAR
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Forge and strengthen partnerships to achieve
positive outcomes for the region

Collaboration and good partnerships, with the heart of our
communities in mind, put us at the forefront of best practice
among regional councils.

2018/19 ReSUIt

Number of new partnerships ~ Fourteen new initiatives
were scoped or
implemented by Waikato
Regional Council in
2018/19. Council focused on
strengthening existing
relationships with partners
on eight of the 11 initiatives
established in 2016/17, with
the remaining three being
disestablished and
transitioned into new
partnerships.

Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River

The work we do helps to deliver on Te Ture Whaimana o Te
Awa o Waikato - the Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River.
The Vision and Strategy was developed by the Guardians
Establishment Committee, which was established under the
Waikato-Tainui and Crown Agreement in Principle and
legislated in the Waikato-Tainui Raupatu Claims (Waikato River)
Settlement Act 2010. The custodian of this document is the
Waikato River Authority, which also invests funds into
rehabilitation initiatives. The board of the Waikato River
Authority consists of a representative from each of the five
river iwi authorities (Waikato-Tainui, Tdwharetoa, Te Arawa
River lwi, Raukawa and Maniapoto) and five Crown
representatives.

The vision is for a healthy Waikato River which sustains
abundant life and prosperous communities, who, in turn, are
all responsible for restoring and protecting the health and
wellbeing of the Waikato River, and all it embraces, for
generations to come. Settlement legislation requires us to give
effect to the Vision and Strategy, and the work we do often
helps to deliver on more than one of its objectives. In 2018/19,
we:

created fish habitat as part of river erosion protection works
e increased monitoring sites for rivers and lakes
e supported the protection of cultural sites of significance

e considered potential effects of resource consents on the
Waikato River when processing applications

e investigated alleged breaches to resource consents

e continued to progress Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed
Regional Plan Change 1, which seeks to reduce the amount

of contaminants entering into the Waikato and Waipa
catchments

e supported iwi and community groups with river restoration
works.

See Page 15 for more information about how we are
delivering on the Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River.

Protecting the mighty kauri

In 2018/19, we worked with Biosecurity New Zealand-Ministry
for Primary Industries to review the National Kauri Dieback
Programme. An Accelerating Protection of Kauri project was
developed, and the National Kauri Protection Strategy was
refreshed. The National (Kauri dieback) Pest Management Plan
is also being drafted. However, funding will be required to
implement the plan and improve the protection of kauri, but
no funds have been secured from central government to date.
We will continue to advocate for better funding to protect
these important taonga.

Positively influence future land use choices to
ensure long term sustainability

How we use our land affects soil health, water quality and
biodiversity. We need to think about how we use our land best,
by considering all potential impacts, benefits and needs,
including Maori values and aspirations, to ensure our natural
environment can support our economy and communities. We
work with landowners and other agencies to provide
information, advice and funding to positively influence land
use, to improve soil health, water quailty and biodiversity.

2018/19 e lt

Kilometres of fencing and/or
riparian planting completed

Catchment management
staff worked with
landowners on 400
individual properties,
building 228 kilometres of
new fencing, retiring

151 kilometres of
streambanks and planting
over 720,000 native plants.

Throughout 2018/19 the flood protection and control works
activity completed a $9.4m programme of asset renewals that
included major upgrades of two pump stations, two floodgates,
and 17.3km of stopbanks.

Results in your backyard

Zone Fencing Planting [Retired land
(km) (ha)

Central Waikato 40,739
Coromandel 20 25,217 150
Lake Taupo 4 1,500 150
Lower Waikato 19 24,113 72
Upper Waikato 5 18,522 33
Waihou/Piako 23 53,033 39
Waipa 49 479,365 251

-
jury
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Zone Fencing Planting  |Retired land
(km) (ha)
West Coast 71 72,613 346

Our work with landowners reduces the amount of sediment
and other contaminants in our waterways, which leads to
improvements in water quality.

Sustainable infrastructure plan

We are working on a sustainable infrastructure plan to explore
the various issues that are, or may, affect the sustainability of
the council’s land drainage and flood protection infrastructure,
including looking at options to respond to these issues over
the coming decades.

Manage fresh water more effectively to maximise
regional benefit

Communities and our economy need water - clean water.
Water quality is what the majority of Waikato residents most
care about. As demand for fresh water increases, we recognise
that change is needed to manage fresh water more effectively
in the future.

2018/19 result

Percentage of water takes
allocated to main sectors

Fifty-one per cent of all
consented water over
summer is allocated for
agriculture, 27 per cent is for
domestic and municipal
purposes (largest takes are
Hamilton and Auckland),
and 20 per cent is for
industrial use, with the
remaining 2 per cent classed
as other.

Your environment — what matters?

Every three years we undertake a survey of Waikato residents
to understand their environmental awareness, concerns and
actions. Between 1998 and 2019, water pollution and quality
has remained the top issue for our communities. In 2019, 47
per cent of people rated this as their top concern.

Healthy rivers

Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato Regional Plan
Change 1is all about reducing the amount of contaminants
entering the Waikato and Waipa rivers. It’s the first step in an
80 year journey to make these two rivers swimmable and safe
for food gathering — a requirement of Te Ture Whaimana o Te
Awa o Waikato (The Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River).

Five independent commissioners began hearing evidence from
submitters in March 2019. The hearings are due to conclude
in September 2019, with the commissioners expected to
provide their recommendations to the council in early 2020.

In the meantime, we are working with farmers in priority one
catchments, and with catchment community groups, to support
the development of farm environment plans.

Increase communities' understanding of risks and
resilience to change

Change is inevitable. Changes can result from sea level rise,
natural hazards, technology and increases in population.
Change has the potential to increase people’s vulnerability
and impact on their quality of life. We help communities
understand and adapt to change of various kinds, so they can
be prepared and remain connected.

2018/19 reSUIt

Community property and
infrastructure protected by
flood protection schemes

Our flood protection
systems protected
community property and
infrastructure worth $31
billion. The direct benefit
area of over 300,000
hectares generates $850
million in agricultural output
a year. We also ran a six
week campaign on flood
protection to help our
communities understand
their flood risk how they’re
protected.

Reducing our carbon footprint

We are doing our bit to support New Zealand's move to a low
carbon economy by publicly committing to reducing our carbon
footprint and by working with others to plan for the
introduction of climate change legislation. We have set a target
of reducing our emissions by an average of 2 per cent every
year. Our latest results show a 15 per cent reduction on the
previous year. It's a great start to the journey we want to
continue, but the weather helped - less rainfall meant that
our flood pumps didn’t work so much, saving on electricity.

® 1419tCO2e - our corporate greenhouse gas emissions

e 13.8MtCO2e - regional greenhouse gas emissions

(Due to the time it takes to collate data for these measures,
the result is based on performance from the previous year.)

Online hazard portal

The geographic location and diversity of the Waikato region
means that it is subject to many natural hazards, such as floods,
coastal processes, volcanic activity and earthquakes. Natural
hazards can cause disruption, damage properties and take
lives. They can also affect the value and insurability of
properties. The new online hazards portal, launched at the end
of 2018/19, lets Waikato residents discover information on
natural hazards in their area so they can be informed and
prepared.
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Enhance the values of the region's coast and
marine areas

The council monitors and protects the health of the coastal
marine area, which stretches from below the high tide line to
12 nautical miles offshore. This is a public space that is highly
valued for its amenity, recreational and ecological values. We
have committed to ensuring we have management plans for
every harbour and catchment in the region.

2018/19 resuu

Proportion of actively
managed area (completed
harbor and catchment
management plans) in the
Thames-Coromandel
district*

About 40 per cent of the
Thames-Coromandel area is
covered by an operative
plan to appropriately
manage and protect
harbours and estuaries. We

have plans for Whangamata,
Tairua and Whangapoua,
and plans are underway for
Whitianga/Mercury Bay and
Coromandel/Manaia.

Work on the West Coast
harbour and catchment
management plan has
begun.

*Qperative plans include Whangamata, Wharekawa, Tairua,
Whangapoua. Whitianga/Mercury Bay, Coromandel/Manaia
are under development

Protecting wetland birds

The Waikato is home to many unique wetland bird species.
We take pride in protecting and creating suitable habitat for
them so they can thrive. During 2018/19, acoustic surveys for
cyptic wetland birds were carried out at four estuarine sites
on the Coromandel Peninsula. The surveys confirmed the
presence of threatened or at risk wetland bird species at each
site. Management plans were made for some of these sites
and are being implemented.

Sea Change - Tai Timu Tai Pari

This non-statutory plan outlines a comprehensive range of
suggested measures to boost the health of the Hauraki Gulf
and make it increasingly productive. Lots of our business as
usual work helps us to deliver on the objectives of Sea Change.
In 2018/19, we:

e established additional sediment monitoring programmes
within Coromandel harbours and estuaries

e carried out coastal water quality monitoring and designed
a monitoring programme to examine water quality and
ecosystem health in the Firth of Thames

e carried out water quality and groundwater monitoring in
the Waihou and Piako river catchments

e started developing two new harbour and catchments plan
(Whitianga/Mercury Bay and Mania/Coromandel) and
continued delivering on existing Coromandel plans

e carried out wetland restoration, riparian planting and regular
stream maintenance work, including removing 80,000 cubic
metres of sediment from the Waihou and Piako rivers

e worked with landowners and stakeholders to protect and
improve water quality by enhancing and stabilising
catchments that enter the Hauraki Gulf Marine Park

e granted an authorisation to Pare Hauraki Kaimoana to apply
for resource consents for fin fish farming in the Coromandel
Marine Farm Zone

e carried out marine biosecurity monitoring in Coromandel
harbours

e convened the Waikato Regional Aquaculture Forum.

Moving forward, proposals from the Sea Change Plan will be
embedded in engagement documents to inform the review of
the Waikato Regional Coastal Plan.

Shape the development of the region so it
enhances our quality of life

The Waikato region is a place of powerful possibilities. That's
why we prioritise regional development — connecting people,
ideas and information.

2018/19 result

External funding invested in
the region

Leveraged funding received
this year represents 19.3 per
cent a reduction from last
year’s funding share of 19.8
per cent.

Waikato’s wellbeing

During 2018/19, the Waikato Wellbeing Project was established.
This project will set targets for environmental, economic and
social wellbeing, and be aligned to the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). SDGs is a global call
to action to end poverty, protect the planet and ensure peace
and prosperity by 2030.

The Waikato Wellbeing Project is governed by the Waikato
Plan Leadership Committee. It involves community funders,
iwi, government agencies, businesses, non-government
organisations and the wider community. Everyone is working
together to provide clarity about how each organisation and
individual can contribute to the outcomes, and leverage
investment and government funds.

Once targets have been agreed, we will identify what we are
best placed to take action on to make a difference to wellbeing
outcomes in the Waikato.

-
w
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Improvements to regional transport

The development of the Waikato region is a priority for the
council. One way we make sure everyone has access to
essential services is by making improvements to regional
transport. In 2018/19, this included:

e launching the Comet route, a new high frequency service
in Hamilton. The Comet had 766,282 boardings in its first
three months of service, making it the second busiest service
in the region

e starting a daily bus service between Hamilton and Pukekohe
via north Waikato towns

e starting peak services between Te Kauwhata and Hamilton

e expanding the Total Mobility scheme to include Waipa
district.

We continued to work on establishing a passenger rail service
between Hamilton and Auckland. This project is led by Waikato
Regional Council, and we are partnering with KiwiRail, NZ
Transport Agency, Hamilton City Council, Waikato District
Council and Auckland Transport. The service is expected to
start by mid-202o0.
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Working Together | Mahi ngatahi

Our mission for the region is “Working together to build a
Waikato region that has a healthy environment, a strong economy
and vibrant communities”. I1t’s all about caring for people and
the world we live in to make the Waikato the best it can be.

Fostering Maori capacity for participation

Fostering Maori capacity to contribute to decision making is
part of the way we work.

We have a number of co-governance and co-management
agreements with iwi regarding their participation in natural
resource management decision making. We are continuing to
make progress on incorporating the legislative requirements
of Treaty settlements into our day-to-day business processes,
aiming for iwi partnerships to become ‘business as usual’.

We’'ll continue to work with our iwi partners to implement
Treaty settlements including implementing joint management
agreements, advancing the Vision and Strategy for the Waikato
River, and supporting our two Maori councillors to encourage
the Maori community to contribute to decision making.

Our Tai-ranga-whenua team aims to build our council’s
capability and confidence to effectively partner with Maori.

By strengthening these relationships we increase the ability
of Maori to meaningfully participate in mutually beneficial
collaborative initiatives. This activity enables more effective
and efficient decisions and creates more robust and lasting
solutions that enhance the wellbeing of Maori and the wider
community.

We'll also continue to foster Maori capacity through:

e maintaining Maori representation on our eight catchment
liaison subcommittees

e working with matauranga Maori experts to incorporate
aspects of this world view into our processes and practices

e providing strategies, frameworks and education programmes
designed to increase staff and councillor capability to
effectively engage with Maori

e facilitating council and iwi/Maori relationships

e providing pre and post Treaty settlement advice to council
and government agencies.

Te Ture Whaimana o Te Awa o Waikato - the
Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River

The Vision:

A future where a healthy Waikato River sustains abundant life
and prosperous communities, who, in turn, are all responsible for
restoring and protecting the health and wellbeing of the Waikato
River, and all it embraces, for generations to come.

Background

Te Ture Whaimana o Te Awa o Waikato - the Vision and
Strategy for the Waikato River was developed by the Guardians
Establishment Committee, which was established under the
Waikato-Tainui and Crown Agreement in Principle and
legislated in the Waikato-Tainui Raupatu Claims (Waikato River)
Settlement Act 2010. The custodian of this primary direction
setting document for the Waikato River is the Waikato River
Authority, which also invests funds into rehabilitation
initiatives. The board of the Waikato River Authority consists
of a representative from each of the five river iwi authorities
(Waikato-Tainui, Tdwharetoa, Te Arawa River Iwi, Raukawa
and Maniapoto) and five Crown representatives.

Our responsibility

Settlement legislation requires the council to ensure our
Resource Management Act (RMA) planning documents give
effect to the Vision and Strategy. The Vision and Strategy is
inserted in our Proposed Regional Policy Statement, and
therefore must be given effect to through the Waikato Regional
Plan.

However, we recognise that giving effect to the Vision and
Strategy will take a greater effort than just incorporating it in
an RMA context, so we consider it in all the work we do.

Delivering on the objectives

There are 13 objectives in the Vision and Strategy and a number
of them are related. The work we do often helps to deliver on
more than one objective.

In 2018/19, the council supported the restoration and
protection of the health and wellbeing of the Waikato River in
the following ways.

Relationships

This includes supporting the economic, social, cultural and
spiritual relationships of river iwi and communities with the
Waikato River.

e We commissioned a scoping report to test the viability of
setting up an iwi-based honorary enforcement officer
programme (Apiha whaka ture taiao a-iwi). It is imagined
that this Resource Use initiative would see iwi and
community based volunteers be the first responders to local
environmental incidents and then work alongside our
resource use teams. Having rohe-based officers will help
staff understand the cultural significance of an incident or
the area affected. We see this as a practical example of
co-management, where iwi and the council can work
together towards the sustainable management of our
natural and physical resources. Initially, the focus of this
work will be on environmental impacts relating to Lake
Taupd and the Waikato River.
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e Asaresult of the five joint management agreements (JMAs)
we have with river iwi partners, we:

e employed iwi interns to undertake river and catchment
restoration related work within their rohe (this
contributes to iwi capacity building and provides
opportunities for employment in the field of natural
resource management in the future)

e developed a joint strategic work programme with
Waikato-Tainui, which identifies timeframes and
outcomes we both want to achieve

e started work on designing a training programme to
enable effective iwi representation on our catchment
committees.

e We supported river iwi with catchment and river restoration
works, in particular iwi contractors in the Lower Waikato,
Central Waikato and Waipa catchments. This included help
with training and technical support.

e Through our catchment, education and Natural Heritage
programmes, we gave community groups funding and
advice for river restoration projects.

e We also have an advocacy role and when working with
others we make sure the Vision and Strategy is front and
centre of discussion and the importance and uniqueness of
this document to the Waikato is highlighted. Some examples
of where we continue to promote the document and its
objectives include with the Hamilton to Auckland Corridor
project, submissions to local Territorial Authorities on their
planning documents, and any relevant engagement we have
with central government.

Strategy and policy development

We aim to protect the Waikato River from adverse effects
of activities on the water and land through our regulatory
and statutory processes.

e We continued to progress Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed
Regional Plan Change 1 which seeks to reduce the amount
of contaminants entering into the Waikato and Waipa
catchments. This is a key piece of work to make the river
swimmable and viable for food collection along its entire
length, and therefore is critical to achieving the Vision and
Strategy for the Waikato River.

e We continued our work on Healthy Environments | He Taiao
Mauriora, a project that will review the Waikato Regional
Coastal Plan and the Waikato Regional Plan. Parts of these
plans do not currently fully implement the Vision and
Strategy for the Waikato River, or other statutory
documents, and we need to get this updated.

e Part of our business as usual is to consider the potential
effects of resource consents on the Waikato River when
processing applications.

e Also part of our business as usual is the monitoring of

consents and permitted activities, and investigating alleged
breaches to rules and regulations; therefore holding people

accountable for non-compliance or undertaking activities
which have an adverse effect on the environment, including
the Waikato and Waipa Rivers.

e We have implemented a programme of work that will enable
us to understand and incorporate matauranga Maori into
council’s activities in the areas of natural resource
management and policy development. Over the past year
we have worked in partnership with Te Arawa River Iwi
Trust and Ngati Raukawa Charitable Trust on projects
designed to increase our combined knowledge in this area.

Ecological health

Protecting and enhancing significant sites, fisheries, flora
and fauna.

e As part of river erosion protection works we created fish
habitat to improve instream biological diversity.

e We supported iwi and marae to protect cultural sites of
significance as part of our work programmes.

e We continued to support community and landowners with
fencing, planting and retiring land helping to reduce the
amount of sediment and other contaminants entering our
waterways. In the Waikato and Waipa river catchments our
support enabled 87km of fencing, 562,739 plantings and
380ha of land to be retired. See Page 10 for the work we
have supported by zone.

Science

By understanding the health of our rivers and waterways,
we’ll know what actions we need to take to make
improvements.

e We increased the number of monthly monitoring sites for
rivers, and are now collecting data from all 74
sub-catchments identified in Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora:
Proposed Regional Plan Change 1.

e We increased the number of lakes we monitor, in some
cases taking advice from iwi on which to include.

e Our state of environment monitoring team are working
alongside river iwi to develop a cultural markers framework
available to both council monitoring staff and river iwi that
can serve as an initial interface between Waikato Regional
Council’s existing freshwater monitoring data and iwi / hapa
cultural values. The framework looks to realising the Vision
through its application of both matauranga Maori and the
latest available scientific methods.

See the WRA scorecard for more information.

www.waikatoriver.org.nz
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Waikato Regional Council | Te
Kaunihera a-rohe o Waikato

Established in 1989, Waikato Regional Council is responsible e provision of regional scale infrastructure, such as flood

for a wide range of activities focused on strengthening regional protection assets that protect billions of dollars worth of
performance and prosperity, which in turn make a significant urban areas, roading infrastructure and productive farmland
contribution to New Zealand's overall wellbeing. e transport planning and provision to keep our region moving

. economically and socially
Our role includes:

e regional-scale response to, and assessment of, natural

e governance and management of natural resources - land, hazards, including floods, earthquakes and tsunami, to
air, fresh water and coastal marine areas — on which our protect communities and assets
primary sector and export economy is based e biosecurity/biodiversity activities to safeguard the

e strategic planning at the regional scale delivered through productive and export-earning capacity of the natural
statutory instruments such as the Regional Policy Statement, environment, and support indigenous biodiversity, a key
the Regional Land Transport Plan, the Regional Pest foundation to a sustainable economy
Management Plan, Regional Plan and Regional Coastal Plan, 4 obtaining, storing and evaluating information so we know
Civil Defence and Emergency Management, and how well the region is doing environmentally and
non-statutory instruments such as regional economic economically

development strategies . . .
P g e managing catchments in a holistic way.

KEY STATISTICS | TATAURANGA MATUA

Regional council employees as at 30 June (full time equivalents) 498 496
Rateable properties as at 30 June 209,016 properties 206,374 properties
Total capital value of rating units as at 30 June $160.108 billion $143.340 billion
Total land value of rating units as at 30 June $93.779 billion $81.788 billion

3

3

I8 Resource consents administered as at 30 June 11,066 consents 10,876 consents

5

S Resource consent applications processed annually 991 consents 946 consents

E

£ .

) Annual resource consent hearing days 15 days 5 days

5]

4 . .

= Certificates of compliance (COCs) processed 1 2

2

g Stopbanks 562km 563km

2 > >

P>y Land benefiting from flood protection 2983.63km 2983.63km

g

— Land benefiting from land drainage schemes 2263.16km 2263.08km

=

3

3 . .

= Land covered by soil conservation schemes 306.2km 292.7km

S
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4 Data collection sites** 1435 sites 1435 sites
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Total hectares under priority possum control 102,501ha* 211,075ha
Freshwater Strategy webpage 600 unique views 1212 unique views
Coastal inundation tool webpage 4059 unique views 779 unique views

*The reduction in the number of hectares under priority possum control is due to the completion of the three year contracts in
the North West Waikato, covering 143,000 hectares.

**Data collection sites.

Environmental monitoring data collection sites for 2018/19 included 1435 sites ranging from recorders collecting continuous
data to biannually sampled sites. It does not include any non-routine work such as algae sampling, low flow gaugings or sediment
snapshots, which are also part of our annual workload.

The 1435 routine sites include:

e 21 intensity rainfall sites
e 31daily read rainfall sites
e 45 surface water flow sites

e 6 coastal sites including monitoring of water temperature, sea level, wave amplitude, wind speed, wind direction, wind gust
and barometric pressure

e 10 automatic groundwater level sites

e 1 climate site

e 15 lake level sites

e 10 air quality monitoring sites

e 33 coastal erosion profile sites

e 28 estuary water quality monitoring sites

e 15 estuary ecological monitoring sites

e 170 freshwater ecological monitoring sites

e 431 manual groundwater level sites

e 253 groundwater quality sites

e 123 surface water quality sites (including 12 bathing beach sites)
e 24 suspended sediment monitoring sites

e 15 soil monitoring sites

e 8 temporary/portable recorder water quality sites
e 14 clean streams sites

e 24 catchment environmental monitoring sites

e 14 lakes water quality sites

e 69 fisheries monitoring sites

e 75 geothermal sites.
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Your regional councillors | Nga toki
kaunihera me o ratou takiwa

WAIKATO

Jennie Hayman
Phone: 022 626 6126
Email: jennie.hayman@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

HAMILTON

Jane Hennebry

Phone: 0212 298 591
Email: jane.hennebry@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

Fred Lichtwark
Phone: 0274 261714
Email: fred.lichtwark@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

NGA HAU E WHA

Pop: 36,100
Seats: 1

WAIKATO

Pop: 56,800
Seats: 2

Port Waikato/

NGA HAU E WHA

Tipa Mahuta
Phone: 021 919 398
Email: tipa.mahuta@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON

THAMES-

Seats: 1

[ ) Whangamata

COROMANDEL
Pop: 32,200

NGA TAI KI UTA

Kataraina Hodge
Phone: 0274 508 905
Email: kataraina.hodge@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

THAMES-
COROMANDEL

Dal Minogue

Phone: 021729 870 or
07 866 2204

Email: dal.minogue@

[ {
Te Piaha o Waikato SO ®

Barry Quayle
Phone: 0274 931349
Email: barry.quayle@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

Russ Rimmington
Phone: 0276 711434

Email: russ.rimmington@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

Bob Simcock
Phone: 021991071
Email: bob.simcock@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

waikatoregion.govt.nz

WAIHOU

()
Huntly/Rahui Pokeka
Hamilton/

Kirikiriroa Morrinsville
Raglan/

Whaingaroa (Y VAIHOU

Pop: 57,800
Matamata Seats: 2

HAMILTON ’ Camhridge/?emureﬂ
Pop: 133,400 0 .
Seats: 4 Te Awamutu NGA TAI KI UTA  Stuart Husband

Pop: 31,300 Phone: 0272 330 030

. . Email: stuart.husband@
@ Otorohanga Tokoroa Seats: 1 waikatoregion.govt.nz
O

@ Te Kiti

@ Taupd
Mokau

WAIPA - KING COUNTRY Hugh Vercoe
Pop: 59,900 Phone: 0274 904 406

. Email: hugh.vercoe@
Seats: 2

waikatoregion.govt.nz

TAUPO - ROTORUA
Pop: 31,500
Seats: 1

WAIPA-KING COUNTRY TAUPO-ROTORUA

Stuart Kneebone
Phone: 021 943 055
Email: stuart.kneebone@
waikatoregion.govt.nz

Alan Livingston
Phone: 0275 720 060
Email: alan.livingston@
waikatoregion.govt.nz
CHAIRPERSON

Kathy White
Phone: 021 676 947
Email: kathy.white@

waikatoregion.govt.nz
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Your region | To rohe

YOUR REGION

The Waikato region is our home - it’s where we live, work and
play — and it’s also important to New Zealand.

Covering over 35,000km? — approximately 25,000km? (2.5
million ha) of land and 10,000km? of coastal marine area -
we're the fourth largest region in New Zealand.

We sit at the heart of the upper North Island, an area important
to the national economy because of its scale and contribution
to New Zealand’s international connections.

The mainland area stretches from the Bombay Hills and Port
Waikato in the north, south to Mokau on the west coast, and
across to the Coromandel Peninsula and Kaimai Range in the
east. In the south, the region extends to the slopes of Mt
Ruapehu.

The region is made up of distinct landforms generally found
within four areas: the Taupd volcanic zone, Waikato lowland
and Hauraki Plains, western and central hill country and the
eastern ranges. The Waikato region contains seven local
authority districts and parts of three other districts which cross
regional boundaries, as well as one city council.

We are a prime location, sharing boundaries with Auckland,
Bay of Plenty, Manawatd-Whanganui and Taranaki.

YOUR ENVIRONMENT

The Waikato region has a diverse landscape including wetlands,
mountain ranges, rivers, geothermal resources and coastal
shorelines.

The region includes:

e the Waikato River, at 425km it's the longest in New Zealand
e Lake Taupd, the largest lake in Australasia at 623km?

e internationally significant wetlands, such as Whangamarino
e over 1200km of coastline

e atotal of 70 per cent of New Zealand’s geothermal resources
e extensive native and exotic forests

e Tongariro National Park.

The region has more than 100 lakes, including Lake Taupd,
more than 20 rivers, including the Waikato, Waipa, Piako,
Waihou and Mokau, and about 1420 streams.

The Waikato River effectively spans three regions, winding
from the Manawatd-Whanganui region, all the way into
Auckland. There are more than 600 different soil types with
many being highly productive and fundamental to supporting
our economy.

The Waikato region has 1200km of diverse coastline, ranging
from the white sands of the eastern Coromandel to the rugged
west coast (Port Waikato to Mokau) with its distinctive black
sands and windswept shoreline. The marine area is from high
tide and extends 22km offshore, covering more than one
million hectares (10,239km?) and approximately 30 per cent
of the region. Overall, 35.6 per cent of our harbours and open
coast are in public ownership and nine per cent of the coastline
is used for roads.

Within our coastal marine area is:

e (athedral Cove Marine Reserve
e Hauraki Gulf Marine Park

e 431,278ha of marine mammal sanctuaries.

There are also areas of significant conservation value, such as
Whaingaroa (Raglan) Harbour, and other forms of ‘protection’
which include areas designated as local fishing grounds under
the Maori Fisheries Act 1989 and submarine cable and pipeline
zones.

Offshore islands within the regional council boundary include
Cuvier Island, Mercury Islands, Alderman Islands and Slipper
Island on the east coast, and Gannet Island on the west coast.

YOUR PEOPLE

With 468,800 @ people, the Waikato region has the fourth
largest population in New Zealand (after the Auckland,
Canterbury and Wellington regions). The region’s population
increa(sésed by an estimated nine per cent between 2013 and
2018, the second largest increase behind Wellington. The
majority of this growth was in and around Hamilton and
northern Waikato.

Almost three quarters of the region's population live in our(s)
various urban areas, the largest urban area being Hamilton.

The region is relatively youthful, with only %proximately 16.1
per cent of the population aged 65+ years.

1 Statistics NZ - Sub-national population estimates by age and sex, at 30 June 2018 [accessed 9 August 2019]
2 Statistics NZ - Sub-national population estimates by age and sex, at 30 June 2018 [accessed 9 August 2019]
3 Statistics NZ - Sub-national population estimates 2018 [accessed 1 August 2019]
4 Statistics NZ - Sub-national population estimates 2018 [accessed 1 August 2019]
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Approximately 107,000 Maori usually live in the Waikato, which
is around 14 per cent of the national Maori population, and
ranks second in size out of the 16 regions in New Zealand. = Six
rohe or main tribal areas lie within the region — Ngati
Tdwharetoa, Raukawa, Te Arawa River Iwi, Ngati Maniapoto,
Waikato-Tainui and Hauraki.

The median weekly household income in the Waikato grew
from $1486 in 2016 to $1678 in 2018. Household income %NaS
fifth highest of the 12 regions identified in New Zealand.

YOUR ECONOMY

The Waikato region is a medium sized economy, contributing
approximately 8.4 per cent to New Zealand’s gross domestic
product.

Waikato is an agricultural powerhouse and a key contributor
to New Zealand’s dairy industry, as well as enjoying scale and
breadth in manufacturing and services.

The region is New Zealand’s most important mineral producing
area. Coal, aggregates, iron and limestone are extracted, along
with gold and silver.

It is a major producer of energy, with about one-third of New
Zealand’s installed generation capacity. We have one large
thermal, nine geothermal and more than 10 hydro power
stations, along with a number of co-generation plants.

The Maori asset base in the Waikato has been estimated to be
worth around $6.2 billion in 2014, representing 15 per cent of
total Maori assets in New Zealand. Agriculture, forestry and
fishing (28 per cent); property and business services (23 per
cent); and manufacturing (15 per cent) make significant
contributions to the overall Maori asset base in the region. It
has been estimated that Maori businggses generate $1.4 billion
annually for the regional economy.

Waikato is at the heart of the ‘golden triangle’ connecting
Hamilton, Auckland and Tauranga, making it a convenient
access point for freight and logistics. Waikato also enjoys a
significant array of educational opportunities from early
childhood centres to institutes of technology and a highly-rated
university.

Waikato is home to popular and award-winning visitor
destinations such as Hobbiton, the Waitomo Caves, Hamilton
Gardens, Coromandel, Raglan and Lake Taupd.

Waikato is home to popular and award-winning visitor destinations, including Raglan.

o N o W

Statistics NZ - Subnational ethnic population projections, by age and sex, 2013 (base) - 2038 update [accessed 7 August 2019]

Statistics New Zealand - NZ.Stat. Household income by region, household type, and source of household income. [accessed 5 August 2019]
Infometrics New Zealand https://ecoprofile.infometrics.co.nz/Waikato%20Region/Gdp/Growth [accessed 1 August 2019]

Ministry of Business, Innovation @ Employment report: www.mbie.govt.nz/info-services/business/business-growth-agenda/regions/published-report
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About the report | Ko nga pitopito
korero e pa ana ki te ptirongo

2018/19 ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report is the key accountability document adopted
each year by the council and sets out the differences between
planned and actual performance for the year.

This annual report identifies highlights and key achievements
in activities and levels of performance from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2019.

It reports against the first year of Waikato Regional Council's
2018-2028 Long Term Plan.

THE PLANNING AND REPORTING CYCLE

The annual report is one of a suite of statutory documents
required under the Local Government Act (LGA) 2002.

Testing being carried out by staff as part of our summer coastal water quality monitoring programme.

A long term plan is a strategic planning document covering a
10 year period and describes the activities a local authority
will fund and provide to achieve desired community outcomes.
Community outcomes state what the council intends to achieve
to maintain and improve the wellbeing of the region in the
present and in the future. A long term plan is reviewed and
prepared every three years. It may be amended at any time,
provided the full consultative process described in the LGA is
used. The 2018-2028 Long Term Plan was adopted on 26 June
2018 and this is the first year it will be reported on. The other
documents which make up the planning and reporting cycle
are the annual plan and annual report. An annual plan is
adopted in years two and three of the long term plan by local
authorities and sets out the budget and the sources of funding
for the year.
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our work focus on improving the quality of our region’s waterways has continued over this year.

The Waikato region has a diverse landscape including wetlands, mountain ranges, rivers, geothermal resources and coastal shorelines
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SECTION 3: Our activities in depth | Ko te
hohonutanga 0 a tatou mahi




Groups of activities | Ko nga
mahi-a-ropad

HOW TO READ THIS SECTION

This section describes the council’s activities as grouped in the 2018-2028 Long Term Plan (LTP). Within each group of activities
(GOA), work is structured into individual activities. Each GOA includes the following sections.

WHAT WE DO

Provides a brief description of what each of the activities within the GOA does.

WHY WE DO IT

Provides a brief description of the purpose of the activity, and why we undertake it.

HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

Features key highlights, as well as some business as usual activities for 2018/19 and 2019/20 by activity.

WHAT WE DELIVERED

Provides a description of the level of service, measure, target and actual result for each activity. Performance status is determined
using four categories as described in the key below. Commentary is provided for measures that were not achieved or were
achieved in part. Additional performance commentary is included if it provides useful context.

Achieved All components of the performance measure have been met, including meeting or exceeding
a stated target for performance.

Achieved in part One or more but not all of the components of a measure have been completed. This result
is only applicable when the measure can be broken into more than one component.

Not achieved All components were not achieved.

Not applicable No work scheduled or data available in the current year.

WHAT IT COST

Reports on the cost of the service, including any variances.
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Community and services | Hapori me

nga ratonga

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES (GOA) INCLUDES
FOUR ACTIVITIES:

e Community partnerships
e Governance
e |wi Maori participation

e Planning and reporting
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

What we do

Community partnerships provide support and advice within
council and externally to build awareness, involvement,
engagement, and education. Education programmes focus on
multi-stakeholder relationships with government agencies,
local communities, businesses and organisations to bring about
behavioural change to enhance sustainability and road safety.

This activity is also focused on creating clarity, transparency
and consistency across our stakeholder relationships and
partnerships so the organisation is best placed to identify
emerging opportunities and new revenue streams.

Why we do it

We work with others to foster collaboration that supports
community led initiatives to achieve shared objectives by
providing information, skills, funding and connections. We
keep people safe on our roads through effective road safety
education and drive behaviour change through key community
initiatives.

GOVERNANCE

What we do

The governance activity supports the chairman and councillors
in their roles, ensures council processes such as triennial
elections and meetings are run correctly, and decision making
processes are robust and transparent. This includes working
in partnerships and collaboratively by providing for iwi,
community and key stakeholder representation on the council’s
standing subcommittees and councillor representation on
other local government, key stakeholder and community
groups.

Maintaining the integrity of the council’s processes is also
supported by the provision of timely and appropriate responses
to official information requests and Ombudsman’s office
enquiries.

Why we do it

This activity aims to support elected members in their roles
and to make robust decisions that promote community
wellbeing and manage the region’s natural resources in a
sustainable way. Good decision making requires high quality
evidence and open and transparent processes that encourage
participation. This activity also ensures the purpose and
principles of local government, as prescribed in the Local
Government Act 2002, are met.

IWI MAORI PARTICIPATION

What we do

We build the council's capability and confidence to effectively
partner with iwi Maori in order to meaningfully participate in
mutually beneficial collaborative initiatives.

Why we do it

This activity enables more effective and efficient decision
making and creates more robust and lasting solutions that
enhance the wellbeing of Maori and the wider community.

PLANNING AND REPORTING

What we do

This activity includes the development of statutory plans and
reports required by the Local Government Act 2002 to improve
transparency and accountability to our community. These
include long term plans, annual plans and annual reports.

Why we do it

Readily accessible and easily understood information is
provided so that communities have the opportunity to
participate in decisions about our region. We report back to
the community through the annual report which allows the
community to assess whether the council’s policies and services
achieve their intended objectives.
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THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES

Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to
Community partnerships A
Governance

Iwi M3ori participation

Planning and reporting

Healthy environment

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

Strong economy Vibrant communities

HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Our community partnerships have continued to grow
throughout the year, with a number of new collaborative
initiatives across the region being undertaken, some of these
include:

e partnering with Rotorua Lakes Council to deliver the
Enviroschools programme to local schools

e working with WINTEC's Design Factory students to come
up with innovative solutions for construction and demolition
waste, which currently goes to landfill

e starting the development of a Disaster Waste Plan with Bay
of Plenty Regional Council and Environment Canterbury

e running a successful campaign/competition with Tokoroa
community leaders and agencies to raise awareness of poor
burning practices in the town

e signing an MOU with the Department of Corrections, which
includes sustainable eduction packages for offenders and
staff

e continuing to work alongside the New Zealand Policy to
support its Alcohol Impairment Education Programme.

This year we celebrated 20 years of partnership and delivery
of the Enviroschools programme. We successfully grew our
Enviroschools programme by increasing both the number of
new schools and the amount of funding support we receive
from our local territorial authorities.

Two high priority locations were chosen for new stock truck
effluent disposal facilities as part of a programme to prevent
effluent from being spilt onto the region’s roads. These assets
will be constructed in 2019/20 and owned and operated by
Waikato Regional Council.

We also provided funding support to other organisations doing
good work. Throughout 2019/20 we will continue to support
groups such as Maungatautari Ecological Island Trust, Surf Life
Saving, LandSAR, Coastguard, Philips Search and Rescue Trust
and Coromandel Rescue Helicopter Trust and Para Kore Marae
Incorporated.

In 2019/20 we are looking forward to working on the Data
Waste Licensing Project. This is a joint project between councils
in the Waikato region and Bay of Plenty that will require all
waste contractors to collect data on the movement of waste,
providing valuable data to inform further waste minimisation
activities.

GOVERNANCE

Local authorities are required to conduct a representation
review at least every six years. It is an opportunity to review
the structure of membership and the way members are elected.
A representation review took place in 2018 with the final
representation arrangements confirmed at the end of October
2018. The review did not result in any changes to our current
membership structure.

Some of the key work this activity will focus on in 2019/20
includes the local government elections and induction of the
new council. The council will undertake a robust election
process and encourage the community to vote so everyone
can have their say in how their Waikato is governed and who
best represents their interests.

Work will also go into ensuring that those elected fully
understand the intricacies of our business and are properly
briefed on all the challenges and opportunities that will face
the council, not only in the immediate term but also over the
longer term.

IWI MAORI PARTICIPATION

In 2018/19, this activity continued to maintain a focus on
advancing the Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River and
making a positive contribution to the region's overall health
and wellbeing.

We implemented new engagement strategies that support our
aim of investing in partnerships with Maori to enrich the
wellbeing of Maori and the wider community.

In response to a new Treaty of Waitangi settlement we are
establishing a new co-governance entity, Te Kopua
Kanapanapa, in partnership with Te Kotahitanga o Ngati
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Tuwharetoa and Taupd District Council. A key function of this
entity is to prepare and approve ‘Te Kaupapa Kaitiaki’. The
purpose of this document is to identify the significant issues,
values, vision, objectives, desired outcomes and other relevant
matters for the Taupd catchment.

Our focus for 2019/20 will be to continue to respond to further
Treaty settlements in the region and to enact changes to Maori
participation required under an amendment to the Resource
Management Act.

We will also continue to work with the Crown to ensure that
additional financial contributions are provided to support the
effective implementation of new settlement arrangements.

PLANNING AND REPORTING

For the first time the council agreed to an annual plan budget
without seeking feedback from the public as there were no
significant changes to what was proposed for 2019/20 in the
2018-2028 Long Term Plan.

WHAT WE DELIVERED

Looking forward to 2019/20, the pre-election report will be
published prior to the triennial election to help stimulate
informed debate about the challenges council is facing, as well
as to tell the community how the council is performing and
the major projects it expects to deliver over the next three
years.

In April 2019 the purpose of the Local Government Act was
amended to reinstate councils’ role in promoting the social,
economic, environment and cultural wellbeing of their
communities.

Following this a Waikato Wellbeing project was initiated. The
project involves a number of agencies across the region setting
targets for community wellbeing which are aligned to the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals. Once the
targets have been agreed, the council will identify which ones
we are best placed to take action on.

The total number of community and services performance measures is five. A total of four measures were achieved (8o per
cent), and one measure was not applicable (20 per cent). Detailed commentary for these measures can be found in the following

tables.

m Achieved m Notapplicable

ACTIVITY: COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Level of service: To collaborate with other agencies and the people of the Waikato to deliver new and
current initiatives that achieve economic, environmental and social outcomes

Number of initiatives implemented as a result of ~ Maintain or

increase the

partners to achieve mutually beneficial outcomes number of
initiatives

working together with our key stakeholders and

The number of initiatives
implemented in 2017/18 was
12, increasing to 22 this year.

22 initiatives,
achieved

New measure, no
previous data
available.
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ACTIVITY: GOVERNANCE

Level of service: To provide and promote governance processes that are robust and transparent for
the regional community

Percentage of official information requests 100% 100%, achieved A total of 203 out of 203

responded to within statutory timeframes requests were received and
2017/18, 100% responded to within statutory
achieved timeframes.

Percentage of council agendas that are publicly 100% 100%, achieved A total of 137 out of 137 council

available two working days or more before the agendas were publicly

meeting 2017/18,100% available within statutory
achieved timeframes.

ACTIVITY: IWI MAORI PARTICIPATION

Level of service: To support a Treaty based partnership approach in our engagement with iwi Maori

Completion of key actions identified in the Maori  Number of 100%, achieved A total of 12 out of 12 actions
Partnership Approach actions completed were completed.
as per schedule New measure, no
previous data
available.

ACTIVITY: PLANNING AND REPORTING

Level of service: To produce high quality and fit for purpose long term plans and amendments to long
term plans to encourage participation in decision making by the regional community

Long term plans and amendments to long term Unmodified Not applicable As there was no LTP
plans receive 'unmodified' audit opinions opinion amendment in relation to the
received 2017/18, achieved  ,419/20 Annual Plan there
was no requirement for an
audit opinion.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR COMMUNITY AND SERVICES

General rates
UAGC

Targeted rates
Government grants
Fees and charges
Other income

Total income

Operating expenditure

Operating surplus / (deficit)
Total funding from / (to) reserves
General

Stock truck effluent implementation

Total reserve transfers

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings

EXPENDITURE

2018/19

Actual
$000

1,258
7,947
837

495

183

10,721

10,061

660

(292)

(59)

(351)

309

2018/19
Annual Plan

$000
1,258
7,947

831

523

200

10,758

10,512

247

(325)

78

(247)

2017/18
Last year
$o00

1,006
7,596
720

481

224

10,027

9,730

297

(®)
(6)

(14)

283
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - COMMUNITY AND SERVICES

2019

Actual
($000)

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 7,834

Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges

Internal charges and overheads recovered

708
462

208

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts -

Total operating funding (A)

Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers

Finance costs

Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

Total applications of operating funding (B)

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B)

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt

Gross proceeds from the sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

Total sources of capital funding (C)

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand

- to improve the level of service
- to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves

Increase (decrease) of investments

9,212

6,983

2,421

9,404

(192)

(192)

9,205
831
523

200

10,759

6,646

3,866

10,512

247

247

9,205
837
495

184

10,721

5,915

4,146

10,061

660

660
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Total applications of capital funding (D) (192) 247 660

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) 192 (247) (660)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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Waikato Civil Defence Emergency
Management Group | Te Rakau Whaka
marumaru a Rohe o Waikato

THIS GOA INCLUDES ONE ACTIVITY:

e Waikato Civil Defence Emergency Management (CDEM)
Group

What we do

The Waikato CDEM Group is a consortia of local authorities in
the region and is responsible for delivering on the 4Rs,
readiness, response, reduction and recovery. The Group
Emergency Management Office (GEMO), administered by
Waikato Regional Council, coordinates all activities but takes
direction from the CDEM Joint Committee, a body

of representatives from all Waikato councils.

This activity includes facilitation of community, organisational
and business readiness; the provision of an appropriate
emergency response and coordination capability;
identification and promotion of reduction activities that
ultimately reduce the impacts on our communities from an
emergency; and the coordination of recovery efforts to ensure
the best outcome for the community. In addition, the GEMO
has an operational role of coordinating the regional response
during more complex emergencies.

Why we do it

Through strategic planning and the provision of technical
advice and services, the GEMO supports operational level
planning to ensure local CDEM organisations and the
community have the capacity and capability to respond to and
recover from an emergency.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES
Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to

Waikato CDEM Group

Healthy environment

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

_ Strong economy Vibrant communities

A

HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

The CDEM Group supported several activations in 2018/19
including provision of recovery advice to Gisborne flooding
and in response to the Nelson/Tasman fires.

The CDEM Group will begin a review of the Group Plan in
November 2019. The review will take into account two
significant pieces of work released by the Government: the
National Disaster Resilience Strategy and the Emergency
Management System reforms.

Other influences from a national level that will affect the group
or need to be considered in 2019/20 include:

e the creation of a new national emergency management
agency replacing the Ministry of Civil Defence and
Emergency Management

e the formation of New Zealand emergency management
assistance teams for nationally provided incident
management team support from outside the region

e asignificantly greater role for iwi in emergency
management across the 4Rs, including representation on
the Coordinating Executive Group (CEG).
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WHAT WE DELIVERED

The total number of Waikato Civil Defence Emergency Management performance measures is three. One measure was not
applicable (33 per cent) and the remaining two measures were achieved (67 per cent). Detailed commentary for these measures

can be found in the following tables.

ACTIVITY: WAIKATO CDEM GROUP

Level of service: To provide the community with a region-wide coordinated response from government,
NGOs and community based responders in the event of a civil defence emergency to reduce the

impact on people and the economy

The time taken for the Group Emergency
Coordination Centre to be activated in
response to a civil defence event/emergency

The operative Group CDEM Plan is reviewed
within statutory timeframes

Annual assessment and, if necessary, revision
of Group Plan to ensure it complies with
current legislative requirements

<30 minutes
during
business
hours

<60 minutes
after hours

No
assessment
due

Annual
assessment
conducted

Achieved

2017/18,
achieved

Not
applicable

New
measure, No
previous
data
available

Achieved

New
measure, no
previous
data
available

The GECC activated on Sunday 16 June 2019, in
response to a Tsunami Advisory Notice from the
Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency
Management. The activation was after hours and
achieved within 30 minutes of receiving the first
MCDEM advisory.

This measure is not applicable for the 2018/19
financial year as no assessment is due.

An annual assessment of the group plan was
undertaken, but no review was undertaken as the
plan was revised in 2017/18. Our analysis of the
National Disaster Resilience Strategy and analysis
of the government response to Emergency
Management System Reforms did not indicate
the need for any plan changes.
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WHAT IT COST
Waikato Civil Defence Emergency Management (CDEM) Group

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual Annual Plan Last year
$ooo $000 $ooo

Targeted rates 1,772 1,766 1,538

Fees and charges 64 75 53

Other income 555 571 558

Total income 2,391 2,412 2,149

Operating expenditure 2,328 2,464 2,023
Operating surplus / (deficit) 63 (52) 126

Total funding from / (to) reserves

Civil defence (63) 52 (126)

Total reserve transfers (63) 52 (126)

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings - - -

EXPENDITURE
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties o

Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges

Internal charges and overheads recovered

1384

175

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts -

Total operating funding (A)

Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers

Finance costs

Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

Total applications of operating funding (B)

surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B)

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt

Gross proceeds from the sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

Total sources of capital funding (C)

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand

- to improve the level of service
- to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves

Increase (decrease) of investments

1,559

959

569

1,528

31

31

1766

646

2,412

1,835

619

2,454

(42)

(42)

($000)

1772

619

2,391

1,678

629

2,307

84

84
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Total applications of capital funding (D) 31 (42) 84

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (31) 42 (84)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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Regional hazards and emergency
response | Moreatanga a rohe me te

whakarata ohotata

THIS GOA INCLUDES TWO ACTIVITIES:

e Resilient development

e Waikato Regional Council emergency response
RESILIENT DEVELOPMENT

What we do

Resilient development involves the collection and provision
of strategic information and advice to district councils, the
Waikato Civil Defence Emergency Management (CDEM) Group
and landowners on a range of hazards. The information is used
to help identify the region’s areas most at risk from hazard
events, and to minimise risk and damage to people, homes,
businesses and infrastructure. This ensures communities can
prepare for or avoid hazards so that risks are reduced over
time, and that sound decisions are made about the future
development of hazard prone areas.

Why we do it

The provision of natural hazard information allows
communities to make better decisions on managing existing
and proposed development to minimise risk and damage to
people, homes, businesses and infrastructure.

WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL EMERGENCY
RESPONSE

What we do

The Waikato Regional Council emergency response activity
provides strategic regional hazard information and advice to
key stakeholders, as well as preparing for and responding to
marine oil spills, flood events and other natural hazard events.
Support is provided to the Waikato CDEM Group during a
natural hazard.

Why we do it

To ensure that arrangements, standards and processes for
emergency response are in place and that emergency
management staff have the capability and resources to respond
to an emergency event to achieve the best outcome for the
community.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

KEY: Healthy environment

A = Primary focus

¢ = Contributes to

Resilient development

WRC emergency response

Strong economy

Vibrant communities
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

RESILIENT DEVELOPMENT

The resilient development activity provided hazard advice,
information and guidance to territorial authorities, the public
and other stakeholders including CDEM. We also supported
other areas of council in the implementation of the natural
hazards section in the Waikato Regional Policy Statement. This
work will continue in 2019/20.

The web based hazards portal was launched at Fieldays in June
2019. The online tool allows users to identify the hazards where
they live and work, including flood, seismic, volcanic and
geothermal hazards, and coastal inundation and erosion.

WHAT WE DELIVERED

WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL EMERGENCY
RESPONSE

Waikato Regional Council responded to a number of localised
flood events across the region in 2018/19. Our emergency
management platform, Flood Room Live, was used during
these flood events. The platform will continue to be enhanced
in 2019/20 providing improved real time information to
stakeholders and alignment with information from other
agencies.

In 2018/19 we responded to a sinking vessel leaking diesel off
Kennedy Bay. This situation was successfully managed by staff.
We also conducted successful exercises in Coromandel and
Raglan to test the compliance of the Waikato Regional Council
Marine Oil Spill Tier 2 Contingency Plan for the next three
years.

The total number of regional hazards and emergency response performance measures is four. A total of two performance
measures were achieved (50 per cent), one was not achieved (25 per cent), and one was not applicable (25 per cent). Detailed
commentary for these measures can be found in the following tables.

ACTIVITY: RESILIENT DEVELOPMENT

Level of service: To provide technical support to the Waikato CDEM Group to enable resilient Waikato

communities

Percentage of agreed Waikato CDEM  100%
Group requests responded to within

specified timeframes

Not applicable

New measure, no
previous data
available

The Waikato CDEM Group, through the
CEG, made no formal requests for
information or advice from the
Regional Hazards Team in this
financial year.

While there were no formal requests
there was ongoing collaboration
between the Regional Hazards Team
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and the CDEM Group. The Regional
Hazards Team attended CDEM
workshops with territorial authorities,
provided support for meetings and
ongoing technical advice as required.

Level of service: To provide hazard information to communities and stakeholders to ensure they are
well informed

Performance measure Actual Commentary

Provide relevant and up-to-date Data updated Not achieved This measure was not achieved as the

hazard information to communities  quarterly Hazards Portal was not live throughout

and stakeholders via the online New measure, no the year. As at 30 June 2019 the portal

hazards portal previous data was live and all relevant available
available

information is up to date.

While the portal was not live during
the year, information was provided to
the community and stakeholders via
existing channels such as the council’s
website, targeted open days, GIS
layers, publications, and through our
internal and external networks.

ACTIVITY: WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL EMERGENCY RESPONSE

Level of service: To provide the community with timely flood event information and situation reports
and to respond effectively to flood events to lessen the adverse effects

Percentage of customers satisfied 90% 97%, achieved The annual survey was conducted over

with the Waikato Regional Council's the summer. Ninety-five people were

flood warning service (source: 2017/18, 94% surveyed with 92 people satisfied.
achieved

contact database survey)

Level of service: To reduce the environmental impact of marine oil spills by having a safe, coordinated
and effective plan in place and maintain an effective readiness to respond

A marine oil spill planisin placeand  Plan in place and Achieved A marine oil spill plan is in place. A
two exercises are undertaken per two exercises successful exercise was held in the
year undertaken New measure, no Coromandel Peninsula and at our
previous data Gordonton Depot. A successful
available exercise was also completed at Raglan
in May 2019.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR REGIONAL HAZARDS AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual Annual Plan
$oo00 $000

Last year
$o00

UAGC 1,760 1,760 1,442

Fees and charges 97 177 110

Other income 36 - -

Total income 1,893 1,937 1,552

Operating expenditure 2,342 1,937 1,871
Operating surplus / (deficit) (451) ° (319)

Total funding from / (to) reserves

Whitianga coastal modelling 120 = =
Total reserve transfers 120 - =
Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings (331) - (319)

EXPENDITURE

FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - REGIONAL HAZARDS AND EMERGENCY

2019

Actual
($000)

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 1,385 1,760 1,760

Targeted rates o) o o)

Waikato Regional Council 2018/19 Annual Report Pirongo a-tau

IN
N




Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges

Internal charges and overheads recovered

158

155

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts -

Total operating funding (A)

Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers

Finance costs

Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

Total applications of operating funding (B)

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B)

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt

Gross proceeds from the sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

Total sources of capital funding (C)

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand

- to improve the level of service

- to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments

Total applications of capital funding (D)

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D))

1,698

990

708

1,698

77

155

2,092

1,296

796

2,092

133

155

2,048

1,328

1,171

2,499

(451)

(451)

(451)

451
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Flood protection and control works |
Nga mahi hei arai, hei arahi hoki i nga

waipuke

THIS GOA INCLUDES THREE ACTIVITIES:

e Flood protection
e land drainage

e River management
FLOOD PROTECTION

What we do

The flood protection activity reduces the likelihood that
flooding will impact our communities by establishing,
maintaining and renewing flood protection infrastructure such
as stopbanks, floodgates and pump stations. This infrastructure
is designed to meet levels of service that are agreed with the
community, and is maintained by a programme of regular
inspections, routine maintenance and in some cases major
renewals.

Why we do it

The activity's objective is to safeguard people's lives and
property, reduce impacts on the environment, and protect
services such as water supply, power, telecommunication and
transport networks that could be damaged as a result of
flooding. This enables the productive use of land, while also
increasing the resilience of our community and the services
that are relied on.

LAND DRAINAGE

What we do

Waikato Regional Council manages a system of natural and
built infrastructure to provide adequate land drainage to
support pastoral (and other) farming. The council has oversight

of 92 land drainage schemes which were set up based on a
historic network of drains. Each scheme is fully funded under
its own targeted rate.

Why we do it

Land drainage services safeguard the economic wellbeing of
the region by maintaining a network of drains that allows
landowners to manage the water table on their properties, to
reduce surface flooding, and maintain water levels to support
healthy pasture. Without the drainage networks, the areas of
land would be less productive.

RIVER MANAGEMENT

What we do

The river management activity is responsible for managing
rivers and streams in the Waikato region. This activity includes
erosion control, gravel management and management of
vegetation, but also seeks to achieve broader environmental
outcomes such as habitat restoration and biodiversity
enhancement. Programmes are based on priority and the level
of risk to people and property.

Why we do it

The main objective of river management is to maintain the
stability and capacity of rivers and streams, protect valuable
soil from eroding, improve water quality by protecting
waterways from sediment entry and protect properties from
flooding damage. This, however, also supports the
rehabilitation and preservation of our river channel and
riparian environments.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES

Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to

Flood protection o
Land drainage o
River management A

Healthy environment

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

Strong economy Vibrant communities
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

FLOOD PROTECTION

The flood protection and control works activity has completed
an annual work programme to operate, maintain and renew
the council’s flood protection assets across the region. This
has included a $9.4m programme of asset renewals that
included major upgrades to two pump stations, two floodgates,
and 17.3km of stopbanks so that 93.4 per cent are now above
design flood level. This compares with 85 per cent in 2011/12
when this measure was initially reported.

We have also completed a programme of minor asset renewals,
along with routine asset maintenance, with 92.4 per cent of
our planned mandatory maintenance actions being completed.

Some of the project highlights from across our management
zones included:

e Waihou Valley scheme - The renewal of the Parawai Road
Floodwall and Heale Street Pump Station in Thames, along
with a substantial upgrade of the Criterion Bridge stoplogs
in Paeroa. A $410,000 programme of minor asset renewals
was also completed. Work to develop a proposed upgrade
to stopbanks on the Kirikiri Stream is continuing, alongside
the corresponding NZ Transport Agency project to upgrade
the SH25 bridge.

e Piako River Scheme - The renewal of 12.1km of stopbanks
along the Piako River following the completion of the Piako
River Scheme review. The performance of Campbells
Floodgate was restored, along with the completion of a
$989,000 programme of minor asset renewals. Work has
also commenced on the new Muggeridge's Pump Station,
including the construction of the canal and stopbanks, and
the design and tendering for the pump station and culvert
construction.

e Lower Waikato - The renewal of the Rutherford, Parish
Polder and Furniss stopbanks, along with the first sections
of the Aka Aka stopbank, which will continue next year.
Patterson's Pump Station and Jolly’s Floodgate were
renewed, along with the completion of a $737,000
programme of minor asset renewals. Work has also
commenced to implement recent resource consent changes
associated with the operation of the Lake Waikare Northern
Outlet Control Gate, including stabilisation of 1.1km of the
Pungarehu Canal.

e Lake Taupd - Extensive maintenance works were completed
on the Tauranga Taupd scheme with particular focus on
assessing and maintaining the Kiko Spillway.

e Waipa - Scheduled maintenance of the Otorohanga flood
scheme was completed.

e Coromandel - The completion of the scheme review for
Coromandel town, along with the commencement of a
similar review of the flood protection scheme in Te Puru.

The ‘Pathways to the Sea’ project commenced in 2018/19 which
will provide the council with guidance and direction to resolve
or mitigate downstream fish passage issues through existing
flood protection infrastructure. The focus for 2018/19 was to
develop a project plan and engagement strategy, secure
co-funding for the research and development supporting the
project ($671,000 confirmed to date), and several parallel work
streams focused on confirming legislative requirements, asset
research and development and pilot field trials to assist in
prioritisation of sites for remediation and mitigation.

Work programmes comprising ongoing operational inspections,
maintenance, renewals and new capital works will continue
in 2019/20 with activities occurring across all management
zones in the region.

LAND DRAINAGE

Seasonal weather variances had a big influence on vegetation
growth rates within our drainage channels in 2018/19. The past
year has been an exceptional year for light rainfall allowing
significant growth to occur and causing many additional spray
requests from our customers. The final distances sprayed and
cleaned may be a record for this region in a single year
culminating in a spray length of 1685km and a machine
cleaning length of 458km.

Additional achievements include completing a draft Drainage
Management Plan, which provides excellent reference material
for future drainage governance, and a draft drainage
enhancement plan to be used as a basis for quantifying
environmental offsets from drainage activities in natural and
modified waterways.

In 2019/20 it is business as usual for this activity which will
see continued routine maintenance of the drainage network.

RIVER MANAGEMENT

A range of routine river management activities have occurred
within major river catchments, these being directed at
achieving stability and capacity of river channels through
activities such as bank protection works and removal of
obstructions; and where possible to achieve secondary benefits
around water quality, creation of fish habitat, biodiversity
enhancement and protection of productive soils.

IN
(9]
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WHAT WE DELIVERED

The total number of flood protection and control works performance measures is five. A total of two measures were achieved
(40 per cent). Of the remaining three measures, two were not applicable (40 per cent), and one was not achieved (20 per cent).
Detailed commentary for these measures can be found in the following tables.

ACTIVITY: FLOOD PROTECTION

Level of service: To provide the standard of flood protection agreed with communities as set out in
zone plans and associated documents

Major flood protection and control works are Achieved Achieved 2017/18 results:
maintained, repaired and renewed to the key

standards defined in relevant planning 2017/18, achieved Part one: 93.0% of planned
documents (such as zone management plan, mandatory maintenance
annual works programme or long term plan). actions were completed.

Part two: 93.1% of
stopbanks above design
high. Data was not split
into urban and rural.

Note: This measure is split into two parts as
outlined below

Part one: Percentage of planned mandatory Part one: 85% Part one: 92.4% of

maintenance* actions achieved each year planned mandatory
maintenance actions
have been completed

Part two: Percentage of stopbanks maintained Part two: Part two:
to above designed flood height as agreed within  Rural: 93% Rural: 93.37% above
each zone Urban: 93% design flood level

Urban: 93.55% above
design flood level

Percentage of flood recovery plans** 50% compliant  Not applicable There have been no floods
implemented after all major events this financial year that
New measure, no required flood recovery

previous data available  pjans,

*Maintenance can mean repair, renew or maintain.

**The plans set out timeframes under which flood response actions are to be completed.
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ACTIVITY: LAND DRAINAGE

Level of service: To provide reliable water table management on land within drainage schemes for
the purpose of maintaining pastoral production

Number of reported incidences where it takes <5 Not applicable There have been no
more than three days to remove surface water reported incidents this
after events with up to a10% annual exceedance 2017/18, achieved financial year.
probability

ACTIVITY: RIVER MANAGEMENT

Level of service: To maintain channel capacity and stability of priority rivers and streams in each
management zone

Percentage of planned maintenance actions 85% 96.8%, A total of 247 actions were
achieved each year achieved planned with 239 completed.

New measure, no
previous data

available.
Percentage of enquiries acknowledged withintwo  95% Not achieved 62% of river management
working days enquiries (69 out of 111) were
New measure, N0 responded to within two
previous data working days.
available.

Staff have investigated this
issue, and identified a process
improvement to ensure
customers receive a timely
acknowledgement in advance
of a fuller response from the
appropriate staff member. This
process improvement is now
being implemented.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR FLOOD PROTECTION AND CONTROL WORKS

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual Annual Plan
$000 $oo0o

Last year
$o00

General rates 2,607 2,607 2,320

Targeted rates 17,499 17,477 15,654

Fees and charges 22 20 19

Investment income 9 1

Other income 996 774 1,242

Total income 21,133 20,878 19,246

Operating expenditure 22,819 21,846 24,780
Operating surplus / (deficit) (1,686) (968) (5,534)

Total funding from / (to) reserves

Watershed (587) 240 4,470

Peninsula 159 136 9

West Coast 3 - (55)

Waihou (84) (29) (94)

Piako 981 - 1,069

Drainage 581 57 221

Regional disaster recovery (158) (194) (44)

Zone disaster recovery (128) (159) (43)

Total reserve transfers 766 50 5,533

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings (919) (919) (1)
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EXPENDITURE

FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - FLOOD PROTECTION AND CONTROL WORKS

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 2,277 2,607 2,607
Targeted rates 16940 17477 17499
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes o) o) o)
Fees and charges 844 794 1020
Internal charges and overheads recovered 1,338 2,804 2,744
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 9
Total operating funding (A) 21,399 23,682 23,879

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 10,002 12,008 12,458
Finance costs - 381 86
Internal charges and overheads applied 4,649 6,076 6,954

Other operating funding applications = = =
Total applications of operating funding (B) 14,651 18,465 19,498

surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) 6,748 5,217 4,381

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - -
Development and financial contributions = = =
Increase (decrease) in debt - 13,565 4,881

Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - - -
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Lump sum contributions = - i

Other dedicated capital funding - - -

Total sources of capital funding (C) - 13,565 4,881
Applications of capital funding o) o) o
Capital expenditure o o) o)

- to meet additional demand - - -

- to improve the level of service 1,778 162 1,805
- to replace existing assets 7,021 13,248 8,581
Increase (decrease) in reserves (2,051) 5,372 (1,124)

Increase (decrease) of investments - - -

Total applications of capital funding (D) 6,748 18,782 9,262

surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (6,748) (5,217) (4,381)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) 5 - -
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Integrated catchment management |
Te whakahaere a- topd | te rauwiringa

wal

THIS GOA INCLUDES FOUR ACTIVITIES:

Biodiversity

e Biosecurity

Catchment planning and management

Land management advisory services
BIODIVERSITY

What we do

In coordinating biodiversity protection and restoration activities
the Natural Heritage Team is focused on three strategic
directions:

e Empowering communities — we provide support, funding
and advice to environmental projects driven by community
groups, iwi and landowners.

e Mainstreaming biodiversity — promoting more cohesive
approaches leading to further benefits to biodiversity as a
result of Waikato Regional Council activities.

e Advancing restoration - in collaboration with others we are
at the “cutting edge” of ecological restoration, developing
new approaches and techniques at different sites, yielding
significant, long term protection of vulnerable ecosystems.

Why we do it

In line with council strategic directions, biodiversity
conservation activities are aimed at preserving, protecting and
restoring the natural heritage of the Waikato region.

BIOSECURITY

What we do

The biosecurity activity includes the exclusion, eradication or
management of pests and diseases that pose a risk to the
economy, environment and cultural and social values, including
human health. The council collaborates and works in
partnership with a wide range of national, regional and local
organisations and communities to deliver pest management
throughout the region.

The activity is achieved through direct and biological control
of animal and plant pests including community based
initiatives, providing information and advice on plant and
animal pest control, monitoring of pest animals and plants
throughout the region, as well as developing strategy and rules
for the protection and enhancement of the environment.

Why we do it

This activity is a vital component in the national biosecurity
system which is designed to mitigate and avoid significant

impacts of pest species. Pests and diseases can cause great
environmental, social, cultural and economic losses.

CATCHMENT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT

What we do

The catchment planning and management activity provides
for the management of catchments throughout the region.
Key priorities for this activity include maintaining existing soil
conservation schemes, promoting, planning and implementing
new catchment protection projects aimed at improving water
quality, protecting biodiversity, managing shallow lakes, and
planning for zones, catchments and harbours. These activities
are undertaken collaboratively with landowners, community
groups, iwi and other agencies.

Works are delivered according to priorities established within
each management zone or outcome area and include erosion
control and prevention, riparian protection through fencing

and planting, lake and wetland protection and enhancement,
bush fragment protection, and pest plant and animal control.

The council also undertakes zone, catchment and harbour
management planning, including the development and review
of eight zone management plans.

Why we do it

The catchment planning and management activity is a key
function of the council, undertaken in conjunction with other
activities such river management and flood protection. These
activities combined with the council’s biodiversity and
biosecurity programmes form the key components of the
council’s integrated catchment management approach.

Catchment management aims to achieve:

e reduced sedimentation of rivers, harbours and estuaries
e more stable catchments and rivers

e improvement and protection of the region's harbours,
estuaries and shallow lakes

e improvement and maintenance of water quality
improvement and protection of biodiversity

e greater awareness of land and water sustainability and
integrated catchment planning.

SECTION 3: Our activities in depth Ko te hohonutanga 6 a tatou mabhi

(9]
ity




LAND MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

What we do

This activity works with others to deliver a range of
non-regulatory services to support the agriculture industry,
including community engagement and extension programmes
aimed at building farmer awareness of good practices and
developing capability and capacity within the agricultural
industry.

This includes supporting policy implementation by raising
awareness of regulatory requirements and providing suitable
and sustainable agricultural practices. In particular it
coordinates farm environment planning within the Waikato

and Waipa (Healthy Rivers) catchments. It also works in the
Hauraki and West Coast catchments to prepare for the
implications of its plan change when it arrives.

This service complements other non-regulatory and regulatory
functions within the council by engaging with the agriculture
sector and ensuring it has the systems, capability and capacity
to manage the effect of agriculture on water and soil resources.

Why we do it

The aim of the service is to reduce the effects of agriculture
on the environment. The primary benefit is to the agriculture
industry in helping it to meet its obligations. The wider
community benefits from having cleaner waterbodies and
healthier ecosystems, and particularly safeguarding the ‘natural
capital’.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES
Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to

Catchment planning and A
management

Biosecurity o
Biodiversity A
Land management advisory services <o

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

Healthy environment

Strong economy Vibrant communities

<o <o
A <o
o %
A o

HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

BIODIVERSITY

A cross-section of Waikato ecosystems have been the focus
for more than 30 restoration projects in 2018/19, including
geothermal, freshwater wetland, coastal and karst sites.
Management works continue in collaboration with mana
whenua and others at high priority geothermal sites including
Wai-O-Tapu, Otumuheke, Craters of the Moon, Crown Road
and Tokaanu geothermal walkway.

The Coastcare programme (formally called Beachcare)
continues to receive high levels of community support and
engagement on coastal restoration projects around the
Coromandel Peninsula and the West coast. Collaboration with
the Kawhia community, iwi and landowners, with the primary
objective of restoring cultural and biodiversity values of the
Kawhia coastline, continues as a high priority.

A number of grants to community environmental projects
through the Natural Heritage Partnership Programme were
awarded or continued in 2018/19:

e Natural Heritage Fund grants totalling $703,209 to seven
community projects*

e Environmental Initiatives Fund grants totalling $281,880 to
14 projects*

e Small Scale Community Initiatives Fund grants totalling
$142,801 to 49 applicants.

*including progress payments to multi-year projects

BIOSECURITY

We continued to collaborate with the Department of
Conservation (DOC) to undertake landscape feral goat control
in the Coromandel, Kaimai Range, Mt Pirongia, west
coast/Whareorino and Rangitoto Range this year. Over the last
six years, this programme has resulted in over 20,000 goats
being managed. We are also working closely with DOC to
develop a regional goat management strategy.

This collaboration extends to the Wallaby Management
Programme, where staff are working closely with our partners
from the Bay of Plenty Regional Council, DOC and Biosecurity
New Zealand to contain the spread of wallabies into the
Waikato region. A containment area has been developed and
surveillance is being undertaken outside the perimeter to
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detect wallaby populations. The research project will be
undertaken with Landcare Research and is anticipated to be
completed by 2020/21.

Successful possum control was completed across 102,501
hectares of the Waikato region. Included in this programme
are significant areas of possum control previously managed
by OSPRI-TBfree. Ongoing possum control in these areas helps
to ensure the excellent biodiversity gains made by
OSPRI-TBfree, through 30 years of possum control, will
continue to be maintained.

In 2018/19 we have been working with Biosecurity New
Zealand-Ministry for Primary Industries to review the National
Kauri Dieback Programme. An ‘Accelerating Protection of Kauri’
project has been developed, as well as refreshing the National
Kauri Protection Strategy, and drafting a National (Kauri
dieback) Pest Management Plan. Outcomes of this work will
be implemented in 2019/20.

Staff also assisted the Ministry for Primary Industries in the
national Mycoplasma bovis response and the Queensland fruit
fly response in Auckland.

A full summary of our annual biosecurity programme can be
found in the Regional Pest Management Plan Annual report,
due for publication in September 2019.

Throughout 2018/19 we worked with community and iwi on
managing wilding conifers in geothermal sites. Geothermal
sites are of high significance historically and culturally to local
iwi, and wilding conifer impact negatively on the native
biodiversity in these areas. We will continue this work in
2019/20.

Our regional pest management plan, which helps us to
prioritise what pest plants and animals need to be controlled
in our region, is out of date, so during 2018/19 we began
reviewing it. Our initial focus is on engaging with our
stakeholders to get their feedback on what changes they think
should be made. This programme of work will continue in
2019/20.

CATCHMENT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT

A number of zone plans were progressed in 2018/19 including
the adoption of the Lower Waikato Zone Plan. Planning for the
review of the Waipa Zone Plan, Waipa Catchment Plan and the
West Coast Zone Plan commenced. These reviews are
anticipated to get underway in 2019/20. Harbour and
catchment management planning continued in the
Whitianga/Mercury Bay catchment and began in the
Coromandel/Manaia and West Coast Zone harbours of
Whaingaroa, Aotea and Kawhia.

Implementation of the Waipa Catchment Plan continued with
works of approximately $1.9 million for soil conservation in
priority catchments being completed. This work was co-funded
by the Waikato River Authority (WRA) and was delivered in
partnership with landowners across the Waipa. Council also

continued implementation of the large WRA part funded soil
conservation projects in the Lower Waikato, Central and Upper
Waikato zones.

This was the final year of the Hill Country Erosion Fund project
successfully delivered in priority catchments in the West Coast
zone. Building on the success in the West Coast zone, this
programme will (pending final approval by Ministry of Primary
Industry) expand into the Waipga, Central, Lower Waikato and
Coromandel zones in 2019/20. It will also expand into
additional catchments in the West Coast Zone, enabling more
landowners to be supported.

Some key highlights from 2018/19:

e |nexcess of $1.5 million of (WRC matched) external funding
leveraged into priority projects. This funding was used to
assist landowners undertaking catchment management
works across the region.

e Completion of a detailed ecological survey and impact
assessment of forest activity in Kuaoiti Woodlot. This
enabled a resource consent to be granted allowing forest
harvest in this area.

e Significant progress was made on the Waitekure and
Wharekawa Focus Catchments Projects in the Coromandel
Zone.

e The successful completion of year 2 of the WRA, TARIT, local
community and council supported Whirinaki Project in the
Upper Waikato Zone.

e Successful implementation of the WRA supported Lower
Waikato catchment projects.

e Ahigh level of compliance achieved across Taupd and Upper
Waikato maintenance inspections. Greater than 82 per cent
compliance achieved over approximately 258 compartment
inspections.

In 2019/20 extensive catchment management and planning
work will be undertaken in collaboration with landowners, iwi,
community groups and key agencies to reduce soil erosion,
protect and enhance biodiversity and improve water quality
within priority catchments across the region. These works
include fencing, erosion control, bush retirement, afforestation
and riparian planting.

In the Waipa, Upper Waikato, Central and Lower Waikato zones,
large scale programmes supported by the WRA will continue.
These projects align with the recently completed Waikato and
Waipa River Restoration Strategy and are focused on reducing
soil erosion and improving water quality. These programmes
are in part subject to further successful WRA, Hill Country
Erosion programme and other third party funding decisions.

LAND MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

The main focus for this activity over 2018/19 was engaging
farmers and rural professionals and setting up the
implementation of the Farm Environment Plan (FEP) provisions
for Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato Regional Plan
Change 1.
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In 2018/19, seven sub-catchment profile reports were
completed for Priority 1 catchments and conversion of these
to ‘story maps’ (interactive online versions) have been
developed and are available on the council website. These will
be used to further support farmer engagement in preparation
of FEPs.

We successfully delivered a variety of workshops and
awareness programmes across the agricultural sector.
Highlights include the development and implementation of
risk and mitigation workshops to engage farmers and the rural
community as part of Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed
Waikato Regional Plan Change 1 implementation project. We
also delivered programmes and field days on water quality,
farm forestry, riparian management and carbon farming. Other
events included a river management and in-stream works field
day and the annual Landcare networking day. Across these
events, 70.5 per cent of the participants reported that they
made good or excellent progress toward the intended changes.

WHAT WE DELIVERED

Additionally we held 16 drop-in sessions in regional locations
in 2018/19. The sessions provided landowners with the
opportunity to come and have a chat to staff about Healthy
Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato Regional Plan Change 1,
and were based in Whakamaru, Reporoa, Arapuni and Putaruru.
We will be looking to roll these sessions out more widely across
the region in 2019/20.

Coordination will continue with Beef + Lamb NZ, Deer Industry
NZ and other agricultural industry organisations to engage
farmers and provide FEP workshops. We will also contribute
to training for rural professionals wishing to become certified
to approve FEPs and begin work on the development of
sub-catchment planning approaches.

In the Hauraki and the west coast catchments we will
encourage and support farmer-led initiatives to improve their
environmental performance in anticipation of future plan
changes to come over the next few years.

The total number of integrated catchment management performance measures is 10. There were nine performance measures
achieved (9o per cent) and one performance measure not achieved (10 per cent). Detailed commentary for these measures can
be found in the following tables.
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ACTIVITY: BIODIVERSITY

Level of service: To work in partnership with others to maintain and enhance indigenous biodiversity

Percentage of projects funded 100% Achieved
through Natural Heritage

Partnership Programme that achieve 2017/18, not
milestones as per the funding achieved
agreement

Number of on the ground projects >2 per zone Achieved

in action to protect and restore

indigenous biodiversity per zone New measure, no

previous data
available

Natural Heritage Fund

Seven Natural Heritage fund projects
received grants in 2018/19 (totaling
$703,209).

All of these projects are still in progress, as
they are multi-year projects and are
meeting interim milestones.

Environmental Initiatives Fund

The council received 18 applications for the
Environmental Initiative Fund in 2018/19.
Fourteen grants were approved totaling
$281,880. Two of these projects have
already been completed, with the remaining
project accountability reports due in
October 2019.

Nine grants were made in 2017/18 totalling
$137,500 (some of these are multi-year
projects). Of these, six have submitted their
accountability reports as per their funding
agreement with four of these projects being
fully completed. The remaining three will
be submitted by September 2019.

Small Scale Community Initiatives Fund
(SSCIF)

Of the 15 applications received for the
March 2019 round, 11 projects were
approved for funding - a total of $39,634
in approved funding. This was the second
SSCIF funding round for the year. The first
SSCIF funding round was completed in July
2018, with 38 projects approved for a total
of $103,168 in funding. This brings the total
number of projects approved for 2018/19
to 49, with $142,801 in grants approved.

31 projects are currently underway and all
involve collaboration with local staff and
other stakeholders.

The number of projects per zone includes:

West Coast Zone - 8 projects
Waipa Zone - 4 projects
Waihou-Piako Zone - 2 projects
Upper Waikato Zone - 4 projects
Lower Waikato Zone - 3 projects
Lake Taupd Zone - 6 projects
Coromandel Zone - 2 projects
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Central Waikato Zone - 2 projects.

ACTIVITY: BIOSECURITY

Level of service: To reduce animal pest populations in identified sites with assessed biodiversity values

Increasing long term trend in the
number of tdT in Hamilton

Average rat tracking index (RTI) for
all rat control operations

Average number of possums* caught
for every 100 traps set for possum
operations

Increasing trend

<5%

<5% residual trap
catch (RTC) for
ground control

Achieved

2017/18, not
applicable as
measured
biennially

0.59%, achieved

New measure, no
previous data
available

1.46%, achieved

2017/18, 0.76%
achieved

The report by Manaaki Whenua-Landcare
Research, including analysis, has been
received and 2018 counts indicated more
than a 25-fold increase in tdi visiting in the
city during the winter compared with prior
to the Hamilton Halo project being
initiated.

Five operations have been completed in the
Hamilton Halo bush areas this year,
achieving 0.59% RTI.

Six operations have been completed this
year, achieving 1.46% RTC.

Two operations started this year will
continue into 2019/20 and be reported on
next year. One operation experienced
delays due to land access issues, and the
size and scale of the other operation meant
it could not be financially achieved in one
year.

*Possums are targeted as they have a detrimental impact on our native flora and fauna, including devastating native forests
and impacting on pasture, horticulture and forestry.

Level of service: To control low density, high threat plant pests to minimise impacts on primary
industry and human health

Reducing trend in the coverage of Achieved
eradication pest plants** at known

sites

Reducing trend Inspection and control of eradication sites
has been completed and all sites show a

New measure, N0 radyction in pest plants.

previous data
available.

** Eradication pest plants are those with limited distribution or density. Eventual goal is eradication at known sites in the
region, although 'zero density' is more practical to achieve. Includes African feather grass, cathedral bells, Chilean flame
creeper, evergreen buckthorn, horse nettle, Chinese knotweed, lantana, Manchurian wild rice, mile-a-minute, nassella tussock,
fire stemmed needle grass and Chilean needle grass, noogoora bur, purple loose strife, rhododendron ponticum, sagittaria,
seaspurge, Senegal tea, spartine, variegated thistle, water poppy and white bryony.
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ACTIVITY: CATCHMENT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT

Level of service: To maintain existing historic scheme works to ensure gains are preserved

Percentage of sampled catchment  70% 82%, achieved A total of 89 property inspections have
works maintained in effective been completed with 82 per cent of
condition to the standards set out 2017/18, 90.6% inspected compartments in effective
in zone plans*** achieved condition.

Property inspections are undertaken during
the year according to the schedule in place
for each zone. Properties not meeting the
required standards are recorded and
remedial works programmed in
consultation with the property owner.

*** A sample of at least 10 per cent of all catchment scheme and non-scheme works (Individual work agreements legally
protected on property title outside schemes) are inspected to assess work conditions every year. Works include fencing,
planting and erosion control structures.

Level of service: To implement agreed plans (catchment new works) with landowners and land
managers for reduced erosion, improved water quality and enhanced biodiversity

Percentage of catchment new works ~ 70% 76%, achieved 76% of all catchment new works costs were
undertaken in priority catchments located within priority catchments and/or
and/or at priority sites across all New measure, N0 gjgnificant natural areas across all zones.
zones previous data

available.

ACTIVITY: LAND MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES

Level of service: To work with partners, stakeholders and community to improve soil conservation
and water quality

Percentage of people (as surveyed) 66% 70%, achieved The surveys were undertaken by an
participating in Waikato Regional independent consultant and results show
Council extension programmes who 2017/18, 70% that over 70 per cent of farmers who attend
make a change in agricultural achieved our events are then making changes to
practice within 12 months of agricultural practice within 12 months of
attendance the attendance. The survey looked at 11
different events that we ran around the
region.
Number of farmers attending farm 200 170, not achieved  Approximately 170 farmers attended
environment planning workshops. This was less than anticipated
workshops**** (Healthy Rivers) New measure, N0 gye to:
previous data
available. - A change in focus which meant significant

time has been spent building farmers’
understanding of on-farm risks and
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potential mitigations. This ensures that
people getting into the workshops are
better prepared

- A shortage of staff which meant less time
was spent on engaging the farmers to get
attendance at the FEP workshops.

Farmers also may not want to commit
before decisions on Healthy Rivers are
made, thereby reducing the number of
farmers who were willing to attend these
workshops

Whilst the target has not being met, the
events designed to lead farmers to FEP
workshops have very good participation. If
the two were combined we would have had
over 370 farmers through both sets of
workshops collectively.

**%* A total of 3000 farm environment plans must be delivered over 10 years. The first set of plans for priority 1 sub-catchments
must be completed by 1 March 2022 with the second set of plans for priority 2 sub-catchments completed by 1 March 202s.
Workshops to aid farmers in this process began over 2018/19.

Waikato Regional Council 2018/19 Annual Report Pirongo a-tau

Ul
[0




WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR INTEGRATED CATCHMENT MANAGEMENT

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual Annual Plan Last year

$000 $000 $000

General rates 6,346 6,346 5,477

UAGC 1,554 1,554 1,318

Targeted rates 15,562 15,533 13,758
Government grants 247 274 270
Fees and charges 1,459 1,005 1,179
Investment income 41 - 32
Other income 1,065 753 752

Total income 26,274 25,465 22,786
Operating expenditure 25,816 27,316 23,474
Operating surplus / (deficit) 457 (1,851) (688)

Total funding from / (to) reserves

Watershed (711) A4 14

Peninsula 134 72 (129)

West Coast (54) - 112

Waihou 289 - (238)

Piako 295 = 45

Regional disaster recovery (36) 37) @37)

Zone disaster recovery (36) (37) (37) =
(3]
£

Biosecurity (176) 921 1,037 5

o

L

Natural Heritage 83 44 220 i

1%

10

Environmental initiatives 5 - (112) s
oo

c

Koi carp digestor 16 14 16 L;

[

Healthy Rivers Internal Loan = = 88 2
2

Prior Year Surplus = s 23 9

o

Investment equalisation 365 365 - >
)

-

Total reserve transfers 174 1,386 1,102 g

c

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings 631 (465) 414 5
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=
2
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EXPENDITURE

FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - INTEGRATED CATCHMENT MANAGEMENT

2019

Actual
($000)

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 6,308 7,901 7,901
Targeted rates 14618 15533 15562
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 274 247
Fees and charges 1240 1758 2523
Internal charges and overheads recovered 693 1,015 771
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - - A1
Total operating funding (A) 22,859 26,481 27,045

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 16,298 19,867 17,579
Finance costs = (82) (91)
Internal charges and overheads applied 7,035 8,505 8,955

Other operating funding applications - - -
Total applications of operating funding (B) 23,333 28,290 26,443

surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) (474) (1,809) 602

Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - = =
Development and financial contributions = = =

Increase (decrease) in debt - 465 276
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Gross proceeds from the sale of assets = = =
Lump sum contributions - R -
Other dedicated capital funding . . -

Total sources of capital funding (C) - 465 276

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand - - -
- to improve the level of service - - -
- to replace existing assets - - -
Increase (decrease) in reserves (474) (1,344) 878
Increase (decrease) of investments

Total applications of capital funding (D) (474) (1,344) 878

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) 474 1,809 (602)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) 5 - -
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Public transport | Nga waka kawe

tangata timatanui

THIS GOA INCLUDES ONE ACTIVITY:

e Public transport

WHAT WE DO

Waikato Regional Council provides comprehensive public bus
services within Hamilton and between Hamilton and
neighbouring towns. The council also provides services more
broadly within the region in partnership with district councils.
Areas serviced include Taupd, Tokoroa, Thames and multiple
north Waikato towns.

In addition, the council provides Total Mobility services in
Hamilton, Tokoroa, Taupd, and Waipa which provides door to
door subsidised taxi travel for people with disabilities.

WHY WE DO IT

We provide public transport services to enhance the wellbeing
of our communities. Public transport enables access to
employment, education, healthcare and social opportunities.
It also provides an alternative to private vehicle travel,
improves environmental outcomes, supports urban growth
objectives and provides rural communities with better access
to essential services.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES

Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to

Public transport

Healthy environment

COMMUNITY COMES

Strong economy Vibrant communities

HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

In 2018/19, total patronage on council’s public transport
network exceeded 4 million passenger boardings. Over the
past two years:

e First boardings (where passengers pay a fare) increased 3
per cent across the network.

e Child patronage increased by 4 per cent. This includes a 5
per cent increase during off peak periods and a 7 per cent
increase during weekends.

e Total weekend patronage increased by 14 per cent with a
26 per cent increase on Sundays.

e Patronage on council’s busiest bus route, the Orbiter,
increased 21 per cent — with 923,836 boardings in 2018/19
compared to 766,282 in 2016/17.

2018/19 saw the implementation of service improvements,
including:

e The launch of the Comet route, a new high frequency service
in Hamilton. In the first three months of operation, Comet
patronage increased by 32 per cent, making it the second
busiest service in the region since its launch in April 2019.

e Establishment of a daily bus service between Hamilton and
Pukekohe via north Waikato towns.

e Establishment of peak services between Te Kauwhata and
Hamilton.

e Expansion of the Total Mobility scheme to include Waipa
district.

Looking forward to 2019/20, the council in partnership with
others is working towards:

e Implementation of a new public transport ticketing system
in partnership with eight other regions in New Zealand.

e launching a start-up passenger rail service between
Auckland and Hamilton.

e Establishing new public bus services between:

o Tokoroa and Hamilton
o Matamata and Hamilton

o Taakau/Pokeno and Auckland

e Increased services into growing parts of Hamilton and
improving travel time reliability issues caused by increasing
congestion.

e |mproving services between Hamilton, Cambridge and Te
Awamutu.
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WHAT WE DELIVERED

The total number of public transport performance measures is six. Three measures were achieved (50 per cent) and one measure

was not achieved (17 per cent), one measure was not applicable (17 per cent), and there was no result available for the last
measure (17 per cent). Detailed commentary for these measures can be found in the following table.

ACTIVITY: PUBLIC TRANSPORT

Level of service: To provide the Waikato community with an efficient and reliable public transport
system that enables an alternative to private vehicle travel and access to essential services

Percentage of patronage growth in the region

Percentage of customers surveyed who are
‘satisfied’ or better with the passenger transport
service

Source: Customer satisfaction survey

Percentage of surveyed passengers who believe
fares represent good value for money

Source: Customer satisfaction survey

Percentage of scheduled service trips that depart
timing points* on time compared to public
timetable

2%

>95%

>74%

>95% scheduled
service trips
depart between
59 seconds before
and 4 minutes
and 59 seconds
after the
scheduled
departure time

1.96%, not
achieved

New measure, no
previous data
available

96%, achieved

2017/18, 96%
achieved

84%, achieved

New measure, no
previous data
available

No result

New measure, no
previous data
available

Patronage was negatively
affected by strike action in
November 2018.

The customer satisfaction
survey was undertaken in
October 2018 and achieved 96
per cent satisfaction.

The customer satisfaction
survey was undertaken in
October 2018 and 84 per cent
of passengers believed fares
represented good value for
money.

Staff are working through a
number of technical issues
with the systems which are
used to report on this
measure. As a result of these
issues staff cannot confirm the
reliability of the data and
therefore cannot determine a
result for this measure for the
full year.
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Measures have been
implemented with the real
time provider to increase
tracking rates. The roll out of
the hardware updates will be
completed in August 2019. In
addition to improving tracking
rates, the council is working
to significantly improve the
reliability of bus services
across the network with
revised timetables
programmed to start being
deployed in January 2020 and
completed by April 2020.

In addition to this measure
information is collected
through our customer
satisfaction survey which was
undertaken in October 2018.
The survey results identify that
87 per cent of passengers are
satisfied or very satisfied with
the timeliness of bus services.

Percentage of households in Hamilton within >97% 98.2%, achieved 98.2% of households are

8oom of public transport bus stop within 8oom of a bus stop in
New measure, no Hamilton.

previous data

available

Rail service is implemented by the agreed date as  Not applicable Not applicable When this measure was

per agreed levels of service** developed, it was decided a
New measure, N0 target would be set once the
previous data rail service commenced and
available

the council is in a better
position to set specific targets
for agreed levels of service.
These metrics are likely to be
similar to the metrics currently
used in relation to bus
passenger transport services.

*A timing point is defined as a key interval along a route (it is less frequent than a bus stop). The number of timing points
varies for each route.

** Once the rail service has commenced, the council will be in a better position to set specific targets for agreed levels of
service. These metrics are likely to be similar to the metrics currently measured in relation to bus passenger transport services.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR PUBLIC TRANSPORT

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual | Annual Plan Last year

$000 $000 $000

Targeted rates 8,034 7,969 7,031

Government grants 11,245 12,519 10,773

Local share - buses 846 1,101 750

Other income 6,026 6,605 6,085

Total income 26,152 28,193 24,639

Operating expenditure 25,558 26,773 24,262
Operating surplus / (deficit) 594 1,420 377

Total funding from / (to) reserves

Public transport (930) (1,757) 376)
Total reserve transfers (930) (1,757) (376)
Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings (337) (337) 1

EXPENDITURE

FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - PUBLIC TRANSPORT

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties o o o

Targeted rates 6740 7969 8034
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Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 9,232 12,519 11,245

Fees and charges 8001 7706 6873
Internal charges and overheads recovered 15 - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 15 - -
Total operating funding (A) 24,003 28,194 26,152

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 22,721 25,079 24,159
Finance costs =
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,019 1,034 1,341
Other operating funding applications = = =
Total applications of operating funding (B) 23,740 26,113 25,500

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) 263 2,081 652

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure = = =
Development and financial contributions - - -
Increase (decrease) in debt - R R
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - . -
Lump sum contributions 5 - _
Other dedicated capital funding - - .

Total sources of capital funding (C) - - -

Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand = = =
- to improve the level of service - 160 1,460
- to replace existing assets - - -
Increase (decrease) in reserves 263 1,921 (808)
Increase (decrease) of investments

Total applications of capital funding (D) 263 2,081 652

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (263) (2,081) (652)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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Resource use | Te whakamahinga o te

taiao

THIS GOA INCLUDES THREE ACTIVITIES:

e Consent processing and compliance
e |nvestigations and incident response

e Maritime services
CONSENT PROCESSING AND COMPLIANCE

What we do

The consent processing and compliance activity is responsible
for both the issuing of resource consents under the Resource
Management Act, which allow people to use the region’s
natural resources, and subsequent compliance monitoring of
those consents. Consents typically contain a number of
conditions to ensure the effects of the activity are appropriately
controlled.

The large number of operative consents within the region
mean that they are monitored by the council on a prioritised
basis. The council also proactively monitors compliance with
some activities that are only permitted under the Waikato
Regional Plan, subject to compliance with a range of
conditions.

This activity is also responsible for processing resource consent
applications under the Building Act for large dams on behalf
of all North Island regional councils, and responding to
identified non-compliance with Building Act requirements as
these relate to large dams within the Waikato region.

Why we do it

Implementing the council’s responsibilities to process consents
and monitor both consented activity and priority permitted
activities not only enables the council to meet its statutory
obligations, it importantly helps protect the Waikato’s unique
environment while allowing for growth and development in a
sustainable way. This ensures the region’s resources are
managed sustainably for current as well as future generations.

The council’s dam safety responsibility ensures that potential
risks to people and property are minimised, while meeting the
council’s obligations under the Building Act.

INVESTIGATIONS AND INCIDENT RESPONSE

What we do

Waikato Regional Council runs a 24 hour 7 day a week response
service to ensure the environment, people or property are not
seriously affected by pollution incidents or activities that are
non-compliant with environmental regulation. The council also
investigates serious breaches of environmental or maritime
regulation and, where significant non-compliance has been
found to occur, formally investigates the incident to enable
decisions to be made on appropriate action, including
enforcement.

Why we do it

This activity safeguards the community and environment
against activities and incidents that could cause unsustainable
damage to our air, water, soils, geothermal and coastal marine
areas.

MARITIME SERVICES

What we do

This activity safeguards the community and environment
against activities and incidents that could cause damage to
their personal safety or to property, within our lakes, rivers
and harbours.

Why we do it

Maritime services has the delegated responsibility from
Maritime NZ to ensure the region’s waterways have an
operative bylaw and navigable waterways.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES

Key:

A = Primary focus

¢ = Contributes to

Consent processing and compliance

Investigations and incident response

Maritime services

Healthy environment

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

Strong economy Vibrant communities

o o
< <
A
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

CONSENT PROCESSING AND COMPLIANCE

A total of 991 resource consent applications were processed
to completion in 2018/19. Of these, all but four were processed
in accordance with the timeframes set out in the Resource
Management Act 1991 (RMA) discount regulations.

We administered over 10,000 resource consents across the
region at approximately 4800 sites. Some sites have just one
relatively minor consent, whilst others have a large number
of consents given the size of the operation. We monitor these
consented activities on a prioritised basis to ensure resources
are used in the most effective way.

This year we identified 524 priority one sites to monitor and
completed compliance assessments at 521 (99.6 per cent) of
these sites. Where these compliance assessments identified
non-compliance that was of a seriousness that either directive
or punitive actions were required, such action was initiated.
This was the case at 59 of the 521 priority one sites that were
monitored.

A further 250 lower priority consented sites were also
monitored for compliance.

In addition, 1024 farms were monitored for compliance with
the permitted activity rule under which most operate in relation
to disposal of dairy effluent. Of these farms, 13 per cent were
found to be significantly non-compliant. Whilst undertaking
visits to these farms, 355 farms that hold consent to take water
were also monitored for compliance.

Of the 1024 farms monitored, 497 were identified as high risk
through the effluent monitoring programme and 20 per cent
of these high risk farms were found to be significantly
non-compliant.

In 2018/19 the council worked with central government in
relation to its ongoing review of the regulatory oversight of
the three waters (wastewater, stormwater and drinking water).
The outcomes of this review are expected to be released by
the Government in the second half of 2019.

In 2019/20 it will largely be business as usual in the consenting
space, with a particular focus on the development of consent
processing systems and processes to implement the new rules
that are anticipated when Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed
Waikato Regional Plan Change 1 becomes operative. The council
will also continue to follow a risk-based monitoring programme
targeting dairy farms that have inadequate effluent storage.

INVESTIGATIONS AND INCIDENT RESPONSE

Waikato Regional Council continued to offer a 24/7 o800
number to hear from the public. In 2018/19, a total of 1838
calls were taken from members of the public notifying us of
potential breaches of environmental regulation. All calls were
responded to. Resulting from these calls and proactive
monitoring, a range of formal enforcement actions were taken
for breaches of the Resource Management Act aimed at
bringing about positive behaviour change.

The most serious instances of non-compliance by resource
users were thoroughly investigated and 28 prosecutions were
initiated by the council for varied activities, including unlawful
earthworks, human sewage and animal effluent discharges to
land and streams, objectionable odour and discharging
sediment into the coastal marine area.

In 2019/20 we will maintain our response to the growing
number of notifications from members of the public about
environmental incidents and, where appropriate, investigate
and respond to instances of non-compliance.

MARITIME SERVICES

In 2018/19, a total of 68 infringement notices and 43 formal
warnings were issued for breaches of the Navigation Safety
Bylaw. Two formal investigations into boating incidents
(collisions) resulted in two infringements and one formal
warning being issued.

In 2019/20 the MarineMate smartphone app that allows users
to access information on tide times, boat ramp locations, VHF
channels and local boating rules for the whole country will be
refreshed with funding from Maritime NZ and other regional
councils.
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WHAT WE DELIVERED

The total number of resource use performance measures is seven. Six measures were achieved (86 per cent), the remaining
measure was not achieved (14 per cent). Detailed commentary for these measures can be found in the following tables.

ACTIVITY: CONSENT PROCESSING AND COMPLIANCE

Level of service: To efficiently and effectively deliver consenting and compliance monitoring processes
under the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA) to enable the lawful use of natural and physical
resources

Percentage of resource consents processed in >95% 99.5%, achieved Five consents were processed

accordance with RMA timeframe discount outside the statutory RMA

regulations 2017/18, 99.8% timeframe. However, two of
achieved these were subject to the

queued priority process (i.e.
they were applications to take
water where the applications
needed to be processed in
priority order) and so do not
trigger the discount
regulations. Three applications
were processed outside of the
statutory timeframes and
therefore received a discount.

In total, 991 applications were
processed to completion.

Note - applicants are informed
of the result of consent
request by email or post.
Where an applicant has been
notified of the result by letter,
the timeframe is based on the
exact date of the letter.

Percentage of highest priority (P1) consented sites  100% 99.2%, not 520 P1 sites were monitored
monitored each year achieved out of a target of 524. The
high number of monitoring
2017/18,100% sites meant four did not get
achieved monitored this year.

SECTION 3: Our activities in depth Ko te hohonutanga 6 a tatou mabhi

(o)}
(o]




Percentage of significant non-compliance incidents 100% 100%, achieved Of the 520 P1 consented sites

where action is taken monitored in the 2018/19 year,
New measure, N0 46 \ere found to have non
previous data compliance that was
available considered significant. Actions

were taken in relation to all of
these identified non
compliances. At some sites,
both punitive (e.g. formal
warnings, infringement
notices, prosecution) and
directive actions (e.g.
abatement notices, letters of
direction) were taken.

In addition, there were a
range of enforcement actions
(including a number of
prosecutions) that were taken
for breaches of the Resource
Management Act that were
not related specifically to non
compliance with a resource
consent.

ACTIVITY: INVESTIGATIONS AND INCIDENT RESPONSE

Level of service: To provide a dedicated incident response service to ensure the environment, people
or property are not seriously affected by pollution incidents or non-compliant activities

Percentage of time the 24 hour 7 day a week 100% 100%, achieved 24/7 response service
response service for reporting environmental maintained consistently over
incidents is available 2017/18,96% N0t thjs period.

achieved

Level of service: To take appropriate action in response to notifications of serious non-compliance

Percentage of serious non-compliance incidents  100% 100%, achieved All incidents of serious

that are actioned non-compliance are actioned
2017/18,100% and in keeping with our
achieved enforcement policy.
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ACTIVITY: MARITIME SERVICES

Level of service: To maintain safe and navigable waterways in the region to protect the people using
them

Percentage of time grade 1 aids* to navigationare 100% 100%, achieved 100% of grade 1 aids

operational within 24 hours of failure and notified operational within 24 hours of

to Maritime NZ 2017/18,100% failure and notified to
achieved Maritime NZ.

Maintain a 24 hour 7 day a week response for 100% 100%, achieved 24/7 response service

navigational incidents** maintained consistently over
2017/18,100% this period, during which time
achieved we responded to one incident.

The incident occurred on 31
May 2019 when the vessel
Karamu went aground and
broke up overnight. Sixty litres
of diesel was lost to the
environment and our response
was to clean up debris.

* Considered to be of primary navigational significance.

** Navigational incidents are those Waikato Regional Council has jurisdiction over, for example an oil spill or debris in a river.
Incidents are reported to us from Maritime NZ or NZ Police.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR RESOURCE USE

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18

Actual Annual Plan Last year

$000 $000 $000

General rates 6,171 6,171 5,307

UAGC 1,587 1,587 1,575

Targeted rates 1,410 1,416 1,339

Fees and charges 6,756 6,161 5,487
Other income 1,055 428 675

Total income 16,979 15,763 14,383
Operating expenditure 16,616 16,139 15,537
Operating surplus / (deficit) 363 (376) (1,154)

Total funding from / (to) reserves
Permitted activity monitoring (163) (156) 6
Healthy Rivers Internal Loan - - 414
Building act contingency - - -
Total reserve transfers (163) (156) 420

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings 200 (532) (734)

EXPENDITURE
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - RESOURCE USE

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 6,414

Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges

Internal charges and overheads recovered

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 345

Total operating funding (A)

Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers

Finance costs

Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications

Total applications of operating funding (B)

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B)

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt

Gross proceeds from the sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

Total sources of capital funding (C)

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand

- to improve the level of service
- to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves

Increase (decrease) of investments

14,263

7,839

6,320

14,159

104

my

(13)

345

15,763

9,504
96

6,539

16,139

(376)

2,479

140

1,963

2019
Actual

($000)

7,758

1410

7038

774

16,980

9,727
59

6,829

16,615

365

1,811

459
133

1,584
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Total applications of capital funding (D) 104 2,103 2,176

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (104) 376 (365)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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Science and strategy | Pltaiao me te

rautaki

THIS GOA INCLUDES SIX ACTIVITIES

e Environmental monitoring

e Environmental science and information
e Social and economic information

e Integration and infrastructure

e Regional strategy and development

e Resource management policy
ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

What we do

This activity focuses on the collection, storage, management
and analysis of quality-assured data on the current state of
air, water, land, coastal resources and ecosystems. Data is
collected to support the operation of flood warning systems,
use and allocation of surface and ground freshwater resources,
setting water quality limits, identifying changes in water
quantity and quality, soil, fresh water ecology, coastal ecology
and air quality. Data is used to support the setting of policies
and rules and inform resource consent decisions.

Why we do it

Environmental monitoring enables the public to understand
how the environment is changing over time. It ensures high
quality and consistent data is collected, often reducing the
need for the public to undertake their own monitoring.

ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE AND INFORMATION

What we do

This activity works closely with the environmental monitoring
activity to gather, analyse and communicate environmental
information related to air, biodiversity, coasts, existing and
emerging contaminants, geothermal resource, groundwater,
lakes, rivers and streams, wetlands, soils and the cumulative
impacts of past and present land use.

Why we do it

The collective knowledge we develop and hold helps us
understand how natural resources respond to past, present
and future pressures. It informs the management and
mitigation of existing and potential impacts on natural
resources as well as the development and monitoring of
consent processes.

The information also tracks effectiveness of restoration work
and co-management programmes, and informs the
development, implementation and review of regional policies
and plans.

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

What we do

This activity supports evidence based planning and decision
making by gathering, analysing and reporting on social and
economic data and information and linking that to
environmental knowledge. These functions provide the council
with a better understanding of the social and economic
qualities, opinions and aspirations of our communities, which
contributes to informed decision-making about the allocation
of natural resources.

The activity also undertakes research and advises on best
practice engagement and consultation processes and monitors
people’s understanding, awareness and attitudes in regards
to the work that the council does.

Why we do it

The collection and management of quality information on the
community and economy in relation to sustainable
management of natural resources enables the council to
effectively respond to emerging issues and new challenges.
This activity ensures that a rounded approach to resource
management is undertaken. It complements natural and
physical science so decisions are made in a manner that takes
account of the inter-relationships that exist between
environment, economy and society/communities. This is critical
to sustaining growth and maintaining, or improving, the
environmental and ecological health and the use of resources
for future generations.

INTEGRATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

What we do

This activity supports the development and implementation
of policy, ensuring there is a connector between the science
information, strategy and policy developed by the organisation
and the community. It focuses on strengthening internal and
external relationships and ensures key stakeholders throughout
the region are aware of current science, strategy and policy
projects, and are able to effectively contribute.
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The activity also provides oversight for the development of
transport and infrastructure policy and implementation,
supports stakeholders to understand implementation
responsibilities and ensures there is multi-agency consistency
with regional policy.

Why we do it

We work to align regional and district council regulatory
environments and coordinate land use and infrastructure
provision to improve certainty for communities, allow for
coordinated investment and create efficiencies. We also play
a similar role in ensuring investment in our region’s transport
systems is delivering improvements in safety and has a positive
impact on economic, community and environment outcomes.

The activity’s business support and corporate library services
enable the council to be efficient, collaborative, meet statutory
requirements, and ensure our work is informed by the best
available evidence.

REGIONAL STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT

What we do

This activity involves working together to lead the Waikato
region to be more strategic and future focused. Waikato
Regional Council determines its role and priorities via its
strategic direction and undertakes strategic thinking with key
regional stakeholders.

The activity supports collaborative regional and inter-regional
development issues, including Upper North Island Strategic
Alliance, the Waikato Mayoral Forum, the Waikato Plan,
regional economic development, and responding to a changing
climate.

The activity is also about building relationships and
collaborating with other agencies including iwi, local and
central government, and the private sector to inform sector
and inter-regional strategies and national policy and regulation.

Why we do it

High quality strategic advice and information enables the
direction of key issues to be influenced, the region to be
strategically positioned, and the council to develop and deliver
on its strategic direction. Specifically, the activity delivers on
the council's regional development priority.

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT POLICY

What we do

This activity is responsible for the development and review of
resource management plans and the regional policy statement
under the Resource Management Act 1991. These documents
ensure natural resources are sustainably managed while
enabling economic development and growth, and communities,
to thrive.

This activity also provides future focused, effective resource
management policy and planning information, advice, analysis
and solutions under other relevant legislation.

Why we do it

Resource management policies and plans are developed to
deliver quality policy direction to ensure a sustainable
environment and a viable regional economy.

Credible and evidence-based policy analysis and advice is
central to the successful management of scarce, limited or
competing resources, and enables our regional communities
to make informed decisions about the use of our region’s
natural resources and respond to emerging challenges.

THIS GROUP OF ACTIVITIES CONTRIBUTES TO THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY OUTCOMES:

ACTIVITIES
Key:

A = Primary focus
¢ = Contributes to

Environmental monitoring
Environmental science and information
Social and economic information
Integration and infrastructure

Regional strategy and development

Resource management policy

COMMUNITY OUTCOMES

Healthy
environment

Strong economy | Vibrant communities

A

A o <
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HIGHLIGHTS FROM 2018/19 AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2019/20

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

In 2018/19 this activity started implementing additional
environmental monitoring of 10 new river water quality sites
for Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato Regional Plan
Change 1. We also identified 38 lakes to be part of a new
sampling regime starting in 2019/20.

We are focusing on helping customers to more easily find
where and what we monitor. This is a two year project to
develop ways of showing our data visually on our website and
developing a portal where customers can extract data
themselves. Customers will receive the benefit of being able
to identify and access the data they want, when they want,
removing the reliance on our staff to process requests.

ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE AND INFORMATION

In 2018/19, we initiated a peat subsidence monitoring
programme in partnership with Manaaki Whenua - Landcare
Research and the University of Waikato. The Waikato region
has 94,000ha of peat soils, with about 8o per cent drained
for productive land uses. The programme will help us to better
understand the impacts of draining peat soils, enable us to
provide advice for the future management of peat soils and
provide us with improved information on how existing peat
soil management influences subsidence rates.

In 2019/20, we will work out the best the way to undertake
this research so that sampling can start in 2020/21.

Throughout 2018/19 and continuing into 2019/20 we will
maintain our work with Manaaki Whenua - Landcare Research
to expand the coverage of soil map (S-map) information across
the region. S-maps can help set nitrogen reference points and
will support the development of farm environment plans. Our
focus has been on the Waipa/Waikato catchment to align with
the requirement for Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato
Regional Plan Change 1.

Using data from our long-term Regional Ecological Monitoring
System, we have identified the extent of wadeable streams
across the region that are in ‘poor’ ecological health and the
critical factors we need to improve to support better ecological
health. This information has allowed us to provide insights to
the Government’s Essential Freshwater package and has been
critical for supporting Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed
Waikato Regional Plan Change 1.

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

In 2018/19, economic considerations were incorporated into
activities right across Waikato Regional Council, including:

e evaluating our biosecurity activities for pest plant control,

e creating a framework to support policy development for
the review of the regional plan and regional coastal plan

e providing information to Te Waka - the new regional
economic development agency for the Waikato.

An ongoing research project is underway to assess the
economic value of freshwater ecosystem services. This is done
by identifying and characterising waterbodies and estimating
their benefits to Waikato communities. The project will help
us identify the demand for the benefits provided by fresh water
resources and to understand the ecological, cultural and
economic values of freshwater and the way those values are
interrelated.

Waikato Regional Council carries out the “Your Environment
- What matters?’ survey of Waikato residents every three years
to understand people’s environmental awareness, concerns
and actions. The 2018/19 survey showed a strong shift towards
more environmental awareness about future concerns
including climate change. We use the results to evaluate the
effectiveness of current policies, understand barriers to people
undertaking environmentally beneficial behaviours, and to
inform future programme planning.

INTEGRATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Through the Regional Land Transport Plan, $595 million of
investment was made in the region’s transport system in
2018/19. A review of the plan will be initiated in 2019/20.

The Regional Public Transport Plan was reviewed during
2018/19. Key activities that we will be implementing in
2019/20 include developing a mass transit plan in conjunction
with Hamilton City Council and NZ Transport Agency, and
making public transport more affordable and accessible for
our diverse communities across the region.

Through 2018/19 we have driven significant regional
collaboration, particularly on speed management. The next
steps during 2019/20 will be to ensure that territorial
authorities have what they need to undertake their speed
management work and to finalise the speed management plan
in light of changes anticipated to national policy.

We worked with NZ Transport Agency, Hamilton City Council
and Waikato District Council to prepare a business case for
the first stage of the start-up passenger rail service. This was
approved by NZ Transport Agency and we have continued
working with our partners towards having the service running
by mid-2020.

We have been involved in the Hamilton to Auckland Corridor
Plan. The plan is an expanded partnership that builds on Future
Proof and includes Auckland Council, iwi and central
government. The partnership has developed a statement of
shared spatial intent for the corridor to inform more detailed
spatial planning which should be largely concluded through
2019/20. These plans will feed into the Future Proof Strategy
review and a future change to the Regional Policy Statement
(RPS). This future change to the RPS will also help align the
plan with changes made to the RPS over the past year to
include housing capacity targets.
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We have contributed to the preparation of around 22 national
and local policy proposals through reviewing and providing
commentary on these proposals. Through 2019/20 this will
continue with a raft of national and local policy proposals and
changes expected this year. We will also be strengthening our
systems and processes for informing territorial authorities’
consenting, land use planning and other policies that relate
to our functions.

REGIONAL STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT

The Waikato Plan is driven by the Waikato Mayoral Forum and
the Waikato Plan Leadership Committee and identifies
long-term regional priorities to ensure challenges that don’t
sit neatly with one agency are captured and planned for.
During 2018/19 Waikato Regional Council was tasked with
overseeing implementation of the action plan given our
position and ability to work across the whole region. This
coordination role will continue in 2019/20 with us ensuring
agencies are supported through collaborative efforts to deliver
on commitments under the plan, and providing regular
reporting to the Waikato Plan Leadership Committee and
Mayoral Forum.

The Waikato Progress Indicators (WPI) were updated in
2018/19. WPIs measure the Waikato region’s progress by
identifying our current situation and trends of 32 key economic,
environmental and social aspects. Together, these provide a
‘dashboard’ picture of the ‘health’ of the Waikato region and
the wellbeing and quality of life of its people and
communities. See Page g for more information.

In 2019/20, we will be preparing a consistent set of population,
land use and economic projections for the next 5o years for
the region based on the 2018 Census results. We will do this
jointly with territorial authorities, NZ Transport Agency and
other organisations. The projections will be used for strategic,
infrastructure and regional and district planning.

We will also begin developing an organisation-wide climate
change response roadmap which will be rolled out 2019/20.

We are always looking to improve the quality of life of our
communities. We keep this priority fresh by developing a new
three-year strategic direction after every new council is formed.
This will happen again after the local government elections in
October 2019. Our new councillors will set their priorities for
the triennium, taking into consideration the challenges and
opportunities faced by the current council and the work that
is already underway to respond to these challenges.

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT POLICY

In 2018/19, this activity continued to implement Sea Change
- Tai Timu Tai Pari (Hauraki Gulf Marine Spatial Plan) and
support the Hauraki Gulf Forum as the statutory agency
overseeing the sustainable integrated management of the
Hauraki Gulf Marine Park. This work will roll on into 2019/20.

Healthy Rivers/Wai Ora: Proposed Waikato Regional Plan
Change 1 for the Waikato and Waipa river catchments remains
a priority for this activity. Five independent commissioners
began hearing evidence from submitters in March 2019.
Hearings are due to conclude in September 2019 with the
commissioners expected to provide their recommendations
to the council by the end of 2019. As part of the induction of
the newly elected council, councillors will learn more about
the development of the proposed rules, what was notified in
October 2016, and the changes recommended by the
commissioners. This will enable a decision to be made in early
February 2020 - ahead of the 30 April 2020 deadline.

We have continued the review of the Waikato Regional Coastal
Plan, with scoping of coastal topics and identification of issues
that need to be considered as part of the plan review. We
expect that initial consultation on the ‘Phase 1’ review topics
will be well advanced by the end of 2019/20.
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WHAT WE DELIVERED

The total number of science and strategy measures is 11. Eight measures were achieved (73 per cent), the remaining three
measures were not achieved (27 per cent). Detailed commentary for all these measures can be found in the following tables.

ACTIVITY: ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

Level of service: Provide high quality and timely data to key decision makers and the public

External audit of one environmental domain each 1 domain audited  Achieved An auditor has inspected our
year shows good quality control of data collection ) air quality sites and reviewed
and analysis 2017/18, achieved 4 processes.

Their report recommends
some editing of our manuals
but no major changes to our
sites or operations. These
recommendations are being
implemented.

Level of service: To provide high quality, independent and timely information on the allocation and
management of natural resources to key decision makers and the community

During flood events the maximum contiguous <70 minutes Achieved All regional council's alarmed
period without data is 70 minutes for flood without data sites have provided
alarmed hydrology sites New measure, N0 continuous data during flood
previous data events.
available
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ACTIVITY: ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE AND INFORMATION

Level of service: To provide high quality, independent and timely information on the allocation and
management of natural resources to key decision makers and the community

Percentage of indicators on the changes and trends  100% Not achieved Nine of 11 indicators scheduled
in natural resource availability are analysed and for reporting in 2018/19 were
reported on as per the indicator monitoring 2017/18, achieved ndated and reported through
schedule the council's website. Carbone

Monoxide and Nitrogen
dioxide were not reported as
they are part of a review that
is underway, therefore had
not been scheduled for
updating this year (they are
on a five-yearly frequency).
The environmental indicator
review will be completed in
2019/20.

Level of service: To provide a policy framework that leads to better swimming water quality in rivers

and lakes
Positive annual progress is made toward the Increasing trend Not achieved Based on these results we
regional target for swimmable lakes and rivers, as have not observed an
required by the NPS freshwater management Baseline: 2018/19: improving trend in rivers or
Rivers: 32% Rivers: 30% lakes.
Lakes: 73% Lakes: 73%

The results are based on a five
New measure, N0 year window of annual
previous data calendar year data collected,
available. in line with the guidance

around implementing the NPS

freshwater management.

We expect to see these trends
increase over a longer term
and increases may not occur
in any given year.

The results measured in lakes
and rivers are affected by the
activities undertaken on land,
and are a result of our current
policies, consent conditions
and work with landowners in
the catchments. To see big
shifts in these results would
require big shifts in the way
land is managed.
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ACTIVITY: SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Level of service: To provide high quality and timely social and economic research expertise and advice
to support the council's decision making processes

Percentage of indicators on the changes and trends  100% Achieved All indicators updated as per
in social and economic indicators analysed and schedule.

reported on as per the indicator monitoring 2017/18, achieved

schedule

ACTIVITY: INTEGRATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Level of service: To provide certainty to the regional community through robust and integrated land
use and infrastructure planning

Update the Regional Policy Statement (RPS) as per  RPS updated as  Achieved The RPS was updated on 12
the scheduled programme per NPS Urban December to include
Development New measure, N0 development capacity targets.
Capacity previous data
requirements available
Actively engage with district plan change processes  Formal Achieved Engagement is occurring with
to ensure RPS is given effect to participation in key activities including Waikato
district plan New measure, N0 pjstrict Plan Review
change previous data (submission lodged September
processes to available 2018 plus further section on
ensure RPS is natural hazards in 2019),
given effect to Thames-Coromandel District

Council hearings, and private
plan changes including Te Awa
Lakes. Staff are also working
upfront with Waitomo, Taupo,
Hauraki and others

ACTIVITY: REGIONAL STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT

Level of service: To ensure the council is making progress towards its strategic direction priorities

Report annually on progress made against the Progress reported  Achieved Progress on strategic direction
council's strategic direction priorities inthe WRC annual is reported in the 2018/19
report 2017/18, achieved  Annyal Report.
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ACTIVITY: RESOURCE MANAGEMENT POLICY

Level of service: To provide certainty to the regional community through a robust, integrated and
consistent environmental planning framework

Compliance with Resource Management Act and  All legislative Not achieved Compliant with all

Treaty settlement legislative planning requirements are requirements except for:

requirements met New Measure, N0 b2 rts of the NZCPS not
previous data

implemented through the
coastal plan (resolved
through the Healthy
Environments project).

available

e S35(2A) five yearly review
of the results of efficiency
and effectiveness of RMA
plans (project has
commenced to prepare a
summary report).

Level of service: To provide opportunities to be involved in planning processes

Percentage of Resource Management Act (RMA)  100% Achieved Waikato Regional Plan

planning documents made available for Change 1 is the only RMA

consultation that meet RMA legislative New measure, no plan change in progress and

requirements previous data it is fully compliant.
available.

Level of service: To provide a Regional Policy Statement and Regional Plan(s) that ensure natural and
physical resources are managed sustainably

State of the Environment reporting is undertaken  Reported annually ~ Achieved Ten environmental indicators

annually were included as part of the
New measure, N0 35 wajkato Progress Indicators
previous data that were published in June
available. 2019.
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WHAT IT COST

EXPENDITURE FOR SCIENCE AND STRATEGY

General rates
UAGC

Government grants
Fees and charges
Investment income
Other income

Total income

Operating expenditure

Operating surplus / (deficit)
Total funding from / (to) reserves
Cycling Centre of Excellence

River restoration strategy
Contaminated land fund
Investment Equalisation

Prior year surplus

Total reserve transfers

Increase / (decrease) in retained earnings

EXPENDITURE

2018/19

Actual
$000

19,065
1,464
660

2,642

222

24,053

24,301

(248)

(133)
630

146

643

395

2018/19
Annual Plan
$000

19,065
1,464
583

2,990

85

24,187

24,592

(405)

(133)

630

497

92

2017/18
Last year
$o00

19,766
1,430
984
2,180
250
429

25,039

22,130

2,909

(508)

75

(133)

54

(512)

2,397
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - SCIENCE AND STRATEGY

2019

Actual
($000)

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 20,467 20,529 20,529

Targeted rates = = =

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 750 583 660
Fees and charges 2856 3074 2863
Internal charges and overheads recovered 683 814 814

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - - -

Total operating funding (A) 24,756 25,000 24,866

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 18,619 15,360 14,874
Finance costs ® 172 172
Internal charges and overheads applied 9,165 9,874 10,070

Other operating funding applications -
Total applications of operating funding (B) 27,784 25,406 25,116

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) (3,028) (406) (250)

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure = = =
Development and financial contributions - - -
Increase (decrease) in debt - 4,549 4,399
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets = = =
Lump sum contributions = = =
Other dedicated capital funding . . -

Total sources of capital funding (C) - 4,549 4,399

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand = B ;

- to improve the level of service 329 581
- to replace existing assets 929 550 735
Increase (decrease) in reserves (4,286) 3,012 3,414

Increase (decrease) of investments - - -
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Total applications of capital funding (D) (3,028) 4,143 4,149

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) 3,028 406 250

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - CORPORATE, SELF FUNDING AND OTHER

2019

Actual
($000)

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties (2,333) (1,994) (2,345)
Targeted rates > = (1)

Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - -

Fees and charges 261 416 505
Internal charges and overheads recovered 29,965 34,488 36,924
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 6,842 6,643 7,562
Total operating funding (A) 34,735 39,553 42,645

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 27,255 34,571 36,484
Finance costs ® 201 256
Internal charges and overheads applied 962 814 814

Other operating funding applications - - -
Total applications of operating funding (B) 28,217 35,676 37,554

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) 6,518 3,877 5,091

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure = = =
Development and financial contributions - - -
Increase (decrease) in debt - 9,217 10,633
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets = = =
Lump sum contributions = = =
Other dedicated capital funding . . -

Total sources of capital funding (C) - 9,217 10,633

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand = B ;

- to improve the level of service 74 1,200 2,413
- to replace existing assets 1,861 1,590 1,335
Increase (decrease) in reserves 4,583 10,304 11,976

Increase (decrease) of investments - - -

Waikato Regional Council 2018/19 Annual Report Pirongo a-tau

[ee]
[e)}




Total applications of capital funding (D) 6,518 13,094 15,724

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (6,518) (3,877) (5,091)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - -
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FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT - WHOLE OF COUNCIL

2018
2018 Annual 2019

Annual Plan Report Annual Plan
($000) (So000) (S000)

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 45,393 44,749 47,765 47,415
Targeted rates 40,076 40,038 44,991 45,113
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 10,747 12,508 13,898 12,647
Fees and charges 18,708 19,847 21,014 21,757
Interest and dividends from investments 6,784 7,908 6,643 7,612
Loca.l authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other 351 500 345 774
receipts

Total operating funding (A) 122,059 125,550 134,656 135,318

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 115,230 117,021 125,012 123,703
Finance costs - 858 482
Other operating funding applications

Total applications of operating funding (B) 115,230 117,021 125,870 124,185

Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A-B) 6,829 8,529 8,786 11,133

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure

Development and financial contributions

Increase (decrease) in debt 30,276 22,000
Gross proceeds from sale of assets

Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

Total sources of capital funding (C) - - 30,276 22,000

Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure

- to meet additional demand - - -

- to improve the level of service 4,347 932 2,103 6,137
- to replace existing assets 15,662 14,434 15,528 10,784
Increase (decrease) in reserves (14,990) (8,036) 21,431 16,212
Increase (decrease) of investments 1,810 1,199
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Total applications of capital funding (D) 6,829 8,529 39,062 33,133

Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C-D) (6,829) (8,529) (8,786) (11,133)

Funding balance ((A-B)+(C-D)) - - ) i
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Financial statements

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. The financial statements from page 93 to page 99 are to be
read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements from page 100 to page 158.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The council of Waikato Regional Council hereby confirms that all statutory requirements in relation to the annual report, as
outlined in the Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with.

Alan Livingston Vaughan Payne

Chairperson Chief Executive
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WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Revenue

Rates revenue

Fees and charges

Subsidies and grants

Other revenue

Investment revenue

Investment fund capital protection revenue
Change in market value of investments
Total revenue

Expenditure

Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other losses

Interest expense

Other expenses

Total operating expenditure

Net surplus/(deficit) after tax

Surplus/(deficit) attributable to Waikato Regional Council
Other comprehensive revenue and expenditure

Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Surplus is attributable to:

Total comprehensive revenue and expenditure comprised of:
Funds transferred to council-created reserves

Funds transferred from asset revaluation reserves

General operating surplus

Other comprehensive income

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Actual

$'000

3 92,530
4 11,898
5 12,647
6 10,632
7 1,017
8 1,379
8 5217

135,320
12 48,931

25,26,28 9,199

17 1,785
7 482
10 74,912
135,309

1

1

38 -405
-405

-394

38 7,254
-750

-6,898

-394

92,206
11,529
13,898
9,830
1,500
1,727
3,416

134,106

48,468
10,387
43

858
75,993
135,749
-1,643

-1,643

-1,643

3,317

-4,960

-1,643

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

84,788
9,787
12,508
10,560
1,114
1,199
5596

125,552

44,685
9,195

38

72,320
126,238
-686

-686

3,733

3,083

-692

O
w
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

Annual
Actual plan

$'000 $'000

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19 15,061 5,205 10,365
Trade and other receivables 24 11,773 11,618 10,318
Prepayments 1,505 1,008 949
Inventories 30 466 150 413
Work in progress 30 985 967 1,094
Other financial assets 20 4,040 23,735 4,238
Non-current assets held for sale 32 12,250 - -
Total current assets 46,080 42,683 27,377

Non-current assets

Financial assets 20 101,484 95,088 88,335
Other financial assets 20 108 146 148
Investments in CCO* 20 2,038 1,741 1,757
Biological assets 27 1,422 1,348 1,516
Intangible assets 26 4,122 2,389 3,044
Property, plant and equipment 25 515,422 534,348 522,379
Total non-current assets 624,596 635,960 617,179
Total assets 670,676 678,643 644,556

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 33 17,650 18,968 15,587
Employee benefits liabilities 13 7,219 7,368 6,430
Derivative financial instruments 31 7 - -
Borrowings 34 2,012 11,520 -
Total current liabilities 26,888 37,856 22,017

Non-current liabilities

Employee benefits liabilities 13 2,530 2,704 2,258
Derivative financial instruments 31 1,250 - -
Borrowings 34 20,121 18,755 -
Total non-current liabilities 23,901 21,459 2,258
Total liabilities 50,789 59,315 24,275
Net assets 619,887 619,328 620,281
EQUITY

Accumulated funds 38 226,964 227,366 233,862
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Other reserves 38 392,923 391,962 386,419

Total equity 619,887 619,328 620,281

* Investments in CCOs relate to the council's interest in Waikato Local Authority Shared Services (LASS), Regional Software
Holdings Ltd (RSHL) and the NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA).

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided Page 98. The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Actual

$'000

Opening Equity 620,281 620,971 620,973

Comprehensive revenue - - i

Surplus/(deficit) 1 -1,643 -686
Other comprehensive revenue -405 - -6
Balance at 30 June 38 619,887 619,328 620,281

COMPONENTS OF EQUITY

Council created reserves

Council created reserves at beginning of the year 47,673 54,484 51,406
Net transfer (to) / from retained earnings 7,254 -1,308 3,733
Council created reserves at end of year 54,927 53,176 47,673

Asset revaluation reserves

Asset revaluation reserves at beginning of the year 338,745 338,786 338,787
Net transfer to retained earnings -345 - -36
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of PPE -405 - -6
Asset revaluation reserves at end of the year 337,995 338,786 338,745

Retained earnings

Retained earnings at beginning of the year 233,862 227,701 230,779
Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 1 -1,643 -686
Net transfer (to) / from council created reserves -7,254 1,308 3,733
Net transfer to/(from) Asset revaluation reserve 345 - 36
Retained earnings at end of the year 226,964 227,366 233,862
EQUITY AT END OF THE YEAR 619,887 619,328 620,281

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided on Page 98.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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WAIKATO REGIONAL COUNCIL

Cash flows from operating activities

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Actual

Note $'000

Receipts from customers 114,830 112,483 106,874
Grants 12,151 13,898 12,216
Interest revenue received 1,004 4,916 1,435
Receipts of funding held on behalf of third parties 77 - 14
Goods and services tax -12 - -1,152
Payments to suppliers and employees -120,917 -122,885  -115,020
Payments of funding held on behalf of third parties -13 - -197
Interest paid -349
Net cash flow from operating activities 18 6,771 8,412 4,170
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 209 = 587
Receipts from sale of investments 82,698 1,357 112,078
Receipt of loan repayments 39 1 38
Purchase of investments -89,405 -23,392  -94,300
Purchase of property, plant and equipment -15,889 -17,201  -17,188
Purchase of other investments = = =
Purchase of intangible assets -1,727 -430 -1,738
Net cash flow from investing activities -24,075 -39,665 -523
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 22,000 36,433 =
Repayment of borrowings - -6,157 -
22,000 30,276 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 4,696 -977 3,647
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 10,365 6,182 6,718
Cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 19 15,061 5,205 10,365

The GST (net) component of operating activities reflects the net GST paid and received with the Inland Revenue Department.
The GST (net) component has been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for
financial statement purposes.

As per PBE IPSAS 2 the receipt and purchase of long term deposit (greater than 3 months) is not able to be offset in the Statement
of Cash Flow. The variance between this year actual and the budget arises because the budget shows the receipt and purchase
of long term deposit as a net figure.

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided on 'Explanation of major variances against budget'
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Explanation of major variances against

budget

Explanations for major variations from Waikato Regional
Council’s estimated figures for 2018/19 in the 2018/28 Long
Term Plan are as follows.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE
AND EXPENDITURE

Rates revenue is $324,000 more than budget, reflecting higher
regional growth than had been anticipated by thecouncil at
the time that the rates were set in June 2018.

Fees and charges revenue is $369,000 above budget. This
reflects additional revenue in both compliance monitoring
revenue ($563,000) and unbudgeted cost recovery of council
time spent to support biosecurity work programmes such as
Alligator weed control and surveillance, Mycoplasma bovis
response and Queensland fruit fly response ($454,000). Delays
in the commencement of additional public transport services
in north Waikato resulted in reduced cost recovery ($250,000).
Revenue generated through annual consent holder charges to
fund the council’s state of the environment monitoring
programme was $343,000 lower than budget.

Subsidies and grants are $1.251 million below budget. Key
contributors to this outcome include:

e additional revenue for a number of business and community
based initiatives under the Waikato Means Business
programme ($184,000)

e additional funding from the New Zealand Transport Agency
(NZTA) for the Hamilton to Auckland Commuter Rail project
($300,000)

e delays in the implementation of the regional integrated
ticketing system, and various work programmes such as
bus shelter maintenance has resulted in lower revenue from
NZTA ($862,000). Lower public transport contract costs due
to delays in the implementation of planned service
improvements has lead to lower than budgeted subsidy
required from NZTA ($724,000)

e |ower resourcing requirements to support the Regional Land
Transport Plan as the plan transitions from the development
phase into implementation ($80,000).

Other revenue is $802,000 favourable to budget. Key
contributors to this include:

e unbudgeted contributions for Manchurian wild rice control,
Queensland fruit fly response, kauri dieback and
contribution to the council’s Pest Fish Management Plan
($249,000)

e additional revenue associated with the council’s flood
schemes ($207,000), for Waipd, Lower Waikato and

Coromandel zones, including landowner contributions for
river management works

e more jet ski registrations and bylaw activities in the
Maritime Services activity as well as unbudgeted recoveries
for attendance at investigations and erosion and sediment
courses run by the council resulted in additional revenue
of $199,000

e increased fines revenue ($429,000) as the result of
increased investigations and incident response, and
Maritime Services activity.

These increases in revenue were partially offset by
unfavourable revenue variance due to:

e delays in the finalisation of a policy in relation to bus back
advertising and progress with the development of a mass
transit plan in conjunction with Hamilton City Council
($352,000).

Investment income is $970,000 favourable to budget. Lower
working capital funds on hand over the course of the year,
combined with reducing interest rates, have resulted in lower
interest income. This is offset by the positive performance of
the council’s investment fund. The fund achieved a return of
7.6 per cent for the year, in line with the benchmark return
for similar funds.

Employee benefit expenses are $463,000 higher than budget.
Total employee salary costs for the year are $48.185 million
against an annual plan budget of $48.468 million. Actual costs
include an increase in the actuarial valuation of employee
benefit entitlements ($746,000). This increase reflects the
impact of lower interest rates applied to the valuation of long
service leave and retirement gratuity entitlements.

Depreciation and amortisation is $1.188 million lower than
budget. Delays with the implementation of the regional
integrated ticketing solution for public transport has resulted
in depreciation expense of $601,000 not being incurred. The
timing of vehicle fleet replacement capital expenditure has
also resulted in reduced depreciation expense of $180,000.

Other losses are $1.742 million higher than budget. The main
contributor was a loss on valuation of financial instruments
($1.249) due to lower interest rates. Other losses include
adjustments ($200,041) required to be made in relation to the
council’s property at 401 Grey St, Hamilton East to reflect the
difference between the last valuation of this property and the
value that the council has been able to realise through its sale.

Interest expense is $376,000 lower than budget. The annual
plan anticipated a borrowing programme of up to $30 million
this financial year. Actual borrowings at 30 June 2019 were
$22 million. This resulted in lower interest costs being incurred.
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Integrated catchment management expenditure is $1.5 million
favourable to the annual plan. The timing of regional priority
possum control contracts has meant that budgets are
underspent by $695,000. This funding has been transferred
to the biosecurity reserve to ensure that it is available to meet
future contract commitments. Delays with the planned harvest
of a forestry block in the Waihou Piako zone has meant that
planned costs of $240,000 have not yet been incurred.
Expenditure on the development of sub-catchment plans as
part of the Healthy Rivers project is also below budget by
$369,000 this year.

Public transport expenditure is $1.215 million favourable to the
annual plan. Delays with the implementation of new services
in north Waikato have resulted in costs being lower by
$576,000. Additional costs have been incurred to support the
Hamilton to Auckland commuter rail service ($300,000), offset
by reduced expenditure for the development of a mass transit
plan for Hamilton city (6500,000). The new electronic ticketing
system has not yet been implemented, meaning that budgeted
depreciation expense of $602,000 has not been incurred.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents are $9.856 million higher than
budget, offset by the lower value of financial assets ($19.695
million lower than budget). Financial assets include term
deposits with a maturity of 3 months or greater. The council
has utilised working capital funds that it holds instead of taking
on borrowings to the level anticipated in the annual plan to
meet the infrastructure capital works programme.

The favourable fund performance over the last year as noted
above, combined with a higher fund value at 30 June 2018,
has resulted in non-current financial assets being favourable
to budget (55.496 million).

Intangible assets are $1.733 million higher than budget. This
reflects expenditure incurred to date in relation to the
development of a software solution to support the Healthy
Rivers Wai Ora project, and the new electronic ticketing system
for public transport.

Property, plant and equipment is $18.926 million lower than
budget. This reflects the sale of council’s two properties in
Hamilton East. The sale of the council's premises will be
completed in the next financial year. At 30 June 2019, the value
of these assets have been restated to align with the sales
prices, and they have been reclassified as “non current assets
held for sale” ($12.25 million). Infrastructure capital works
undertaken this year cost $11.228 million compared to the
annual plan budget of $12.127 million. Other key projects that
have been delayed this year include:

» electronic ticketing system for public transport (51.835
million)

» replacement barge to support river management works
($1.59 million)

« planned vehicle fleet replacements ($705,000).

Borrowings reflect the council’s external borrowing through
the Local Government Funding Agency. The annual plan
anticipated the need to borrow $30 million by the end of the
2018/19 financial year. Actual borrowing at 30 June 2019 was
$22 million, reflecting both a lower than budgeted capital works
programme ($7.068 million) well as greater utilisation of
working capital funds that the council had on hand to meet
expenditure needs. As noted above, the value of cash, cash
equivalents and financial assets is $9.839 million lower than
the annual plan as a consequence of this.

Derivative financial instruments reflect interest rate swaps
that the council has entered to manage the interest rate risk
associated with its borrowing programme.

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided on
Page 98.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

O
O
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Notes to the financial statements

1 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

REPORTING ENTITY

Waikato Regional Council is a territorial local authority
governed by the Local Government Act 2002, and is domiciled
in New Zealand. The relevant legislation governing the council's
operations includes the Local Government Act 2002 and the
Local Government (Rating) Act 2002.

The primary objective of Waikato Regional Council is to provide
local infrastructure, local public services, and to perform
regulatory functions for the community. The council does not
operate to make a profit. Accordingly, Waikato Regional Council
has designated itself a public benefit entity for financial
reporting purposes.

The financial statements of the Council are for the year ended
30 June 2019. The financial statements were authorised for
issue by Council on 26 September 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis, and the accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout the year.

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except where modified by the revaluation
of land, buildings, infrastructural assets and biological assets.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the council have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2002 and the Local Government (Financial Reporting and
Prudence) Regulations 2014, which includes the requirement
to comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New
Zealand (NZ GAAP).

The financial statements of the Council have been prepared
in accordance with Tier 1 PBE accounting standards.

These financial statements comply with PBE Standards.
Presentation currency and rounding

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($000), other than the remuneration and severance payment
disclosures in note 11. The remuneration and severance
transaction disclosures are rounded to the nearest dollar.

Changes in accounting policies

There have been no changes in the Council's accounting
policies since the date of the last audited financial
statements.

Accounting standards issued and not yet effective that have
not been early adopted

Impairment of revalued assets.

In April 2017, the XRB issued Impairment of Revalued Assets,
which now clearly scopes revalued property, plant, and
equipment into the impairment accounting standards.
Previously, only property, plant, andequipment measured at
cost were scoped into the impairment accounting
standards.Under the amendment, a revalued asset can be
impaired without having to revalue the entire class-of assetto
which the asset belongs. This is effective for financial years
beginning on or after January 2019. The council has not
adopted this amendment in preparing its 30 June 2019 financial
statements.

Financial instruments.

In January 2017, the XRB issued PBE IFRS g Financial
Instruments. This replaces PBE IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. PBE IFRS g is effective for
financial years beginning on or after January 2021, with earlier
application permitted. The main changes under the standard
relevant to the Council are:

e New financial asset classification requirements for
determining whether an asset is measured at fairvalue or
amortised cost.

e A new impairment model for financial assets based on
expected losses, which might result in the earlier recognition
of impairment losses.

The council has not adopted this new standard in preparing
its 30 June 2019 financial statements.

Interests in other entities.

In January 2017, the XRB issued new standards for interests in
other entities (PBE IPSAS 34 - 38). These new standards replace
the existing standards for interests in other entities (PBE IPSAS
6 - 8). The new standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 2019, with early application
permitted.

The council plans to apply the new standards in preparing the
30 June 2020 financial statements. The council has not yet
assessed the effects of these new standards.

Statement of cash flows.

An amendment to PBE IPSAS 2 Statement of Cash Flows
requires entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. This amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021. This amendment is effective for annual periods
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beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with early application
permitted. The council does not intend to early adopt the
amendment.

Service performance reporting.

PBE FRS 48 replaces the service performance reporting
requirements of PBE IPSAS 1 and is effective for reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The council has
not yet determined how application of PBE FRS 48 will affect
its statement of performance

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies are included in the notes to
which they relate.

Significant accounting policies that do not relate to a specific
note are outlined below.

Goods and services tax (GST)

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of

GST, except for receivables and payables, which are presented
on a GST inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input
tax then it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the
GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified
as an operating cash flow in the cash flow statement.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of
GST.

Budget figures

The budget figures are those approved by the council in its
2018/28 Long Term Plan. The budget figures have been
prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP and are consistent with
the accounting policies adopted by the council for the
preparation of the financial statements.

Costs allocation

Cost of service for each significant activity is calculated as
follows:

e Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities.

e Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using
appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff numbers
and floor area. Indirect costs are those costs that cannot be
identified in an economically feasible manner with a specific
significant activity.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions (including those for which
forward foreign exchange contracts are held) are translated
into NZ$ (the functional currency) using the spot exchange

rate at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, estimates and
assumptions have been made concerning the future. These
estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent
actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations or future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

e estimating the fair value of land, buildings, and
infrastructural assets - see note 25.

e estimating the retirement and long service leave obligations
- see note 13.

Critical judgements in applying Waikato Regional Council's
accounting policies

Management has exercised the following critical judgment in
applying Waikato Regional Council’s accounting policies for
the period ended 30 June 2019.

As at 30 June 2019, the council's property at 401 and 319 Grey
Street, Hamilton East are classified as non current assets held
for sale - see note 32.

Q
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2 SUMMARY OF COST OF SERVICES

Actual Budget

$'000 $'oo00
Revenue
Community and Services 10,721 10,759 10,027
Civil Defence and Emergency Management 2,391 2,412 2,149
Regional hazards and emergency response 1,893 1,937 1,552
Flood protection and control works 21,133 20,878 19,246
Integrated Catchment Management 26,274 25,465 22,786
Public Transport 26,152 28,194 24,639
Resource use 16,979 15,763 14,383
Science and Strategy 24,053 24,187 25,039
Corporate and self-funding 5,494 4,308 5,550
Council controlled organisations 230 160 181
Total income from activities 135,320 134,063 125,552

Expenditure

Community and Services 10,061 10,512 9,730
Civil Defence and emergency management 2,327 2,464 2,023
Regional hazards and emergency response 2,343 1,937 1,871
Flood protection and control works 22,819 21,847 24,780
Integrated Catchment Management 25,816 27,316 23,474
Public Transport 25,558 26,773 24,262
Resource Use 16,616 16,140 15,537
Science and Strategy 24,301 24,593 22,130
Corporate and self-funding 5,150 3,964 2,063
Council controlled organisations 318 160 368
Total operating expenses 135,309 135,706 126,238
Net Total 1 -1,643 -686
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3 RATES REVENUE

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'o00
General rates 47,11 44,496
Total general rates revenue 47,111 44,496

Targeted rates attributable to activities

Biodiversity 1,017 1,017
Biosecurity 6,745 6,025
Permitted activity monitoring 1,410 1,340
River and catchment services 25,298 22,373
Transport 8,036 7,028
Stock Truck Effluent 113 70
Civil defence and emergency management 1,772 1,538
Regional Services 725 650
Total targeted rates 45,116 40,041
Less rates remissions -549 -498
Plus rate penalties 852 749
Total rates, excluding targeted water supply rates 92,530 84,788

Revenue is measured at fair value.
Rates revenue
The following policies for rates have been applied:

e General rates, targeted rates, and uniform annual general charges are recognised at the start of the financial year to which
the rates resolution relates. They are recognised at the amounts due. The council considers that the effect of payment of
rates by instalment is not sufficient to require discounting of rates recievables and subsequent recognition of interest revenue.

e Rates arising from late payment penalties are recognised as revenue when rates become overdue.

e Rates remissions are recognised as a reduction of rates revenue when the council has received an application that satisfies
its rates remission policy.

Rates revenue is shown net of rates remissions. Waikato Regional Council’s rates remission policies allow for the remission of
the following rates.

e Land protected for conservation purposes.

e Lake Taupd lakebed.

e Ma3ori freehold land.

e Urban land in areas classified as rural, commercial or industrial.
e Biosecurity rate on fenced indigenous bush and wetland areas.
e Rating units with a capital value of $1000 or less.

e Sporting and recreational organisations.

e Community organisations.

e Undeveloped land, native bush or swamp areas charged the Waihou/Piako Catchment rate.
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NON-RATEABLE LAND

Under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002, certain properties cannot be rated for general rates. These properties include
schools, places of religious worship, public gardens and reserves. These non-rateable properties may be subject to targeted
rates. The non-rating of non-rateable land does not constitute a remission under the council’s rates remission policy.

The council is required by the LGFA Guarantee and Indemnity Deed to disclose in its financial statements (or notes) its annual
rates revenue. That Deed defines annual rates revenue as an amount equal to the total revenue from any funding mechanism
authorised by the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 together with any revenue received by the council from other local
authorities for services provided by that council for which those other local authorities rate. Annual rates revenue by this
definition is as disclosed in the table above.

4 FEES AND CHARGES

Actual Last year

$'ooo $'ooo
Compliance monitoring direct charges 2,234 1,823
Consent application fees 3,242 2,396
Consent holder charges 3,760 3,255
Other direct charges 2,662 2,313
Total fees and charges 11,898 9,787

Building and resource consent revenue

Fees and charges for building and resource consent services are recognised on a percentage completion basis with reference
to the recoverable costs incurred at balance date.

5 SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000
Land transport government grants 12,216 11,873
Other grants 431 635
Total subsidies and grants 12,647 12,508

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to subsidies and grants recognised (2018 nil).
Land Transport Government grants

Government grants are received from the New Zealand Transport Agency, which subsidises part of the costs of the provision
of public transport services and development of transport policies and plans. The subsidies are recognised as revenue upon
entitlement, as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled.

Other grants

Other grants are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an obligation in substance to return the
funds if conditions are not met. If there is such an obligation, the grants are intially recorded as grants received in advance and
recognised as revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied.
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6 OTHER REVENUE

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Bus fare revenue 5,897 5,950
Rental 851 895
Royalties 130 192
Other revenue 3,754 3,523
Total other revenue 10,632 10,560

Provision of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at balance date,
based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total services to be provided.

7 FINANCE REVENUE AND COSTS

Actual Last year

$'ooo $'ooo
Community loans 9 "
Statutory land charges 41 32
Term deposits and call accounts 967 1,071
Total investment revenue 1,017 1,114

Interest expense:

Interest on borrowings 458 -

Interest rate swaps 24 =

Total finance costs 482 -
Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method. Interest revenue on an impaired financial asset is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which they are incurred.

8 CHANGE IN MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

Realised gains on assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

Actual Last year
$'ooo $'ooo

Unrealised gains on assets at fair value through surplus or deficit -
(]
]
Fixed interest 3,148 1,027 2
wv
Equities 1,349 4,062 g
5
Property 755 452 T
S
5,252 5,541 >
o
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Fixed interest 207 345

Equities 692 909
Property 445 -
1,344 1,254

Total change in market value of investments 6,596 6,795
Investment fund capital protection revenue 1,379 1,199
Net change in market value 5,217 5,596
Total change in market value of investments 6,596 6,795

Financial risk management strategies

Waikato Regional Council is exposed to financial risks associated with changes in the value of the financial instruments that
comprise its investment fund. Waikato Regional Council is a long-term investor, and accepts that returns in any given year may
vary from its long-term target return. Risk is managed through the use of a diversified portfolio of financial assets. The council
also undertakes a regular review of the risk profile associated with the investment fund, and adjusts its asset allocation policy
accordingly. Refer to note 24 for further information regarding council’s financial instrument risks.

9 EXCHANGE AND NON-EXCHANGE REVENUE

The total revenue from non-exchange transactions includes the revenue from rates, government grants, bus revenue, fines and
other revenue. Total non-exchange revenue for the 2018/19 financial year is $121.251 million (2018: $112.336 million).

The total revenue from exchange transactions includes the revenue from interest, rental, royalties, fees and charges and other
revenue. Total exchange revenue for the 2018/19 financial year is $14.069 million (2018: $13.216 million).
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10 OTHER EXPENSES

Actual Last year
Other expenses $'o00 $'oo0
Insurance premiums 689 525
Subscriptions and levies 328 268
Debts written off 229 306
Impairment of receivables 125 -54
Fees paid to auditors: Audit of Annual Report 135 134
Fees paid to auditors: Audit of debenture trust deed 6
Fees paid to auditors: Audit of LTP - 84
Donations 5 5
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 1,363 1,192
Other operating expenses 49,249 47,906
Inventory consumption 365 105
Property, plant and equipment losses / (gains) on disposal 357 185
Councillors’ remuneration: Meeting attendance fees and salary 1,067 1,063
Councillors' remuneration: Expenses 94 65
Investment fund management fees 312 323
Contracted services - pest control 973 1,032
Contracted services - buses 19,615 19,181
Total other expenses 74,912 72,320
Grant expenditure

Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified criteria and are recognised
as expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the grant has been received.

Discretionary grants are those grants where Waikato Regional Council has no obligation to award on receipt of the grant
application and are recognised as expenditure when approved by the council and the approval has been communicated to the
applicant.
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11 REMUNERATION

Chief Executive
Salary
Vehicle (value per contract)

Total Chief Executive remuneration

Elected representatives

This Year

J Hayman

] Hennebry
K Hodge

S Husband
S Kneebone
F Lichtwark
A Livingston
T Mahuta

D Minogue
B Quayle

R Rimmington
B Simcock
H Vercoe

K White
Total

Last Year

J Hayman

] Hennebry
K Hodge

S Husband
S Kneebone
F Lichtwark
A Livingston

T Mahuta

61,465
74,065
61,465
74,065
74,065
61,465
154,870
86,666
61,465
61,465
74,065
74,065
74,065
74,065

1,067,316

61,203
73,750
61,203
73,750
73,750
61,203
153,963

86,297

Actual

$

342,845
8,899

351,744

Travel time
allowance

$

2,929
131
559
484
244

7,161

647
7,551

375

1,425
4,765

26,271

2,974

837

659

281

5,025

707

Last year

$

328,354
8,899

337,253

64,394
74,196
62,024
74,549
74,309
68,626
154,870
87,313
69,016
61,840
74,065
74,065
75,490
78,830

1,093,587

64,177
73,750
62,040
74,409
74,031
66,228
153,963

87,004
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D Minogue 61,203 8,036 69,239

B Quayle 61,203 175 61,378
R Rimmington 73,750 9 73,759
B Simcock 73,750 - 73,750
H Vercoe 73,750 836 74,586
K White 73,750 4,481 78,231
Total 1,062,525 24,020 1,086,545

In addition to the salary payments above, Chairman Alan Livingston had the full private use of a motor vehicle valued at $3,447
(2018: $3,447).

The figures presented above exclude mileage expenses paid to councillors.
EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

At balance date, the council employed 477 (2018: 445) full-time employees, with the balance of staff representing 63 (2018: 51)
full-time equivalent employees. A full-time employee is determined on the basis of a 40-hour working week.
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Total annual remuneration by band for employees as at 30 June:

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'o00
< $60,000 116 134
$60,000-579,999 142 153
$80,000-$99,999 155 13
$100,000-5119,999 84 65
$120,000-$139,999 39 29
$140,000-5159,999 n 9
$160,000-5179,999 8 9
$180,000-5$279,999 8 6
$320,000-$339,999 - 1
$340,000-5359,999 1 -
Total employees 564 519

Severance payments

SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019, Waikato Regional Council made two severance payments (2018: three severance payments).
The value of the two severance payments was $656.25 and $17,749.99. (2018: $44,000, $8,000 and $5,000).

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Salaries and wages 46,870 43,425
Defined contribution plan employer contributions 1,315 1,201
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit liabilities 746 59
Total employee benefit expenses 48,931 44,685

The impact of the actuarial valuation of long service leave and retirement gratuity liability has been to increase the employee
benefit expense by $353,000 in total (2018: $89,000 increase). The retirement gratuity liability increased by $51,000 and the
long service leave liability increased by $302,000, both mainly due to a reduction in the discount rates used for the valuation.
The reduction in discount rates is reflective of current low interest rates.

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to KiwiSaver.
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13 CURRENT LIABILITIES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'o00
Current
Annual leave 3,658 3,321
Long service leave 201 186
Retirement gratuities 523 477
Sick leave 267 191
Other employee benefits 1,210 1,059
Accrued pay 1,360 1,196
Total current portion 7,219 6,430

Short term employee entitlements

Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service are measured based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.

These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to but not yet taken at balance date, retirement
gratuities and long service entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave.

A liability for sick leave is recognised to the extent that absences in the coming period are expected to be greater than the sick
leave entitlements earned in the coming period. The amount is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can
be carried forward at balance date, to the extent it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.

Presentation of employee entitlements

Sick leave, annual leave, vested long service leave, and non-vested long service leave and retirement gratuities expected to be
settled within 12 months of balance date are classified as a current liability. All other employee entitlements are classified as a
non-current liability.

Superannuation schemes
Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to KiwiSaver are accounted for as defined contribution superannuation schemes and are recognised
as an expense in the surplus or deficit when incurred.

14 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Non-current

Long service leave 1,973 1,706
Gratuities 557 552
Total non-current 2,530 2,258

The present value of retirement and long service leave obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis. Two key assumptions used in calculating this liability include the discount rate and the salary growth rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability. Expected future payments are discounted using

forward discount rates derived from the yield curve of New Zealand government bonds. The discount rates used have maturities
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that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. The salary growth assumed for an employee is the salary
inflation component plus the promotional salary scale for that employee’s age. The 10 year discount rate of 2.42 per cent (2018:
3.7 per cent) and a long-term salary growth rate of 1.72 per cent (2018: 1.71 per cent) was used.

Long term employee entitlements

Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service, such as long service leave and retirement gratuities, have been calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculations
are based on:

e likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff will reach
the point of entitlement, and contractual entitlement information; and

e the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMNET PERSONNEL

During the year councillors and key management, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions
with Waikato Regional Council (such as the payment of rates).

Key management personnel include the council Chair, councillors, Chief Executive and other senior management personnel.

Last year Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Councillors - ;
Remuneration 1,094 1,087
Full-time equivalent members 14 14 - -

Senior management team, including the Chief Executive - =

Remuneration and post-employment benefits 1,589 1,550
Full-time equivalent members 6 6 - -
Balance at 30 June 2,683 2,637
Total full-time equivalent personnel 20 20

Due to the difficulty in determining the full-time equivalent for councillors, the full-time equivalent figure is taken as the number
of councillors.

Transactions between Waikato Regional Council and Waikato Local Authority Shared Services Ltd and Regional Software Holdings
Ltd have been treated as related party transactions.

Waikato Regional Council provides financial administration services to Waikato Local Authority Shared Services Ltd.

The former CFO of Waikato Regional Council Mike Garrett was a Director of Regional Software Holdings Limited but resigned
in December 2018. No directors fees were paid to Directors.

No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables
to related parties (2018 nil).
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16 TAX

Actual Last year

$'000 $'ooo

Components of tax expense

Current tax expense = -
Adjustment to current tax in prior years - -
Deferred tax liability - =
Net surplus (deficit) before tax 1 -686
Tax at 28% 3 -192
Plus (less) tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenditure - 192
Non-taxable revenue -3 -
Non-taxable revenue = =
Add: Revenue taxable to council 80 92
Less: Expenses deductible to council -81 -93
Less: Tax expense over/understated prior period - -
Less: Payments reclassified to other expenditure - =
Tax loss not recognised 1 1

Tax expense o o

Generally local authorities are exempt from income tax, except for any revenue derived from any Council Controlled Organisation
or port activity as per Section CW39 of the Revenue Tax Act 2007.

A deferred tax asset of $24,610 (2018: $20,897) has not been recognised in relation to tax losses.
Income tax expense includes components relating to both current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable surplus for the current year, plus any adjustments to
income tax payable in respect of prior years. Current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at balance date.

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary differences and
unused tax losses. Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance date. The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the council expects to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable surpluses will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Current and deferred tax is recognised against the surplus or deficit for the period, except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or to transactions recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense or directly in equity.
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17 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)

Actual Last year
$'o00 $'o00
Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of biological assets -94 168
Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of other investments -71 -71
Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of property, plant and equipment -364 -135
Unrealised loss on revaluation of forward foreign exchange contracts -7 =
Unrealised loss on revaluation of interest rate swaps -1,249 -
-1,785 -38

18 RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Surplus/(deficit) 1 -686

Add/(less) non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,199 9,195

Asset adjustments relating to disposals 928 3,499

Other gains and losses 165 -97

Bad and doubtful debts 275 252

(Gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments 1,256 -
Total non-cash items 11,823 12,849

Add/(less) items classified as investing or financing activities:

Change in market value of investments -6,596 -6,795
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 364 135
Total items classified as investing or financing activities -6,232 -6,660

Add (less) items movements in working capital items

Creditors and other payables 2,063 -1,116
Current employee entitlements 789 75
Non-current employee entitlements 272 -74
Prepayments -556 -10

Work in progress and inventory 56 131
Debtors and other receivables -1,455 -339

Other investments - -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 6,771 4,170
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'o00
Cash at bank and in hand 5,054 3,497
Term deposits maturing three months or less from date of acquisition 10,000 6,000
Investments under management 7 868
Total cash and cash equivalents 15,061 10,365

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

The reported balance includes $588,000 (2018 $524,000) which is held on behalf of other parties that Waikato Regional Council
is administering. Funds are paid out once expenditure is approved by the relevant party.

The carrying value of cash at bank and short-term deposits with maturities less than three months approximates their fair value.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument, for which it is practical to
estimate that value, are as follows.

INVESTMENT FUND AND TERM DEPOSITS

The carrying amount of these items is approximately equivalent to the fair value.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In making its investments, the council adopts a conservative risk profile, while aiming to maximise its returns. The range of
interest rates receivable on financial instruments at 30 June 2019 range from 1.80 - 3.69 per cent. (2018: 2.75 - 3.85 per cent).

COLLATERAL

The council does not require collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to credit risk.

CURRENCY RISK

The council enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency transactions. Any exposure to
gains or losses on these forward contracts is generally offset by a related loss or gain on the item being hedged. Gains and losses
on contracts which hedge specific short-term foreign currency denominated commitments are recognised as a component of
the related transaction in the period in which the transaction is completed.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the New Zealand rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. At
balance date, foreign monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate, and exchange variations arising from
these translations are included in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.

IMPAIRMENT

The value of the council's investments in the Shared Valuation Database service (SVDS) and the Waikato Transportation Model
(WRTM) have been impaired this year. Waikato Local Authority Shared Services have assessed the remaining useful life of SVDS
as five years from 1 July 2013 and WRTM as four years from 1 July 2015. On this basis, Waikato Regional Council has revised the
value of its investments.
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INVESTMENT FUND

The investment fund is invested with a number of fund managers whose performance is monitored by Mercer (N.Z.) Ltd who
provide investment strategy advice to the council. At 30 June 2019 the investment fund was invested with the following fund

managers:

Actual Last year
$'o00 $'000

Equity

Harbour Asset Management (Trans Tasman) 8,852 9,810

AMP Capital - Hedged 9,368 10,177

Colonial First State - Unhedged 9,574 10,600

At 30 June 27,794 30,587

Fixed Interest Fund

AMP Capital (Cash) 24,856 19,259
Fisher Funds (Global bonds) 23,296 17,947
Term deposits managed internally 9,409 9,867
Harbour NZ Short Duration 5,114 -
Less working capital held in fund =7/ -868
Net book amount 62,668 46,205

Property Fund

Fisher NZ Direct Property 5,400 6,207
Colonial First State ($NZ) 5,622 5,336
Net book amount 11,022 11,543
Net book amount 101,484 88,335
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At 30 June 2019, the following investments were held by the council's fund managers.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'ooo

Investment Fund and Term deposits

NZ local authority investments 1,984 862
NZ Government guaranteed investments 5,538 3,800
Corporate investments 9,278 4,884
NZ cash/short term deposits 24,093 20,837
Overseas bonds 23,296 19,953
Equity investments 31,895 31,792
Property 5,400 6,207
Net book amount 101,484 88,335

Other Investment

Term deposits with maturities greater than 3 months 4,000 4,200
NZ Local Government Insurance Corporation shares 20 20
Other investments 128 166

4,148 4,386

Investments in CCO

Integrated Regional Information System shares 1,686 1,686
NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA) - borrower notes 352 -
Shared Valuation Database Service shares - 44
Waikato Regional Transportation Model shares - 27
2,038 1,757

Total Financial Assets 107,670 94,478
Financial assets (investment fund) 101,484 88,335
Other investments 6,186 6,143
107,670 94,478

The council has a 32 per cent holding in Regional Software Holdings Limited (RSHL). This ownership percentage was derived as
an agreed cost sharing formula by the six participating councils, based on each council's relative size, to fund the Integrated
Regional Information System software development. Integrated Regional Information System has been developed in a collaborative
manner and all six shareholding councils get to appoint one director to the RSHL Board and one representative to the advisory
and user governance groups that will maintain the Integrated Regional Information System. RSHL operates on a cost recovery
basis with the participating shareholders and there will be no distributable profits retained in the business. Given the governance
structure of RSHL and the nature of its activities, council does not believe it holds “significant influence” and accordingly has
not accounted for the RSHL investment as an associate.

BORROWER NOTES

Borrower notes are required to be held by each local authority that borrows from LGFA. The borrower notes are amounts equal
to 1.6 per cent of council's borrowing from LGFA. The borrowing notes are repaid to the council as the underlying debt
matures.
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Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

The Council's investments are included in the balance sheet as follows: -

Current portion

Term Deposits 4,000 4,200
Community loans 40 38

Non-current portion

Financial assets (investment fund) 101,484 88,335
Community loans 88 128
NZ Local Government Insurance Corporation shares 20 20
Investments in CCOs 2,038 1,757

107,670 94,478

It is the council's intention to continue to hold the investment fund as a non-current asset. Individual assets held by the fund
managers have maturity periods as follows:

Actual Last year
$'ooo $'ooo
0-1year 26,286 23,804
1-3 years 7,761 3,582
Greater than three years 35,357 27,152
No specified maturity date 32,080 33,797
101,484 88,335

The Maturity profile of other investments held by council is as follows:

o-1year 4,040 4,238
1-3 years 88 82
Greater than three years 2,058 1,823
6,186 6,143

FAIR VALUE

Unlisted investments
The fair value of the investment in NZ Government Insurance Corporation Limited is $20,000 (2018: $20,000).

The fair value of council's equity investment in Waikato Local Authority Shared Services Limited has not been disclosed because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured as there is no quoted market price in an active market for these shares.

The fair value of council's equity investment in Regional Software Holdings Limited has not been disclosed because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured as there is no quoted market price in an active market for these shares.

The fair value of other loans is $128,000 (2018:5166,000)
Other financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried at fair value through surplus
or deficit in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the council commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the council has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories for the purpose of measurement:

« fair value through surplus or deficit

« loans and receivables

¢ held to maturity investments

« fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense.

The classification of a financial asset depends on the purpose for which the instrument was acquired.
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit include financial assets held for trading or is designated as such on initial
reconginition.

The council's investment fund was designated as such a financial asset on initial recognition as the primary goal of the council's
investment strategy is to maximise investment returns within an acceptable level of risk, to both protect the capital base of the
investment fund, and allow withdrawals to subsidise the required level of rates demands. The council is assisted by external
advisors in this regard.

Financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or part of a portfolio classified as held for trading
are classified as a current asset.

After initial recognition, financial assets in this category are measured at their fair values with gains or losses on re-measurement
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance date,
which are classified as non-current assets.

After initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.
Gain and losses when the asset is impaired or de-recognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Loans to community organisations made at nil or below market interest rates are initially recognised at the present value of
their expected future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial instrument. The loans
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The difference between the face value of the
expected future cash flows of the loan is recognised in the surplus or deficit as a grant.

Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities and
there is the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current assets.

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and
losses when the asset is impaired or de-recognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense are those that are designated into the category
at initial recognition or are not classified in any of the other categories above. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of, or realise, the investment within 12 months of balance date. The council includes in this
category:

 investments that it intends to hold long term but which may be realised before maturity; and

« shareholdings that it holds for strategic purposes.
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These investments are measured at their fair value, with gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive revenue and
expense, except for impairment losses, which are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense is reclassified
from equity to the surplus or deficit.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are assessed for evidence of impairment at each balance date. Impairment losses are recognised in the surplus
or deficit.

Loans and receivables, and held to maturity investments

Impairment is established when there is evidence that the council will not be able to collect amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy,
receivership, or liquidation and default in payments are considered indicators that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
using the original effective interest rate. For debtors and other receivables, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. When the receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Overdue receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified
as current (that is, not past due). Impairment in term deposits, local authority stock, government stock and community loans,
and impairment losses are recognised directly against the instrument's carrying amount.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is considered objective
evidence of impairment.

For debt investments, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy, and
default in payments are considered objective indicators that the asset is impaired.

If impairment evidence exists for investments at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense, the cumulative
loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the surplus or deficit) recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense is
reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.

Equity instrument impairment losses recognised in the surplus or deficit are not reversed through the surplus or deficit.

If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed in the surplus or deficit.

21 INVESTMENT POLICY

The council delegates responsibility for the management, monitoring and reporting of its investment activities to its Finance
Committee and Finance directorate. A treasury policy document sets out the parameters for the operation of the Finance
directorate and the volume of investments that the council will be involved with. The mix of investments between current and
non-current is determined according to the council’s working capital needs.

The council’s investments made a gain of $7.301 million against an Annual Plan budget of $6.643 million. The council continues
to take external advice as to changes to be made to any asset class mix.

22 TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The council’s Treasury Risk Management Policy was adopted in January 2018. This policy ensures that the council’s debt and
associated risks are maintained at prudent levels.

There are no significant variations or material departures from the council’s Liability Management Policy.

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Waikato Regional Council has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments. The council is risk
averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. The council has established approved liability management
and investment policies. These policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
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(a)Financial instrument categories

Fair value
through Fair value
Loans other through
and ampenase | surplus or
Assets receivables | revenue deficit

$'o00 $'000 $'000

30 June 2019
Cash and cash equivalent 15,061 = = 15,061
Receivables 1,773 S - 1,773

Other financial assets:

Term Deposits 4,000 = = 4,000
Community loans 128 - - 128
Investment fund - - 101,484 101,484
Investment in CCos = 2,038 = 2,038
Unlisted shares - 20 = 20
Total 30,962 2,058 101,484 134,504

30 June 2018
Cash and cash equivalent 10,365 - - 10,365
Receivables 10,318 - - 10,318

Other financial assets:

Term Deposits 4,200 = = 4,200
Community loans 166 = = 166
Investment fund = S 88,335 88,335
Investment in CCOs = 1,756 - 1,756
Unlisted shares - 20 - 20
Total 25,049 1,776 88,335 115,160
Liabilities
at fair
value Measured
through at
surplus or | amortised
Liabilities deficit cost

$'000 $'000

30 June 2019

Payables and accruals - 17,650 17,650
Derivative financial instruments - not hedge accounted 1,257 - 1,257
Borrowing - secured loans - 22,133 22,133
Total liabilities 1,257 39,783 41,040

30 June 2018

Payables and accruals - 15,587 15,587
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Derivative financial instruments - not hedge accounted = = =
Borrowing - secured loans - = =

Total liabilities = 15,587 15,587
(b) Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
investment fund is a fully hedged asset apart from the Colonial First State Fund (30 June 2019 AUD $9,163,379 converted to NZD
$9,574,037: exchange rate NZD/AUD: 0.9571). (30 June 2018 AUD $9,713,077 converted to NZD $10,599,671: exchange rate
NZD/AUD: 0.9164)

The council purchases plant and equipment associated with the construction of certain infrastructure assets from overseas,
which require it to enter into transactions denominated in foreign currencies. As a result of these activities, exposure to currency
risk arises.

It is the council's policy to manage foreign currency risks arising from contractual commitments and liabilities that are above
$100,000 by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risk exposure. This means that
the council is able to fix the New Zealand dollar amount payable prior to the delivery of the plant and equipment from overseas.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. The council
is exposed to equity securities price risk on its investments, which are classified as financial assets held at fair value through
surplus and deficit. This price risk arises due to market movements in listed securities. This price risk is managed by diversification
of the council’s investment portfolio in accordance with the limits set out in the council’s investment policy.

Fair value interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates.

If interest rates on the council’s fixed interest financial instruments at 30 June 2019 had fluctuated by plus or minus o.5 per
cent, the effect would have been to decrease/increase the fair value through comprehensive revenue reserve by $383,340 (2018:
$441,675).

Borrowings issued at fixed rates of interest expose council to interest rate risk. The council's Treasury Risk Management Policy
sets a range of control limits for the fixed rate proportion of borrowings with different maturities. The range is from a maximum
of 60 per cent for debt maturing in any one period with a 15 per cent minimum placed on o-3 years and 3-5 years periods.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

Generally, the council raises long term borrowing at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates using interest rate swaps to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk. The council enters into interest rate swaps in order to manage the cash flow interest
rate risk. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings at floating rates into fixed rates that are
generally lower than those available if the council borrowed at fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, the council
agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.
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Sensitivity analysis

The tables below illustrate the potential surplus and deficit and equity (excluding accumulated funds) impact from possible
market movements, with all other variables held constant, based on the council's financial instrument exposures at balance
date.

30 June 2019 Interest rate risk
-100bps +100bps

Interest rate risk Surplus Surplus e [1114Y

$'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents -51 - 51 -
Derivatives - non hedge accounting -1220 = 1123 =
Total sensitivity -1271 - 174 -
30 June 2019 Equity price risk

-100bps +100 bps
Equity price risk Surplus Equity Surplus Equity
Financial assets $'ooo $'ooo0 $'ooo0 $'000
Other financial assets -277 - 277 -
Total sensitivity to equity price risk -277 - 277 -
30 June 2018 Interest rate risk

-100bps +100bps
Interest rate risk Surplus Equity Surplus Equity

-35 - 35 -

Cash and cash equivalents
Derivatives - non hedge accounting - - - -

Total sensitivity -1271 - 174 -

30 June 2018 Equity price risk

-100bps +100bps
Financial assets
Other financial assets -88 = 88 =

Total sensitivity to equity price risk -88 = 88 =

EXPLANATION OF SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The interest rate sensitivity is based on a reasonable possible movement in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
measured as a basis points (bps) movement. For example, a decrease in 100 bps is equivalent to a decrease in interest rates of
1 per cent.
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Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call totalling $5.05 million (2018: $3.50 million) which are at floating rates. A
movement in interest rates of plus or minus 100bps (1.0 per cent) has an effect on interest revenue of $50,500 (2018: $35,500)

The sensitivity for derivatives (interest rate swaps) has been calculated using a derivative valuation model based on a parallel
shift in interest rates of -toobps/+100bps (2018 -100bps/+100bps).

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to Waikato Regional Council, causing the council to incur a
loss.

Council is exposed to credit risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA's borrowings. Information about this exposure is explained in
note 37.

The council has no significant concentrations of credit risk, as it has a large number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and
the council has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts from ratepayers.

Waikato Regional Council invests funds only in deposits with registered banks and local authority stock. Its investment policy
limits the amount of credit exposure to any one institution or organisation.

Other than other local authorities, the council only invests funds with those entities which have a Standard and Poor’s credit
rating of at least A2 for short-term and A- for long-term investments. Accordingly, the council does not require any collateral
or security to support these financial instruments.

MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

The council's maximum credit exposures for each class of financial instruments are as follows:

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Cash at bank and term deposits 19,061 10,365
Debtors and other receivables 1,773 10,318
Community loans 128 166
LGFA borrower notes 352 =
Total credit risk 31,314 20,849

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to Standard and Poor's
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Counterparties with credit ratings

Cash at bank and term bank deposits

A+ = 19,061
AA- 19,061 23,564
Total 19,061 42,625

LGFA borrower notes
AA+ 352 =

Total 352 -
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Counterparties without credit ratings
Community and related party loans:
Existing counterparty with no defaults in the past 128 166

Total cash at bank, term deposits and loans 128 166

Debtors and other receivables mainly arise from Waikato Regional Council's statutory functions, therefore there are no procedures
in place to monitor or report the credit quality of debtors and other receivables with reference to internal or external credit
ratings. The council has no significant concentrations of credit risk in relation to debtors and other receivables, as it has a large
number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and the council has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to
recover outstanding debts from ratepayers.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Waikato Regional Council will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as
they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The council aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

In meeting its liquidity requirements, the council maintains a target level of investments that must mature within the next 12
months.

The council has a sweep facility in place. A sweep facility is an automatic system that transfers funds between the current
account and call account to improve cash management and maximise interest on funds. The council nominated a target balance
for its current account of $10,000. Once all debits and credits have been processed every night (with the exception of bank
fees) the system automatically calculates the amount required to maintain the target balance. Funds are then moved out of the
current account into the nominated call account or if the current account has an overdrawn balance the system will transfer
funds back from the call account to retain the set balance of the current account.

The council utilises funding through the Local Governement Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA). As at 30 June 2019 the council had
borrowed $22 million (2018 $nil) and held borrower notes of with a face value of $352,000 (2018 $nil).

The council is also exposed to liquidity risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA's borrowings. This guarantee becomes callable in the
event of the LGFA failing to pay its borrowings when they fall due. Information about this exposure is contained in note 37.

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING DERIVATIVES

The table below analyses the council's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the period remaining at
balance date until the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate debt are based on the floating rate
on the instrument at the balance date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between | Between
1and2 | 2and s
30 June 2019 years years Carrying

Amount

(assets)/

liabilities

$'000

Trade and other payables 17,650 - - - 17,650 17,650
Secured borrowing 2,558 2512 9188 10693 24,951 22,133

Total financial liabilities 20,208 2512 9188 10693 42,601 39,783
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Between | Between
1and2 | 2ands )
30 June 2018 VEES VEES Carrying

Amount
(assets)/
liabilities

$'ooo
Trade and other payables 15,587 = = = 15,587 15,587
Secured borrowing = S = - - -
Total financial liabilities 15,587 S - - 15,587 15,587

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT LIABILITIES

The table below analyses the council's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the period remaining at
balance date until the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate debt are based on the floating rate
on the instrument at the balance date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liability Between | Between

carrying 1and2 | 2ands

amount years years
30 June 2019 $'oo0 $'000 $'000
Net settled derivative liabilities 1,257 1,314 154 246 508 316
Total 1,257 1,314 154 246 598 316

30 June 2018
Net settled derivative liabilities - - S - - -

Total - - - - - -

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The table below analyses the council's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the period remaining at
balance date until the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate debt are based on the floating rate
on the instrument at the balance date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

30 June 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Debtors and other receivables
Other financial assets:

- term deposits

- community and related party loans

Investment fund

15,061

1,773

4,000
40

26,286

Between
1and 2
years

43

7,761

Between
2ands
years

45

35,357

32,080

15,061

1,773

4,000
128

101,484

carrying

15,061

1,773

4,000
128

101,484

Waikato Regional Council 2018/19 Annual Report Pirongo a-tau

-
N
[e)]




Investment in CCO 32 32 96 1,878 2,038 2,038
Unlisted shares = = = 20 20 20

Total financial assets 57,192 7,836 35,498 33,978 134,504 134,504

Between | Between
1and2 | 2and s
30 June 2018 years VEES Carrying

Cash and cash equivalents 10,365 - - - 10,365 10,365
Debtors and other receivables 10,318 - - - 10,318 10,318

Other financial assets: - = = - - -

- term deposits 4,200 - - - 4,200 4,200
- community and related party loans 38 40 88 - 166 166
Investment fund 23,804 3,582 27,152 33,797 88,335 88,335
Investment in CCO - - - 1,757 1,757 1,757
Unlisted shares = = = 20 20 20
Total financial assets 48,725 3,622 27,240 35,574 115,161 115,161
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(e) Fair value hierarchy disclosures

For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position, fair values are determined according to
the following hierarchy:

»Quoted market price (level 1) - financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

«Valuation technique using observable inputs (level 2) - financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in
active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

«Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3) - financial instruments valued using models where one
or more significant inputs are not observable.

The following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position:

Significant
Observable | nonobsavable

Total inputs inputs

30 June 2019 $'000 $'o00 $'ooo
Derivatives 1,907 - 1,907 -
NZ local authority investments 1,984 1,984 - -
Corporate investments 9,167 9,167 - -
NZ cash/short term deposits 23,355 23,355 - -
Overseas bonds 23,296 23,296 - -
NZ Government guaranteed investments 5,649 5,649 = =
Equity investments 32,633 32,633 - -
Property 5,400 5,400 = -
Total financial assets 103,391 101,484 1,907 =

Financial liabilities

Derivatives -3,164 - -3,164 =
3 Total financial liabilities -3,164 - -3,164
L
s
o
o0
5 Quoted Significant
S market Observable | nonobsanvable
o price inputs inputs
£
:’% 30 June 2018 $'000 $'000 $'oo0
4
= Derivatives = = = -
2
5: NZ local authority investments 862 862 = =
o)
g Corporate investments 4,884 4,884 S <
8 NZ cash/short term deposits 20,837 20,837 - -
e Overseas bonds 19,953 19,953 = =
3
o
v NZ Government guaranteed investments 3,800 3,800 - -
©
c
'o% Equity investments 31,792 31,792 - -
()
P Property 6,207 6,207 - -
2
[y}
'f‘_u Total financial assets 88,335 88,335 - -
=

Y
N
oo




Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments S S - -

Total financial liabilities - - i

There were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the period.

24 RECEIVABLES

Actual Last year

$'000 $'oo0

Exchange

Net trade receivables

Other receivables 5,074 3,897
Provision for doubtful receivables -613 -538
Net debtors 4,461 3,359
Receivables from exchange transactions 4,461 3,359

Non-exchange

Rates receivables 5,423 5,007

Other receivables 2,635 2,623

Provision for doubtful receivables -746 -671

Net debtors 7,312 6,959

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 7,312 6,959

Total receivables 1,773 10,318
Fair value

Receivables are measured at their face value, less any provision for impairment.

Debtors and other receivables are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value
of debtors and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Impairment

Waikato Regional Council does not provide for any impairment on rates receivable as it has various powers under the Local
Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. These powers allow the council to commence legal proceedings
to recover any rates that remain unpaid four months after the due date for payment. If payment has not been made within
three months of the court's judgement, then the council can apply to the Registrar of the High Court to have judgement enforced
by sale or lease of the rating unit. Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options. Where such repayment plans are in place,
debts are discounted to their present value of future repayments if the effect of the discounting is material. The carrying amount
of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, whose terms have been renegotiated, are $281,000 (2018: $248,000).

The fair value of receivables past due and impaired is as follows:

(5]

(]

]

The fair value of receivables past due and impaired is as follows: 2
wv

Actual Last year g

3

$'o000 $'000 £

[F 8

Past due > 120 days 4,002 4,115 ;
. . O

Less impairment -1,359 -1,209 =
e

(%]

1

N
\o]




Balance as at 30 June 2,643 2,906

The ageing profile of gross receivables not impaired is as follows:

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Not past due 8,743 5,212
Past due 1-60 days 295 1,984
Past due 61-120 days 92 216
Balance as at 30 June 9,130 7,412
Grand total 1,773 10,318

All receivables greater than 30 days in age are considered to be past due.

Waikato Regional Council holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due
or impaired.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables as the council has a large number of customers.

The impairment provision has been calculated based on expected losses for Waikato Regional Council’s pool of debtors. Expected
losses have been determined based on an analysis of Waikato Regional Council’s losses in previous periods, and a review of
specific debtors.

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Individual impairment 78 78
Collective impairment 1,281 1,131
Total provision for impairment 1,359 1,209

Individually impaired receivables have been determined to be impaired because of the significant financial difficulties being
experienced by the debtor. An analysis of these individually impaired debtors is as follows:

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Past due 1-60 days - =
Past due 61 - 120 days - =
Past due »120 days 78 78

Total individual impairment 78 78

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Actual Last year
$'ooo $'ooo
At 1 July 1,209 1,272
Additional provisions made during the year 379 243
Receivables written off during the period -229 -306
Total gross trade receivables 1,359 1,209
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The council holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired.
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Infrastructural assets - further disclosures

This year

Infrastructural assets
Flood protection and control works

Total infrastructural assets

Last year

Infrastructural assets
Flood protection and control works

Total infrastructural assets

Property, plant and equipment consists of:

Closing
book value

$'000

483,783

483,783

Closing
book value

$'o000

485,135

485,135

Operational assets - these include land, buildings, plant and equipment, and motor vehicles.

Additions

Additions:
constructed
by council

$'000

5,159

5,159

Additions

Additions:
constructed
by council

$'000

5,203

5,203

Most recent
replacement
cost

estimate for

revalued
assets

$'000

602,725

602,725

Most recent
replacement
cost
estimate for
revalued
assets

$'000

598,070

598,070

Infrastructure assets - infrastructure assets are the flood protection and erosion control assets owned by Waikato Regional
Council.

Operational land is measured at fair value, and buildings and infrastructural assets are measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation. All other asset classes are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Work in progress

Included in the operational fixed asset balances as at 30 June 2019 is work in progress in the following asset classes: buildings
$510,000 (2018 $369,000), vehicles $39,000 (2018 $115,000), plant and equipment $314,000 (2018 $565,000) and EDP $363,000
(2018 $181,000).

Valuation

Land and buildings and infrastructural assets (except land under roads) are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that
their carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value and at least every three years.

The carrying values of revalued assets are assessed annually to ensure that they do not differ materially from the assets’ fair
values. If there is a material difference, then the off-cycle asset classes are revalued.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are accounted for on a class-of-asset basis.

The net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive revenue and expense and are accumulated to an
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset. Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset revaluation
reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense but is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
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Any subsequent increase on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be
recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in other comprehensive
revenue and expense.

Operational land

Land is valued at fair value using market-based evidence based on its highest and best use with reference to comparable land
values.

The most recent valuation was performed by P Smith, independent registered valuer of SGHU Valuations, and the valuation is
effective as at 30 June 2018.

Operational buildings

Specialised buildings are valued at fair value using depreciated replacement cost because no reliable market data is available
for such buildings.

Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a number of significant assumptions. Significant assumptions include:

«the replacement asset is based on the replacement with modern equivalent assets with adjustments where appropriate for
obsolescence due to over-design or surplus capacity

«the replacement cost is derived from recent construction contracts of similar assets and Property Institute of New Zealand
cost information

«the remaining useful life of assets is estimated
estraight-line deprecation has been applied in determining the depreciated replacement cost value of the asset.

Non-specialised buildings (for example, residential buildings) are valued at fair value using market-based evidence. Market
rents and capitalisation rates are applied to reflect market value.

The most recent valuation was performed by P Smith, independent registered valuer of SGHU Valuations, and the valuation is
effective as at 30 June 2018.

Infrastructural assets

Infrastructural asset classes include the flood protection and drainage assets. These were valued at fair value using depreciated
replacement cost because no reliable market data is available.

The most recent valuation was performed by independent valuer Colin Gerrard of AECOM New Zealand Limited, and the valuation
is effective as at 31 December 2016.

In valuing these assets, a number of assumptions were made especially relating to the attributes of the assets where this
information was not held in the database. Some of this information was obtained by visual inspections by the valuers, checking
design drawings were available or taking an average from other similar assets where the data was available. Given the long
term nature of these assets, estimated useful lives need to be reviewed periodically as the assets age and more reliable data is
gathered on actual expiry lengths of asset types. This is also reviewed by the evidenced deterioration of the asset through asset
inspections and condition assessments. Values have been derived from the council’s record of recent renewal or replacement
project costs, the actual cost of recent new works and information held by the valuers for similar types of work. All of these
works have been undertaken in a competitive market place. The depreciated replacement cost is estimated based on the age
of the asset (in some cases this is an estimate) and the expected life of the asset.

Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a number of significant assumptions and estimates. Significant assumptions
and estimates include:

«the replacement asset is based on the reproduction cost of the specific assets with adjustments where appropriate for
obsolescence due to over-design or surplus capacity.

«the replacement cost is derived from recent construction contracts of similar assets and Property Institute of New Zealand
cost information

«the remaining useful life of assets is estimated

estraight-line depreciation has been applied in determining the depreciated replacement cost value of the asset.
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Infrastructural land

Land is valued at fair value using market-based evidence based on its highest and best use with reference to comparable land
values.

The most recent valuation was performed by Paul Scown, independent registered valuer of QV Valuations, and the valuation is
effective as at 31 December 2016.

Additions

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired through
a non-exchange transaction, it is recognised at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent costs

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant, and equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.

Disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains
and losses on disposals are reported net in the surplus or deficit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset
revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred to accumulated funds.

No significant disposals have been made during 2019.

Impairment

Impairment losses of $Nil have been recognised by council during 2019 (2018: $Nil).

Collateral

No property, plant and equipment are pledged as security for liabilities, there are no restrictions on title.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than land and drainage networks,
at rates that will write-off the cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. The
useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:

Estimated useful
Class of asset depreciated life (Years)

Operational assets

Buildings 25-75
Motor vehicles 7.5
Computer equipment 4~5
Office furniture 7.5
Plant items 7.5-10
Air conditioning 20

Infrastructural assets

Bridges 50-100
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Channels 100

Control gates 50
Culverts 50-80
Debris traps 100
Detentions 80
Drop structures 50-80
Fencing 30
Floodgates 20-80
General structures 20-80
Plantings not depreciated
Pump stations 20-80
Retaining structures 30-100
River training works 50-100
Stopbanks 20-100
Weirs 100

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each financial year end.
Critical judgement in applying Waikato Regional Council's accounting policies
Classification of property

As at 30 June 2019, the council's properties at 319 and 401 Grey Street, Hamilton East have been classified as non-current assets
held for sale, and have been derecognised as property, plant and equipment.
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26 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software

$'000

Year ended 30 June 2019

Opening net book amount 3,044
Additions 175
Disposals -1,704
Work in progress 1,552
Amortisation charge -649
Write back amortisation on disposal 1,704
Closing net book amount 4,122
Cost 12,613
Accumulated amortisation and impairment -8,491
Net book amount 4,122

Year ended 30 June 2018 Computer
software
$'000
Opening net book amount 2,099
Additions 228
Disposals -56
Work in progress 1,510
Amortisation charge 737
Closing net book amount 3,044
At 30 June 2018
Cost 12,590
Accumulated amortisation and impairment -9,546
Net book amount 3,044

Intangible asset additions

Actual
$'ooo
Asset additions developed in-house
Assets additions purchased
Net book amount

Realised gains and losses arising from the disposal of intangible assets are recognised in statement of comprehensive revenue

and expenditure in the year in which the disposal occurs.

175

175

3,044
175
-1,704
1,552
-649
1,704
4,122
12,613
-8,491

4,122

Total
$'000
2,099
228
-56
1,510
-737

3,044

12,590
-9,546

3,044

Last year

$'000

228

228
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Software acquisition and development

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.

Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct
costs include the software development employee related costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Costs associated with development and maintenance of the council’s website are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Amortisation and impairment

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. The amortisation charge for
each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows:
Computer software 4 years

Intangible assets subsequently measured at cost that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use, and goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Intangible assets subsequently measured at cost that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carrying amount is
written-down to the recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. The reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities (2018:
nil)

27 Forestry assets

Waikato Regional Council’s forestry asset comprises approximately 91 hectares of Pinus radiata forest split between Ryan’s block
and Kuaoiti Forest. The plantations range in age between 3 and 32 years.

Standing forestry assets are independently revalued annually to fair value less estimated costs to sell for one growth cycle. Fair
value is determined based on the present value of expected net cash flows discounted at a current market determined pre-tax
rate. This calculation is based on existing sustainable felling plans and assessments regarding growth, timber prices, felling
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5 Actual Last year
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+ $'000 $'000
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& Balance as at 1 July 1,516 1,348
©

E Gains/(losses) arising from changes attributable to physical changes - 18
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5 Sales - -
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§ Gains/(losses) arising from changes attributable to price changes -94 150
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costs and silverculture costs and takes into consideration environmental, operational and market restrictions. Gains or losses
arising on initial recognition of forestry assets at fair value less estimated costs to sell and from a change in fair value less
estimated costs to sell are recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expenditure.

Forestry maintenance costs are included in the surplus or deficit when incurred.

Carl Hanna, a member of New Zealand Institute of Forestry from Wood Marketing Services Ltd, has independently valued the
forestry assets as at 30 June 2019. The following significant assumptions have been adopted in determining the fair value of
forestry assets:

e adiscount rate of 8.0 per cent has been used in discounting the present value of expected cash flows

e the forest has been valued on a going concern basis and only includes the value of the existing crops on a single rotation
basis

e the value of the land has been treated as zero because forestry is currently the best use of the land from an environmental
and management perspective. The planted forest is part of an integrated land use pattern that mitigates soil erosion.

e both buyer and seller are registered for GST and the impact on the transaction would be neutral.

The following taxation assumptions are made in respect of the forest purchaser:

rate of taxation is 28 per cent
e tax losses and tax liability are assumed to be claimable/payable in the year costs are incurred or revenue received,

e avalue of Cost of Bush Account equal to the estimated tree crop value is included in the cashflow to be deducted against
future revenue,

e the forest is retained by the prospective purchaser through to maturity,
e the new ownership of the forest is effected by equity funding only,

e no change in the New Zealand tax law for the cashflow period considered.

Financial risk management strategies

Waikato Regional Council is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in timber prices. The council is a long-term forestry
investor and does not expect timber prices to decline significantly in the foreseeable future and therefore has not taken any
measures to manage the risks of a decline in timber prices. The council reviews its outlook for timber prices regularly in
considering the need for active financial risk management.

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE BY GROUP OF ACTIVITY

Directly attributable depreciation and amortisation expense by group of activity were:

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Community and services - -
Civil defence and emergency management 20 2

Regional hazards and emergency response - =

Flood protection and control works 6,104 5,959
Integrated catchment management 50 22
Public transport 58 -

Resource use ° -
Science and strategy - -
Council controlled organisations - >
Corporate and self funding 2,967 3,212

Depreciation and amortisation not directly related to group of activities = -
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Total depreciation and amortisation expense 9,199 9,195

29 ASSET INSURANCE

As at 30 June 2019, the council held insurance contracts in relation to its property, plant and equipment, and Intangible Assets
on the following basis:

e Total insurance contracts to the value of $150 million in relation to operational assets and intangible assets having a book
value of $16.630 million (2018 $26.131 million).

e Total insurance contracts to the value of $300 million in relation to infrastructure assets having a book value of $502.914
million (2018: $499.071 million). These insurance contracts provide for the recovery of 40 per cent of the costs of loss or
damage to declared assets. The council assumes that, in the event of a major disaster, central government will meet the other
60 percent of costs.

e An insurance contract to the value of $12 million in relation to infrastructure assets having a book value of $502.914 million
(2018: $499.071 million). This insurance provides for the recovery of 100 per cent of the costs of loss or damage to declared
assets in excess of the insurance policy deductible of $500,000.

The council’s infrastructure and material damage insurance policies are held collectively with other councils in the region. In
the case of a major event affecting the assets of more than one council, the insurance cover would respond to costs incurred
by all councils impacted up to the maximum level of cover.

In addition to the insurance contracts noted above, the council maintains disaster recovery reserves to meet the costs of damage
to flood protection schemes that may not be recoverable through insurance (for example, costs associated with channel
clearance). At 30 June 2019 the balance of these reserves was $7.969 million (2018: $7.337 million).

30 INVENTORIES AND WORK IN PROGRESS

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Inventory held for distribution

Raw materials at cost 466 413
Inventory held for use in the provision of services

Work in progress 985 1,094

Total inventory and work in progress 1,451 1,507

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied on a commercial basis are
measured at cost (using the FIFO method) adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service potential. Inventory acquired
through non-exchange transactions are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Inventories held for use in the production of goods and services on a commercial basis are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of purchased inventory is determined using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method.

The amount of any write down for the loss of service potential or from the cost to net realisable value is recognised in the surplus
or deficit in the period of the write down.

Work in progress represents unbilled costs associated with consent processing and compliance monitoring. This balance is
reduced as costs are invoiced and become a debtor.

31 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from the
council's financing activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the council does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The council has elected not to apply hedge accounting.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value at each balance date with the resulting gain or loss recognised in the surplus or deficit.



A forward foreign exchange derivative is classified as current if the contract is due for settlement within 12 months of balance
date. Otherwise, the full fair value of forward foreign exchange derivatives is classified as non-current. The portion of the fair
value of an interest rate derivative that is expected to be realised or settled within 12 months of the balance date is classified
as current, with the remaining portion of the derivative classified as non-current.

The associated gains or losses of derivatives that are not hedge accounted are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Current liability portion
Forward foreign exchange contracts 7 -
Total current liability portion 7 -

Non-current liability portion

Interest rate swaps 1,250 -
Total non-current liability portion 1,250 -
Total derivative financial instrument liabilities 1,257 -

Information about interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts totalled $18 million (2018 $nil). The fixed interest
rates of interest rate swaps varied from 2.28 per cent to 2.98 per cent.

The council currently has no fair value hedges.
Information about forward foreign exchange contracts

The notional principal amounts of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts in NZ$ were $403,000 (2018 $nil). The foreign
currency principal amounts were GBP 209,000.

32 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Accounting policy

An asset is held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing
use. On classification as 'Held for Sale', non current assets and disposal groups are recognised at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as 'Held for Sale' are included in the statement of
comprehensive revenue and expenditure.

Waikato Regional Council owned properties on 401 and 319 Grey Street have been presented as held for sale following the
approval by the council to sell the premises. The council has approved the sale of the properties, as it will relocate to new
premises. The completion date of the sale is expected to be in 2020.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Non-current assets held for sale are:
Land and buildings 12,250 -

Total non-current assets held for sale 12,250 -

The value of the non-current assets held for sale is measured at fair value.
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33 CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Actual Last year

$'000 $'ooo

Non-exchange

Funds held on behalf of third parties 588 524
Total creditors and other payables from non-exchange transactions 588 524
Exchange

Trade payables 10,296 8,964
Deposits and bonds 695 -
Accrued expenses 2,402 2,783
Other payables 3,669 3,316
Total creditors and other payables from exchange transactions 17,062 15,063
Total current creditors and other payables 17,650 15,587

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value
of trade and other payable approximates their fair value.

Short-term creditors and other payables are recorded at their face value.

34 BORROWING
Accounting policy

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs. Interest due on the borrowings is subsequently
accrued and added to the borrowings balance.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after balance date.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Secured borrowing 2,012 -
Total secured current interest bearing borrowings 2,012 -
Total current portion 2,012 =
Secured borrowing 20,121 -
Total secured non-current interest bearing borrowings 20,121 -
Total non-current portion 20,121 @

Interest terms for secured loans

The council's secured debt of $22.133 million (2018 $nil) is issued at a floating rate of interest, with interest rates reset quarterly
based on the go-day bank bill rate plus a margin for credit risk. The council has eight swap contracts in place (2018 nil). These
swap contracts have a notional value of $18 million dollars (2018 $nil). The swaps convert part of the council's borrowing from
floating to fixed rates. All the swaps were put in place in the 2018/19 financial year and there were no maturities during the
year.

At 30 June 2019, total borrowings from the Local Government Funding Agency Ltd were $22 million (2018 $nil). The average
cost of interest was 2.55 per cent (2018 nil).
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Security
The council's secured loans are secured over either targeted or general rates of the council.
Fair values

Due to interest rates on debt resetting to the market rate every three months, the carrying amounts of secured loans approximates
their fair value.

35 INTERNAL BORROWING

2019 Opening Loans Closing [ Interest
principal raised Repayment | principal | charged

Description $'o000 $'000 $'o000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets

Lower Waikato zone 297 - -297 - -
Lake Taupd zone 464 = -464 = =
Coromandel zone 2,408 - -2,408 - -
Total 3,169 - -3,169 - -
Corporate 3,648 - -3,648 - -
Total 3,648 - -3,648 - -
Strategic and integrated planning (Home of Cycling) 4,640 - -4,640 - -
Total 4,640 - -4,640 - -
Total internal borrowing 11,457 - -11,457 - -

2018 Opening Loans Closing [ Interest
principal raised principal | charged

Description $'o00 $'000 $'000 $'000

Flood protection and control works

Lower Waikato zone 353 - -56 297 19

Lake Taupo zone 564 = -100 464 32

Coromandel zone 1,912 600 -104 2,408 176

Total 2,829 600 -260 3,169 227

Corporate 3,887 - -239 3,648 220

Total 3,887 - -239 3,648 220 -
()]

Strategic and integrated planning (Home of Cycling) 4,863 - -223 4,640 285 E

Total 4,863 - -223 4,640 285 §
G
=
=

Total internal borrowing 11,579 600 -722 11,457 732 ;
)
|_
@]
w
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As part of the 2018-2028 Long Term Plan, the council established an external borrowing program. In accordance with this
decision, and in line with the revised Treasury Risk Management Policy, existing internal loans were transferred to the new
external borrowing programme in July 2018.

In accordance with the Treasury Risk Management Policy, the council is permitted to borrow internally from the investment
fund to meet the costs of the expansion or renewal of assets and community infrastructure, and to address short term cashflow
timing issues.

36 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities as follows:

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Capital commitments

Vehicles 264 120
Other plant and equipment 301 338
Intangible assets 110 236
Flood protection and control 1,355 1,500
Total capital commitments 2,030 2,194

Capital commitments relate to property, plant, equipment and intangibles. There are no commitments at balance date for forestry
assets.

OPERATING LEASES AS LESSEE

Waikato Regional Council leases property, plant and equipment in the normal course of its business. The majority of these
leases have a non-cancellable term of 12 months. The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be collected under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows.

Actual Last year

$'000 $'000

Not later than one year 1,190 1,096
Later than one year and not later than five years 11,603 2,560
Later than five years 30,886 165
Total non-cancellable operating leases 43,679 3,821

The total minimum future sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at balance date is $nil
(2018 $nil).

Leases can be renewed at Waikato Regional Council’s option, with rents set by reference to current market rates for items of
equivalent age and condition.

There are no restrictions placed on Waikato Regional Council by any of the leasing arrangements.
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Operating leases as lessor

Waikato Regional Council leases property it owns under operating leases. Both leases have a non-cancellable term of 36 months.
Waikato Regional Council further subleases part of a property it leases. This sublease has a non-cancellable term of six years.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be collected under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows.

Actual Last year

$'o00 $'000
Not later than one year 331 180
Later than one year and not later than five years 455 560
Later than five years - 35
Total non-cancellable operating leases 786 775

No contingent rents have been recognised during the period.

Operating leases
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset.
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term.

37 Contingent liabilities

NZ Mutual Liability Riskpool (Riskpool) provided public liability and professional indemnity insurance for its members. The
council was a member of Riskpool until 30 June 2017. The Trust Deed of Risk Pool provides that, if there is shortfall (whereby
claims exceed contributions of members and reinsurance recoveries) in any Fund year, then the board may make a call on
members for that fund year.

No material exposures related to any legal matters has been estimated (2018: $Nil)

Local Government Funding Agency

Waikato Regional Council is a guarantor of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA). The LGFA was
incorporated in December 2011 with the purpose of providing debt funding to local authorities in New Zealand and it has a
current credit rating from Standard and Poor’s of AA+.

The council is one of 45 local authority guarantors of the LGFA. The aggregate amount of uncalled shareholder capital (520
million) is available in the event that an imminent default is identified. Also, together with the other shareholders and guarantors,
the council is a guarantor of all of LGFA’s borrowings. At 30 June 2019, LGFA had borrowings totaling $9.531 billion (2018 $8.271
billion).

Financial reporting standards require the council to recognise the guarantee liability at fair value. However, the council has
been unable to determine a sufficiently reliable fair value for the guarantee, and has therefore not recognised a liability. The
council considers the risk of the LGFA defaulting on repayment of interest or capital to be very low on the basis that:

e it is not aware of any local authority debt default events in New Zealand

e |ocal government legislation would enable local authorities to levy a rate to recover sufficient funds to meet any debt
obligations if further funds were required.
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38 EQUITY

Actual Last year

$'oo00 $'o00
Accumulated funds 226,964 233,862
Other reserves 392,923 386,419
Balance at 30 June 2019 619,887 620,281
Accumulated funds
Balance at 1 July 233,862 230,779
Transfer to reserves -6,909 3,769
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1 -686
Balance 30 June 226,964 233,862

Reserve

2019

Activities to which the reserve
relates

Integrated catchment management;

Balance 1
July

$'o00

Transfers
out of
fund

Transfers
into fund

$'000 $'o00

Balance
30 June

$'o000

Regional disaster recovery Flood protection and control works 4,209 725 -531 4,403
Integrated catchment management;
Waihou/Piako zone Flood protection and control works 1,162 11,222 -12,218 166
Lower Waikato main channel Flood protection and control works 2,402 - - 2,402
Integrated catchment management;
Project Watershed Flood protection and control works 4,043 19,691 -16,993 6,741
Integrated catchment management;
Coromandel Peninsula Flood protection and control works 3,627 577 -870 3,334
Integrated catchment management;
West coast Flood protection and control works 20 1,983 -1,932 71
3
-a,-'m Integrated catchment management;
'g Zone disaster recovery Flood protection and control works 3,133 566 -400 3,299
o0
§ Drainage boards Flood protection and control works -1,258 11,487 -12,112 -1,883
13
?‘_‘ Civil defence Emergency management 506 7,884 -7,974 416
S
5y Whitianga coastal modelling Science and strategy 120 120 -240 -
4
f_g Heritage Integrated catchment management 1,387 195 =231 1,351
c
5: Biosecurity Integrated catchment management 3,096 1,423 -1,126 3,393
o)
Py Environmental initiatives Integrated catchment management 164 184 -182 166
o
‘_" Koi carp digester Integrated catchment management 37 - -16 21
‘0
§ General reserves Community and services 163 3,433 -3,034 562
o
'_é’ Permitted activity monitoring Resource use -409 359 -206 -256
o
'go Building Act contingency Resource use 94 3 - 97
4
] Complaints and enforcement Resource use 72 - - 72
g
‘T
=

G
o




Stock truck effluent
Home of Cycling
Public transport

Integrated Regional Information
System (IRIS)

Motor vehicle and plant
Computer

Operational fixed asset
depreciation

Communications network
Investment fund equalisation

Investment fund capital
protection

Healthy Rivers internal loan
River Restoration Strategy
Hauraki plan change

Regional Development Fund
Contaminated land investigation

Derivative financial instruments

Reserve

2018

Regional disaster recovery

Waihou/Piako zone

Lower Waikato main channel

Project Watershed

Coromandel Peninsula

West coast

Zone disaster recovery
Drainage boards

Civil defence

Whitianga coastal modelling

Heritage

Science and strategy
Science and strategy
Public transport

Corporate (council controlled
organisations)

Corporate

Corporate

Corporate
Corporate

Corporate (Treasury)

Corporate (Treasury)
Science and strategy
Science and strategy

Science and strategy

Activities to which the reserve
relates

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Flood protection and control works

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Integrated catchment management;
Flood protection and control works

Flood protection and control works
Emergency management
Science and strategy

Integrated catchment management

430
-4,640

1,870

430
392

67

1,357
550

13,973

7,698

-953

243
3,483

205

47,673

Balance 1
July

$'000

4,898

1,858

2,402

7,809

3,704

73

2,843
-1,066
365
120

1,562

734
4,640

16,393

787

1,096

17,665

1,700

1,068

1,512

134

105,581

Transfers
into fund

$'000

1,928

8,142

20,846

1,268

921

767
4,531

1,234

462

-657

-16,826

-669

-1,163

-110

-19,102

-321

-115

-1
-1,257

-98,327

Transfers
out of
fund

$'000

-2,617

-8,838

-24,612

-1,345

-974

477
4,723

1,093

-637

507

1,437

389

510

1,247
550

12,536

9,077

243
4,995
338
-1,257

54,927

Balance
30 June

$'000

4,209

1,162

2,402

4,043

3,627

20

3,133
-1,258
506
120

1,387

(9]
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Biosecurity Integrated catchment management 4,030 2,048 -2,982 3,096
Environmental initiatives Integrated catchment management 44 300 -180 164
Koi carp digester Integrated catchment management 53 - -16 37
General reserves Community and services 232 1,173 1,242 163
Permitted activity monitoring Resource use -386 262 -285 -409
Building Act contingency Resource use o1 4 -1 94
Complaints and enforcement Resource use 72 - - 72
Stock truck effluent Science and strategy 392 409 -371 430
Home of Cycling Science and strategy -4,863 223 - -4,640
Public transport Public transport 2,829 2,842 -3,801 1,870
Integrated Regional Information ~ Corporate (council controlled
System (IRIS) organisations) 592 831 -993 430
Corporate (council controlled
Protecting Lake Taupo organisations) - - - -
Motor vehicle and plant Corporate 440 1,127 -1,175 392
Computer Corporate 178 - =111 67
Operational fixed asset
depreciation Corporate 1,357 - - 1,357
Communications network Corporate 550 - - 550
Investment fund equalisation Corporate (Treasury) 12,339 8,937 -7,303 13,973
Investment fund capital
protection Corporate (Treasury) 6,499 1,199 - 7,698
Healthy Rivers internal loan Science and strategy - 618 -1,571 -953
River Restoration Strategy Science and strategy 75 - -75 -
Hauraki plan change Science and strategy 243 - - 243
Regional Development Fund Science and strategy 2,000 1,483 - 3,483
Contaminated land Investigation 73 132 - 205
51,408 61,687 -65,422 47,673
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Transfers
Balance 1 | Transfers out of Balance

July into fund fund 30 June

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Asset revaluation reserve 201
Operational buildings 848 - 774 74
Operational land 3,071 369 - 3,440

Infrastructural assets

= Bridges 917 - - 917
- Channels 3,811 45 - 3,856
= Control gates 208 - - 208
- Culverts 1,262 - - 1,262
- Debris traps 170 - - 170
- Detentions 2,843 - - 2,843
= Fencing 4,231 - -3 4,228
- Floodgates 28,098 - -428 27,670
- Land 40,441 - - 40,441
- Plantings 115 - -14 101
- Pump stations 19,754 55 - 19,809
- Remaining structures 10,469 - - 10,469
- River training works 275 - - 275
- Stopbanks 220,900 - - 220,900
= Structures 1,152 = - 1,152
= Weirs 180 - = 180
Balance at 30 June 338,745 469 1,219 337,995
LEUSTES
Balance 1 | Transfers out of Balance
July into fund fund 30 June
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

A revaluation reserve 201
Operational buildings 3,472 - -2,624 848
Operational land 453 2,618 - 3,071

Infrastructural assets

= Bridges 917 - - 917 §
E

- Channels 3,811 - - 3,811 "
]

v

= Control gates 208 = - 208 5
c

- Culverts 1,262 - - 1,262 w
<

. zZ

= Debris traps 170 = = 170 o)
=

(U]

w

wv
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- Detentions 2,843 - - 2,843

= Drop structures = = = =

= Fencing 4,231 - - 4,231
- Floodgates 28,150 - -52 28,098
- Land 40,441 - - 40,441
= Plantings 115 = - 115
- Pump stations 19,640 14 - 19,754
- Remaining structures 10,469 - - 10,469
- River training works 275 - - 275
- Stopbanks 220,998 - -98 220,900
° Structures 1,152 - - 1,152
= Weirs 180 = = 180
Balance at 30 June 338,787 2,732 -2,774 338,745
Actual Last year
$'o00 $'000
Balance 1]July 338,745 338,787
Revaluation adjustment -405 -6
Transfer to accumulated funds on disposal of assets -345 -36
Balance 30 June 337,995 338,745

Disaster recovery (regional and zone)

To provide funding to respond to natural disaster events, including the funding of insurance excesses.

Waihou/Piako zone

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to this zone. This activity is funded by way of
a targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.
The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure.

Project watershed (including lower Waikato main channel)

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to this zone. This activity is funded by way of
a targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.
The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure.

Coromandel peninsula

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to this zone. This activity is funded by way of
atargeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.
The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure

West coast

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to this zone. This activity is funded by way of
atargeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.
The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure.
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Drainage boards

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to the council’s land drainage functions. This
activity is funded by way of a targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied
for the purpose it was charged. The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure

Civil defence

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to civil defence function. This activity is funded
by way of a targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it
was charged. The reserve also recognises revenue generated to fund capital expenditure

Whitianga coastal modelling

To hold funds set aside for the council’s contribution to coastal erosion modelling and information.

Natural Heritage

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted natural heritage expenditure. Applications to the Natural Heritage
fund occur in an ad hoc manner. Maintenance of a reserve ensures that funds can be accumulated across financial years, and
made available once suitable applications for funding are received.

Biosecurity

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted biosecurity expenditure. This activity is funded by way of a targeted
rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.

Environmental Initiatives

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to the Environmental Initiatives Fund.
Expenditure from the Environmental Initiatives Fund is dependent on applications received each financial year. The use of a
reserve ensures that unspent funds can be accumulated across financial years.

Koi carp digester
To manage application of the external funding over the life of this asset.

General reserves

To smooth the costs of the triennial elections over the three year term of the council.

Permitted activity monitoring

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted permitted activity monitoring expenditure. This activity is funded by
way of a targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was
charged.

Building act contingency

A legal contingency fund in relation to the council’s responsibilities under the Building Act 2004. Waikato Regional Council acts
as the consenting authority on behalf of a number of other local authorities.

Complaints and enforcement

The compliance and enforcement reserve is held to manage variability in the annual revenue generated from this activity. While
a budget provision for revenue recoveries is made, actual revenue received may vary from this amount due to matters outside
of the control of the council.

Stock truck effluent

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure in relation to this activity.
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Home of cycling

To manage the grant payments to the Home of Cycling and its annual repayments by the annual targeted rates.

Public transport

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted passenger transport expenditure. This activity is funded by way of a
targeted rate. The application of a reserve ensures that the targeted rate revenue is only applied for the purpose it was charged.
The reserve balance will be held at a level that provides some mitigation against increasing costs for these services. This reserve
will also be used for the electronic ticketing system.

Integrated Regional Information System (IRIS)

To allow funding for the IRIS project to be smoothed over the development period. The reserve is expected to be fully expended
once the project is completed.

Protecting Lake Taupd

To recognise the difference between rates revenue received and payments made to the Lake Taupd Protection Trust.

Motor vehicle and plant

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure. Reserve funds may be applied to the funding of vehicle
and plant capital expenditure.

Computer

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure. Reserve funds may be applied to the funding of information
technology capital expenditure.

Operational fixed asset depreciation

To recognise the difference between budgeted and actual operational fixed asset depreciation. To ensure that depreciation
funding is not applied to general council expenditure.

Communications network

To recognise the difference between actual and budgeted expenditure. Reserve funds may be applied to the funding of
communications network capital expenditure.

Investment fund equalisation reserve

To provide a smoothing of the impact of variable investment fund returns over time. The investment equalisation reserve tracks
the difference between the budgeted fund return and the actual fund return each year.

Investment fund capital protection
To recognise the provision for the investment fund inflation proofing.

Healthy Rivers internal loan

To allow the funding for costs incurred through the Healthy Rivers Wai Ora implementation plan to be spread over the agreed
funding period.

River Restoration Strategy

To track funding managed on behalf of the council and project partners for the development of the Waikato River Restoration
Strategy.

Hauraki plan change

To track funding set aside for the development of the change to the Regional Plan for the Hauraki Catchment area.
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Regional Development Fund

To track funding set aside to form the council's regional development fund.

Asset revaluation reserve

The property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of
non-current assets.

Derivative financial instruments

To recognise the fluctuations in the value of derivative financial instruments. As financial instruments are held to maturity,
movements in the value of the instruments are not realised.

Accounting Policy

Equity is the community's interest in the council and is measured as the difference between total assets and total liabilities.
Equity is disaggregated and classified into the following components:

e accumulated funds
e property revaluation reserves

e restricted reserves.

Restricted reserves

The council created reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity
have been assigned. Reserves may be legally restricted or created by the council.

Restricted reserves include those subject to specific conditions accepted as binding by the council and which may not be revised
by the council without reference to the courts or a third party. Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain
specified purposes or when certain specified conditions are met.

Also included in restricted reserves are reserves restricted by council decision. The council may alter them without reference
to any third party or the courts. Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion of the council.

Property revaluation reserve
This reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment to fair value.

39 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayer’s funds), which comprises retained earnings and reserves. Equity is represented
by net assets.

The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act) requires the council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments
and general financial dealings prudently and in @ manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community.
Ratepayers' funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and
general financial dealings.

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and
applied by the council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the council's assets
but not expecting them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations. Additionally,
the council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes,
to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.

The Act requires the council to make adequate and effective provision in its long term plan (LTP) and in its annual plan (where
applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans. The Act sets out the factors the council is required to
consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and the levels of
funding are set out in the funding and financial policies in the LTP.

Waikato Regional Council has the following council created reserves:

- reserves for different areas of benefit

SECTION 4: Finances Piitea

1

Ul
J




-
Ul

Waikato Regional Council 2018/19 Annual Report Pirongo a-tau

8

- self-insurance reserves.

Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from the payers
of general rate. Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the specific reserves.

Self-insurance reserves are built up annually from rates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. The release of
these funds generally can only be approved by the council.

40 COMPLIANCE WITH THE COUNCIL'S POLICIES
The Local Government Act 2002 requires all local authorities to prepare the following policies and plans:

e |ong term plan

e revenue and financing policy

e treasury risk management policy (incorporating liability and investment management policies
e development contributions or financial contributions policy

e remission and postponement of rates on Maori freehold land.

In addition, local authorities may adopt a rates remission policy and a rates postponement policy.

41 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no events after balance date that need to be reported.

42 STATEMENTS OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE

Under the Local Government Act 2002, the council is required to report on its performance as it relates to measures established
in the annual plan. Elements of cost, quality, quantity, timeliness and location (where applicable) must be built into each service
performance area. These elements have been covered. Quality processes (which affect the quality of output) are also a standard
feature of the internal management control systems, in particular as follows.

Preparation of internal reports

Internal reports are prepared by suitably qualified and experienced staff. Significant reports are subject to a peer review
process/consultation review.

Capital works

Capital works are constructed to design specifications. Inspections of works are undertaken by suitably qualified and experienced
engineers.

Maintenance works

Maintenance works are undertaken by employees or by contract under the supervision of suitably qualified and experienced
engineers and monitored thereafter in accordance with the maintenance programme.

Performance review

As part of the annual planning and reporting cycle, the organisation's performance is formally assessed by the council three
times during the financial year. At these reviews, progress with the achievement of the performance measures stated in the
Annual Plan is evaluated. Where circumstances have changed, adjustments are made to the budget through a resolution of the
council.



Financial reporting and prudence

regulations

ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2019

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS STATEMENT?

The purpose of this statement is to disclose the council's
financial performance in relation to various benchmarks to
enable the assessment of whether the council is prudently
managing its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general
financial dealings.

The council is required to include this statement in its annual
report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial
Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations).
Refer to the regulations for more information, including
definitions of some of the terms used in this statement.

RATES AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK
The council meets the rates affordability benchmark if:

e itsactual rates income equals or is less than each quantified
limit on rates; and

e jts actual rates increases equal or are less than each
quantified limit on rates increases.

RATES (INCOME) AFFORDABILITY

The following graph compares the council's actual rates income
with a quantified limit on rates contained in the financial
strategy included in the council's long term plan. The quantified
limit is that total rates revenue will comprise up to 75 per cent
of the council's annual revenue requirements.

RATES (INCREASES) AFFORDABILITY

The following graphs compares the council's actual rates
increases with a quantified limit on rates increases included
in the financial strategy included in the council's long term
plan. For the 2015-2025 long term plan the quantified limit
was that increases in the annual rate revenue requirement will
be limited to 5 per cent of the council's annual operating

expenditure requirements. For the 2018-2028 long term plan
the quantified limit is that increases in the annual rate revenue
requirement will be limited to a 9 per cent increase in revenue
from current ratepayers.

DEBT AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK

The council meets the debt affordability benchmark if its actual
borrowing is within each quantified limit on borrowing.

The following graph compares the council's actual borrowing
with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial
strategy included in the council's long term plan. The quantified
limit is that net debt/total revenue is <100 per cent.
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The following graph compares the council's actual borrowing
with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial
strategy included in the council's long term plan. The quantified
limit is that net interest/total revenue is <10 per cent

The following graph compares the council's actual borrowing
with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial
strategy included in the council's long term plan. The quantified
limit is that net interest on external debt/annual rates revenue
is <15 per cent.

The following graph compares the council's actual borrowing
with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial
strategy included in the council's long term plan. For the
2015-2025 long term plan the quantified limit was that liquidity
was »120 per cent. For the 2018-2028 long term plan the
quantified limit is that liquidity is >110 per cent. Liquidity is
defined as external debt plus committed loan facilities plus
liquid investments divided by external debt.

BALANCED BUDGET BENCHMARK

The following graph displays the council's revenue (excluding
development contributions, financial contributions, vested
assets, gains on derivative financial instruments and

revaluations of property, plant or equipment) as a proportion
of operating expenses (excluding losses on derivative financial
instruments and revaluations of property, plant or equipment).

The council meets this benchmark if its revenue equals or is
greater than its operating expenses.

ESSENTIAL SERVICES BENCHMARK

The following graph displays the council's capital expenditure
on network services as a proportion of depreciation on network
services.

The council meets this benchmark if its capital expenditure on
network services equals or is greater than depreciation on
network services.

DEBT SERVICING BENCHMARK

The following graph displays the council's borrowing costs as
a proportion of revenue (excluding development contributions,
financial contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative
financial instruments, and revaluations of property, plant or
equipment).

Because Statistics New Zealand projects the council's
population will grow more slowly than the national population's
growth rate, it meets the debt servicing benchmark if its
borrowing costs equal or are less than 10 per cent of its
revenue.
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DEBT CONTROL BENCHMARK

The following graph displays the council's actual net debt as

a proportion of planned net debt. In this statement, net debt
means financial liabilities less financial assets (excluding trade
and other receivables).

The council meets the debt control benchmark if its actual net
debt equals or is less than its planned net debt.

OPERATIONS CONTROL BENCHMARK

This graph displays the council's actual net cash flow from
operations as a proportion of its planned net cash flow from
operations.

The council meets the operations control benchmark if its
actual net cash flow from operations equals or is greater than
its planned net cash flows from operations.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND COMMENT

OPERATIONS CONTROL BENCHMARK

Actual returns from the council’s investment fund have been
classified as revenue from investing activities since the 2016/17
financial year, whereas the budgeted cashflow statement has
since 2013/14 treated this as revenue from operating activities.
This change in classification has had the effect of reducing the
operations control benchmark percentage for the previous
three financial years. If the budgeted cash flow statement for
2018/19 is corrected by removing the budgeted returns from
the investment fund then council would meet the benchmark
in the 2018/19 financial year. Overall, the balance of cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the financial year was $15.061
million compared to an annual plan budget position of $5.205
million.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the readers of Waikato Regional Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Waikato Regional Council (the Regional Council). The Auditor-General has appointed me,
David Walker, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to report on the information in the Regional Council's annual
report that we are required to audit under the Local Government Act 2002 (the Act). We refer to this information as "the audited
information" in our report.

We are also required to report on:

e whether the Regional Council has complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act that apply to the annual report;
and

e the completeness and accuracy of the Regional Council's disclosures about its performance against benchmarks that are
required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014.

We refer to this information as "the disclosure requirements" in our report.

We completed our work on 26 September 2019. This is the date on which we give our report.

Opinion on the audited information

In our opinion:
e the financial statements on pages 91 to 158:
o present fairly, in all material aspects

e the Regional Council's financial position as at 30 June 2019; and

e the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date; and

o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Reporting
Standards;

e the funding impact statement on pages 88 to 89, presents fairly, in all material respects, the amount of funds produced from
each source of funding and how the funds were applied as compared to the information included in the Regional Council's
long-term plan;

e the service performance information, referred to as "Our activities in depth" on pages 25 to 87:

o presents fairly, in all material respects, the Regional Council's levels of service for each group of activities for the year
ended 30 June 2019, including:

e the levels of service achieved compared with the intended levels of service and whether any intended changes to levels
of service were achieved; and

e the reasons for any significant variation between the levels of service achieved and the intended levels of service; and
o complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

e the statement about capital expenditure for each group of activities on pages 32 to 87, presents fairly, in all material respects,
actual capital expenditure as compared to the budgeted capital expenditure included in the Regional Council's long-term
plan; and

e the funding impact statement for each group of activities on pages 32 to 87, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the funds were applied as compared to the information
included in the Regional Council's long-term plan.

Report on the disclosure requirements

We report that the Regional Council has:
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e complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act that apply to the annual report; and

e made the disclosures about performance against benchmarks as required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting and
Prudence) Regulations 2014 on pages 159 to 161, which represent a complete list of required disclosures and accurately
reflects the information drawn from the Regional Council's audited information and, where applicable, the Regional Council's
long-term plan and annual plans.

Basis for our opinion on the audited information

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Professional and
Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Boar d. We describe our responsibilities under those standards further in the "Responsibilities of the auditor for the
audited information" section of this report.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
audited information.

Responsibilities of the Council for the audited information

The Council is responsible for meeting all legal requirements that apply to its annual report.

The Council's responsibilities arise under the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government (Financial Reporting and
Prudence) Regulations 2014.

The Council is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to prepare the information we
audit that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the information we audit the Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern. The
Council is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting, unless there is an intention to amalgamate or cease all of the functions of the Regional Council or there is no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audited information

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the audited information, as a whole, is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in accordance with the
Auditor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences
or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of this audited
information.

For the budget information reported in the audited information, our procedures were limited to checking that the budget
information agreed to the Regional Council's long-term plan.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited information.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:

e We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the audited information, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Regional Council's internal
control.

e We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.
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e We determine the appropriateness of the reported intended levels of service in the service of performance information,
referred to as "Our activities in depth”, as a reasonable basis for assessing the levels of service achieved and reported by the
Regional Council.

e We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Council and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast a significant
doubt on the Regional Council's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in the audited information or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Regional Council to cease to continue as a going concern.

e We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the audited information, including the disclosures, and whether
the audited information represents, where applicable, the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Information

The Council is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the information
included on pages 4 to 24 and 165 to 179, but does not include the audited information and the disclosure requirements.

Our opinion on the audited information and our report on the disclosure requirements do not cover the other information.

Our responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the audited information and the disclosure requirements, or our knowledge obtained during our work, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence

We are independent of the Regional Council in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-General's
Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised): Code
of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

In addition to our audit of the audited information and our report on the disclosure requirements, we performed a limited
assurance engagement related to the Regional Council's debenture trust deed. Other than these engagements, we have no
relationship with, or interests in, the Regional Council.

David Walker

Audit New Zealand

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand
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Search and Surveillance Act reporting

Pursuant to Section 171 of the Search and Surveillance Act 2012 it is confirmed, for the purpose of annual reporting on behalf
of the Waikato Regional Council, that in the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019:

(a) the number of occasions on which entry or search powers were exercised without a warrant in the period covered by the
report: NIL

(b) the number of occasions on which warrantless surveillance powers were exercised in the period covered by the report that
involved the use of a surveillance device: NIL

(c) in respect of each kind of surveillance device used without a warrant in the period covered by the report, the numbers of
that kind of device used—

(i) for a period of no more than 24 hours: NIL
(i) for a period of more than 24 hours but no more than 48 hours: NIL

(d) the number of persons charged in criminal proceedings where the collection of evidential material relevant to those
proceedings was significantly assisted by the exercise of a warrantless search or surveillance power in the period covered by
the report: NIL

(e) the matters set out in Section 27 in relation to surveillance device warrants and declaratory orders: NIL.
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Council controlled organisations | Nga
ropd e whai mana ai Te Kaunihera

WAIKATO LOCAL AUTHORITY SHARED SERVICES

Local Authority Shared Services Limited (LASS) was incorporated in December 2005. On 4 April 2016, the name registered with
the Companies Office was changed to Waikato Local Authority Shared Services Ltd (WLASS), to distinguish it from other local
authority shared services companies around New Zealand.

INTRODUCTION

The local authorities of the Waikato region have worked together closely over a number of years on mutually beneficial joint
projects. These projects have demonstrated the benefits that can be gained, both in terms of outcomes achieved and reduction
of costs to the community.

Local authorities of the Waikato region have established WLASS as a council controlled organisation (CCO) by way of a company
in which each local authority has a single share. This company will be used as an umbrella for future development of shared
services throughout the region.

COMPANY OBJECTIVES
The objectives of WLASS are to:

e enable the Waikato councils to collectively be more effective as a region on the national stage

e contribute to building central government’s confidence in the Waikato region, and to encourage central government investment
e achieve effectiveness and efficiency gains

e reduce duplication of effort and eliminate waste through repetition

e make it easier for customers to engage with councils in the Waikato region

e promote and contribute to the development of best practice

e promote business transformation to improve customers’ experiences.
PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR 2018/19

farget——[iethod

Procurement

Joint procurement Procurement is from The Procurement Specialist has Achieved: The regional procurement framework
initiatives for sources offering best developed standard regional and toolkit were completed, with training
goods and servicesvalue, service, procurement policies, templates and provided to participating councils across three
for WLASS councilscontinuity of supply, procedures and provided training in workshops held in March 2019.

will be investigated and/or opportunities each council by the end of the [New measure]

and implemented. for integration. financial year.

New suppliers are awarded contractsAchieved: The professional services panel was
through a competitive tender process.re-tendered during the year (contracts take
effect from 1 August 2019). Any new suppliers
are procured in line with the company's
procurement policy
[2018: Achieved]

In consultation with workstream managers,
contracts with existing suppliers that are due
for renewal are assessed as to whether they
continue to offer best value, service or continuity
of supply. 24 supplier contracts were entered
into (five relating to joint procurement).

SECTION 6: Supplementary material Ko étehi atu korero/mea

-
(o)}
(o]




farget —— [Method

Collaborative Projects

Priorities for The focus is on shared A minimum of three priority projectsAchieved: Projects identified and progressed

collaboration are services which will for collaboration are identified per through the year were:

identified, benefit all councils.  annum.

business cases are o LiDAR: A project to establish regional LiDAR

developed for the If considered of value, business cases  supported by PGF funding. Business case

highest priority are developed for approval by the approved in principle

projects, and the Board, and the projects are e Professional Services Panel: A project to

projects are implemented. re-market and establish a panel of consultants

implemented. across eight disciplines under an agreed
framework to streamline procurement of their
services

e Energy & Carbon Management: A programme
to support councils in energy and carbon
management. Business case approved.

e Aregional Health and Safety Management
Framework and best practice documents were
implemented

e Regional reporting indicators for safety
performance were approved

Business cases were prepared where Board
approval and council funding was required

The customer interface group was established
to provide council staff engaging with customers
with a forum to collaborate and consider
opportunities to use digital technology to
improve the customer experience.

In addition, nine collaborative opportunities are
at various stages of development.
[2018: Achieved]

Existing WLASS Contracts
Existing contracts Appointed vendors  The WLASS Contracts Register is Achieved:

are managed and deliver on the terms of maintained and managed. [2018: Achieved]
renegotiated as  their contracts and
required. deliver value to the  Contracts which are due for renewal Achieved: Any new suppliers are procured in line
shareholders. are tested for competitiveness and  with the company's procurement policy.
either renegotiated or re-tendered
through a competitive process. In consultation with workstream managers,

contracts with existing suppliers that are due
for renewal are assessed as to whether they
continue to offer best value, service or continuity
of supply and if so, renegotiated. 24 supplier
contracts were entered into

[2018: Achieved]

Cashflow

The company shallThe Financial The WLASS Board reviews the Achieved: Management accounts were presented

maintain a positive Accountant reviews  financial statements at least quarterly.to each of the six board meetings held during

cashflow position. cashflow monthly, and the year. The company remains in a strong cash
the WLASS Board position (funds on hand at 30 June 2019 are
reviews the financial $1.46m [2018: $1.57m]). It is currently actively
statements quarterly. seeking to manage down cash reserves that have

arisen from revenue received in advance.
[2018: Achieved]
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Cost Control
Administration  The Financial Administration expenditure shall not Achieved: Actual spend ($440,000) exceeded
expenditure shall Accountant and Chief exceed budget by more than 5%,  budget ($300,000) but was less than the
be managed and Executive review unless prior approval is obtained fromreforecasted spend of $446,000 approved by
monitored. expenditure monthly. the Board. the Board (and shareholding councils) to support
the transformation of the company and was met
by prior year cash reserves and additional
shareholder contributions.
[2018: Achieved]
Reporting
Six monthly The Chief Executive  The Board shall provide a written  Achieved: Half-yearly report and annual report
reports provided to prepares a written report on the business operations anddelivered to shareholders within required
shareholders. report for the WLASS financial position of WLASS to the  timelines.
Board every meeting. shareholders every six months.
[2018: Achieved]
One 6-monthly and
one Annual Report are Every second report shall be the Achieved

prepared for Annual Report, which includes a [2018: Achieved]
shareholders. report that all of the statutory

requirements of the WLASS are being

adhered to.

Waikato Mayoral Forum

The company shall Mayoral Forum Approved invoices for Mathral ForumAchieved
provide projects shall be projects are paid by the 20 of the [2018: Achieved]
administrative managed financially month fo||owing their re(_eipt.

support to the through the WLASS.

Mayoral Forum

work streams and

to the Mayoral

Forum.
Shared Valuation Data Services (SVDS)
The SVDS is A Contract Manager is The SVDS is available to users at leastAchieved: The SVDS has been available 100% for
reliable, well appointed for SVDS. 99% of normal working hours. users during normal business hours.
maintained and [2018: Achieved]
available to all The Contract Manager The SVDS Advisory Group meets at
users. monitors performance least 6-monthly. Achieved: Four meetings held in August,
of the contractors and November, March and May
reports quarterly to the [2018: Achieved]

SVDS Advisory Group.

Risks associated with The Annual Business Plan is accepted Achieved
the SVDS are well by the Advisory Group by 31 March [New measure]
managed. 2019, and includes consideration of

strategic and operational risks, a

disaster recovery plan, and a business

continuity plan.

The long-term The timetable and milestones for ~ Not achieved: The project has begun. However,

provision of SVDS implementing the long-term provisiondata load issues and complexities has caused

services is achieved. of SVDS Services (as agreed by the project delays of approx. 6 months. There is no
Board), are being achieved. increase in total project cost, but the delay has

meant that the existing SVDS support is needed
longer than anticipated, with associated cost
increases. The revised end date is now March
2020.

[New measure]
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Insurance

Achieve the The Insurance Broker
relevant KPIs in  delivers on the terms
Appendix 4 of the of their contract and

Insurance provides value to the

Brokerage contract participating councils.

with Aon.

Road Asset Technical Accord (RATA)
Deliver better dataQuarterly update

Strategic advice provided by Aon on Achieved: Of the 11 councils who responded, 3
the insurance programme structure were partially satisfied, 7 satisfied and 1 very
is assessed as satisfactory in the satisfied.

annual WLASS Shareholders’ survey [2018: Achieved]

by the participating councils.

The day-to-day service provided by Achieved: Of the 11 councils who responded, 1
Aon is assessed as satisfactory in the was dissatisfied, 3 were partially satisfied, 6
annual WLASS Shareholders’ survey satisfied and 1 very satisfied.

by the participating councils. [2018: Achieved]

Reports are presented to stakeholders Achieved: All four reports provided on time

for decision reports are provided toin October/January/April and July  [New measure]

making across the all stakeholders
Waikato Region, participating in the
enabling more Data Collection
consistent best  contracts.

practice.

Data supplied by Innovation: Identify

each year.

Reports on progress presented to  Achieved: Both reports provided within the
WLASS Board as at 30 December andrequired timeframe

30 June. [2018: Achieved]

All data is reviewed for compliance Achieved: All data supplied met compliance

contractors is of  opportunities to modifyand all good practice requirements requirements

good quality and standard approaches
meets all of the  and/or develop new

are met. [New measure]

participating approaches that will  Procurement of services complies  Achieved: All procurement was completed in
councils' lead to optimal asset With WLASS and NZTA's procurementaccordance with policy requirements
requirements.  management. requirements. [New measure]

Leadership: Lead Present to a national
engagement and conference on RATA
increase capabilityinnovations at least
within the sector. once per year.
At least two RATA
guidance documents

detailing good practice

are produced each
year.

RATA Forums are held 2-monthly to Achieved: Papers presented at IPWEA conference
share learnings and experience. and Sydney Road Maintenance Conference

Achieved: RATA benchmarking report and
Regional MIS report delivered

Achieved: All RATA Forum presented and well
attended by RCAs

[New measure]

Waikato Regional Transportation Model (WRTM)

The WRTM is RATA manages the

All modelling reports requested from Achieved: All reports received and shared with

reliable, well WRTM on behalf of thethe model supplier are actioned WRTM User Group

maintained and  participating councils,

available to all and monitors the

users. performance of the
model supplier
(currently Stantec).

within the agreed timeframe, scope [2018: Achieved]

and budget.

A report from RATA on any new Achieved: Bi-annual reports provided to WLASS
developments and on the status of Board

the model is provided to the WLASS [2018: Achieved]

Board at least every six months.

R FEERS quarterIyThe quality of the base model Achieved: Model endorsed by NZTA. Peer review

to the WRTM Project
Advisory Group.

complies with NZTA guidelines (as setrecommendations being progressed (scenario
out in the NZTA’s Economic Evaluationtesting of medium land use)

Manual), and is independently peer [2018: Achieved]

reviewed each time the model is

updated.
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Waikato Building Consent Group

Provide strategic Implement the Milestones for the five strategic

direction and strategic priorities review work streams are achieved for:

actively pursue  detailed in the "Build - Digital experience and technology: Achieved:
improvements in  Waikato" May 20177 a common online customer

Building Control  strategic review experience. Success is defined as user On track with both Thames-Coromandel District
across the Waikatodocument. friendly, convenient, quick, Council and Waipa District Council having
region. end-to-end management and successfully implemented the preferred online

Alpha One System. Waitomo District Council is
committed to implementing in the 2019/20 year
and Matamata-Piako District Council and
Hauraki District Council are finalising their
procurement process with Alpha One in the mix.
Otorohanga District Council is also committed
to implementing Alpha One and this will
probably be in 2020/21 financial year. Well on
track with achieving a common processing
system.

communication, measured by
customer surveys and systems
comparisons.

Works are programmed for 2019/20 to revitalise
our web site to enhance the digital experience.
[New measure]

-People capability. Success is defined Partially achieved: We have scoped a programme

as a successful recruitment and of work to approach secondary schools and
training programme, measured by tertiary students before the end of the 2019/20
compliance with BCA Reg. 8 - 11. year looking at a cadet type scheme

[New measure]
-Quality assurance. Success is defined Achieved: On track with successful IANZ audits
as continued accreditation and for both WDC and MPDC with good feedback
increased service consistency, on the cluster quality assurance overall. A
measured by accreditation outcomes, review of our quality assurance offering will be
BCA annual audits, and customer  undertaken in 19/20.
surveys. [New measure]
-Lift industry competency and Partially achieved: Work has been scoped for a
compliance. Success is measured by programme to engage industry in the 2019/20
increased industry compliance, with year. The Tech Committee will be continuing to

reduced RFls, and reducing work on consistency across councils on RFIs to
percentages of application or buildingenhance a consistent customer experience.
consent rejection. [New measure]

Central government: engagement and Achieved: Cluster submission to Building Reform

legislative influence. Success is Act was delivered - was very similar to that put
measured by legislative submissions together by LGNZ.
and outcomes. [New measure]

Fulfil the roles and  There isa common understanding and Partially achieved: Good participation in the
responsibilities set outbuy-in by all BCAs for the WBCG projects when required but could improve
in clause 9 of the vision and actions that are taken to [New measure]

WBCG's Memorandum achieve this vision, measured by:

of Understanding,
2016.

Achieved
i. Full participation in WBCG projects [New measure]

and programmes
Not achieved: No customer survey this year -

ii. Audits demonstrating customer experience will be a key focus for
implementation and compliance with2019/20
the agreed QA systems [New measure]

Not achieved: Lack of awareness of risk register
- will be in the programme of work for the new
Strategic Manager
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iii. Consistency in service delivery,
measured by customer surveys.

[New measure]

Achieved: Requested funding received in a timely

Risk management is visible through manner by participating council

regular reviews of the risk register.

[New measure]

All funding requirements are met by Achieved: Activity reported to the Board in

each of the participating councils.

September and December 2018 and February
2019.

Minimum of two reports presented t015018: Achieved]

the WLASS Board on the Group's
activities.

Future Proof

Planning for Joint preparation and
growth in the input into Phase 2 of is adopted by the Future Proof
sub-region is the Strategy update.

coordinated and than December 2018.

collaborative. Bi-monthly reports

presented to Waikato The overall Future Proof work

The Future Proof Plan and Future Proof programme is delivered within the

budget is well Chief Executive Group,approved budget.
managed and and six monthly and
monitored. annual reports to

WLASS Board.

Future Proof Future Proof works ~ Future Proof makes submissions
influences and collaboratively and
inputs into District provides input into the processes), on District Plans, LTP's,
Plan, Regional planning work growth management planning
Plan, growth undertaken by all FP documents, and any central
strategy and any
other planning
processes which
manage growth
within the
sub-region and
neighbouring
regions.

relevant planning
authorities.

potential to impact growth
management planning in the
sub-region.

Aligned Resource Consent Planning Project
Common forms are in place for all
Councils involved by December.

Implementation of Progress on

the Aligned implementation of

Resource Consent common forms and

Planning project isother initiatives is

underway during reported to

2018/19. shareholders on a
regular basis.

(using RMA and Local Government

Phase 2 of the Future Proof Strategy Not achieved: The draft Future Proof Strategy

(phase 2) was reported to the Future Proof

Implementation Committee no later Implementation Committee and submitted to

Ministry for the Environment in December 2018.
However, work has been deferred due to other
processes currently underway, namely the
Hamilton to Auckland Corridor Plan, review of
NPS on Urban Development Capacity, Waikato
Proposed District Plan, and sub-regional
industrial land study. The phase 2 Strategy is
expected to be completed in 2020.

[New measure]

Not achieved: The Future Proof work programme
to the end of 2018/19 ran slightly over budget.
However, this was as a result of an approved
increase in scope associated with the Hamilton
to Auckland Corridor Plan. The deficit is covered
by the cash reserves from the previous year.
[New measure]

Future Proof made a submission on the
Proposed Waikato District Plan in 2018 and has
been working closely with Waikato District on
their District Plan and supporting strategic
planning documents. Future Proof has also been

partners and any other government initiatives which have theworking with the Waikato Regional Council on

upcoming changes to the Regional Policy
Statement.
[New measure]

Achieved: The suite of initial forms has been
completed and is live.

The forum continues to meet on a 3-monthly
basis to discuss planning issues. Two additional
forms are being prepared and the group is
considering next steps in the implementation
and action plan.

[New measure]
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Shareholder survey

Shareholders An annual survey of A survey of shareholders is Achieved: The survey was undertaken in the

shareholders is undertaken each year, and the resultssecond half of the year with response received
are satisfied with ndertaken to assess are reported to all shareholders. from all shareholders [2018: five respondents -
the performance of satisfaction levels with 42%)]. Results of the survey are included in this
WLASS. WLASS. annual report for shareholders.

[2018: Achieved]

Review of benefits
Shareholders are The benefits of WLASS Information on the financial and Achieved: Benefits and achievements have been
informed of the  (including financial and non-financial benefits being achieved reported in the half-yearly report, this annual

benefits being non-financial by WLASS are included in the report and the statement of intent published in
provided to achievements) are 6-monthly and Annual Report to June 2019.
shareholding regularly analysed and shareholders. [2018: Achieved]
councils by WLASS. reported to
shareholders. The WLASS website is regularly Achieved: Relevant information and publications
maintained and updated. are included on the website.
[New measure]
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LAKE TAUPO PROTECTION TRUST

The Lake Taupo Protection Trust (the trust or LTPT) CCO was settled on g9 February 2007. The information below covers the
activities of the trust for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

INTRODUCTION

Lake Taupd is recognised as a national icon. Its importance, not only as an attraction for locals and people living in the Waikato
region but nationally, and as an attraction for international tourists, has been recognised. Work undertaken by a number of
organisations had shown that the quality of Lake Taupd had begun to reduce for a number of reasons. The Lake Taupo Protection
Trust was established as a CCO to administer a public fund to maintain lake water quality.

The trust is jointly administered by four organisations: Waikato Regional Council, Taupd District Council, Tdwharetoa Maori
Trust Board and the Crown.

COMPANY OBJECTIVES

The trust’s role is to maintain Lake Taupd’s water quality by reducing manageable nitrogen leaching into the lake by 20 per
cent. Originally estimated to be 153,000kg, after a review of the project in 2011 the project's nitrogen reduction target was
increased to 170,300kg.

The revised nitrogen reduction target required additional funding. Additional Crown funding was received in April 2013 which
enabled the two local authorities to subsequently release additional funds to enable the project to progress to the revised target.

The trust has now achieved the projects overall ‘contracted’ nitrogen reduction target of 170,300 kg. A variation to the agreement
between the project funders has extended this first phase of the project until 30 June 2021. This extension allows time for long
term governance and management arrangements to be resolved and for transition to the next phase of the project - protecting
the investments made by the trust on behalf of the public.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR 2018/19

Actions Performance measures Performance against target

Oversee the financial position of the trust to Cash flow projection in place and Achieved
meet and maintain a positive projected cash flow  being operated to achieve a positive
projection. outcome at 30 June 2019.

The cash flow projection was
extended out to match the project
'term' extension up to 30 June 2021
or when the trust winds up,
whichever comes first.

Ensure that all LTPT nitrogen reduction contracts  Nitrogen reduction contracts are Achieved

e benE ompld it foaciere DTl pemg metangany comracsal

where relevant in conjunction with Waikato failure is addressed to achieve ' : . Riie

Regional Council. repatriation of any loss of nitrogen ~ Partial remedial planting were
reduction. reported on as to status. One party

commenced remedial in June 2019;
the other party has remedial
planting agreements in place and
communication with this party is
ongoing.

Both breach parties are compliant
with their 'total annual nitrogen
discharge' caps as monitored and
confirmed by Waikato Regional
Council on an annual basis.

Monitor/track that compliance monitoring Monitoring compliance results Achieved
results are received on an ongoing basis for LTPT  received in accordance with
N reduction deals. monitoring plan timelines; Audit NZ

notified.
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Actions Performance measures Performance against target

Report to trustees on compliance monitoring Trustees up to date with compliance  Achieved
results (received from Waikato Regional Council)  monitoring results.
for LTPT N reduction purchases.

Manage trust funded research projects that have  Research outcomes reported on. Achieved
been previously approved by the trust.

Participation and assistance in the annual audit  Positive audit result. Achieved
of the trust.
Carry out trust responsibilities identified in the  Trust actions completed and the Achieved; ongoing

Taupd Catchment Compliance Monitoring Plan  Taupd Catchment Compliance
and provide support in the operation of the plan  Monitoring Plan supported on an
with other joint parties, which includes the ongoing basis.

trust's support of the Lake Taupo Protection

Project's Communication Plan.

Provide ongoing support as required in the Support provided as requested to Ongoing

operation of the Lake Taupo Catchment achieve the aims of the Lake Taupd

Compliance Framework. Catchment Compliance Framework.

Undertake any trust actions arising from the joint ~ Trust actions arising from the Achieved through involvement and
committee's consideration of the draft project,  project review report (as approved  discussions in the project transition
review report recommendations, and work with by the joint committee) are planning process throughout the
project partners as required on any other related achieved. year.

matters where trust assistance or input is
required, including any transitional planning and
action requirements.
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REGIONAL SOFTWARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

INTRODUCTION

Regional Software Holdings Limited (RSHL) is a major shared services undertaking by the Northland, Waikato, Taranaki, Horizons,
West Coast and Southland regional councils. Hawke’s Bay Regional Council is also a customer of Regional Software Holdings
Ltd. The primary objective of the company is to provide a framework for collaboration between the shareholders. It supports
the procurement or development of shared software resource products and services in a manner that provides a more cost
effective alternative than individual councils can achieve on their own.

RSHL is responsible for the long term maintenance and development of the Integrated Regional Information System (IRIS)
product as developed for and by the shareholding councils. Over several years, the six regional councils have developed a leading
edge software solution (IRIS) for specific functions undertaken by those regional councils.

This information below covers the activities of RSHL for the period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

ITEMS OF INTEREST
2018/19 was a year of growth and development for RSHL.

For the flagship IRIS product, the year was one of consolidation of the existing product and preparation for the next generation
of IRIS development. Two releases of new functionality were delivered over the year with a total of four major enhancements
and 29 minor enhancements. The focus during 2018/19 was addressing design flaws affecting performance in the long term,
removing the dependency on Silverlight (mapping component).

It was noted in last year’s annual report that there is a need to undertake a reinvestment in the IRIS product to ensure the
underlying technology remains current and fit for purpose. RSHL has identified development of the roadmap for the next
generation of IRIS as a key strategic priority.

RSHL has a number of opportunities going forward. In particular, the company continues to look to grow the number of IRIS
users in other regional councils and RSHL has continued to work with other regional councils to attract them as either shareholders
or customers.

RSHL has worked throughout the year with the regional council sector to establish how the company vehicle can be used for
the betterment of the regional council community. This has resulted in the Regional Council Collaboration (ReCoCo) initiative.
ReCoCo facilitates unitary and regional councils entering into collaboration initiatives where there are overlapping or shared
objectives, covering areas of common interest or joint responsibility. RSHL is the delivery vehicle used to facilitate and administer
ReCoCo. This year saw the implementation of ReCoCo commence with the first projects delivered to the benefit of the wider
regional council community.

The board has recognised that the growth in the scope of activities and initiatives for RSHL requires additional resource
commitment and consequently decided to appoint and employ its first full-time general manager. Mark Donnelly has been
appointed to this position.

Mike Garrett stepped down from the board after being Waikato’s representative since the company’s inception and John Crane
has been appointed to replace Mr Garrett as Waikato Regional Council’s representative on the board.

Financially, the company is in a sound position as planned. RSHL’s revenue comes from licence charges and fees from the
shareholding councils. This funding is used for the maintenance and development of the IRIS product. Therefore, the company
does not trade to make a profit. Rather, it charges to cover its planned level of expenditure. The continuing investment in the
development and enhancement of IRIS ensures that the product maintains its value within the company’s balance sheet. The
growth in the user base of IRIS allows the company to reduce the licence charges and fees. This is a real tangible financial benefit
to the regional councils involved in IRIS.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS FOR 2018/19

Performance measure Result Commentary

Non-financial
Undertake an annual In progress The customer and users surveys are currently underway with results expected in
survey of users and August.

shareholder/customer
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Performance measure Result Commentary

Councils in relation to
product performance,
Datacom support and RSHL
support. Baseline to be
developed following the
completion of the first
survey.

Develop, approve, Achieved
communicate and refine
the annual roadmap for
RSHL major enhancement
projects. Draft annual
roadmap presented to the
board by 31 December of
each year for the following
year. Adoption by the
board by 30 June of each
year.

Major enhancement Achieved
projects identified on the

annual roadmap are all

completed within approved

budget or (for items in

progress) on track against

their agreed timeline and

budget at 30 June of each

year.

Budgets for support and Achieved
minor enhancements are

approved by the board by

30 June each year and

delivery within these

budgets is effectively

managed by the advisory

group.

User groups and business  Achieved
representatives are

engaged in the

development of the Major
Enhancement Annual

Roadmap.

Financial

RSHL will operate within Not achieved

5% (plus or minus) of its
overall annual budget

Annual charges will be kept ~ Achieved
to a maximum of 2%
increase year on year

The major enhancements roadmap for 2018/19 was developed and approved by the
advisory group, under the management of RSHL.

The 2018/19 draft annual roadmap was presented to the board at the 22 November
board meeting. It was included in the general manager's report and adopted.

There were nine enhancements on the roadmap for 2018/19.

Three were delivered in the 3.07 data release, and four will be delivered in 3.08 data
release - scheduled for release in July. All are expected to come in under budget
and as scheduled.

One additional development is in progress for a future release, having been
reprioritised by the advisory group, and one other was closed after further evaluation.
3.05 was released in June 2018 and capitalised at the end of warranty in August.
This is normal practice as bug fixes during the warranty period is included in the
cost of the release.

The minor enhancements and support budgets were fully consumed under the
direction of the advisory group.

Users continue to collaborate and participate in RSHL through the user groups.
Fortnightly user group meetings have continued and been well attended.
Different users from RSHL councils have participated in the development of major
initiatives on this year's roadmap.

The overall result was less than 6% variance from budget with a net deficit of $(6,351)
compared to a budgeted surplus/(deficit) of SNil. The balance sheet showed closing
equity of $5,198,684 compared to budget of $5,339,939 a variance of $(141,255)
which is -2.64%.

The annual charges stated in the Statement of Intent has been achieved. (The budget
for 2017/18 $1,098, 534 2018/19 budget $1,117,579 and the actual increase was 1.7%).
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Performance measure

Monitor the regional
council sector market and
explore/respond to
opportunities to expand the
customer and/or
shareholder base of RSHL.

Consider, evaluate and, if
appropriate, implement
new service areas or areas
outside of the current
scope of IRIS

Be a service delivery agent
for wider regional council
sector and related bodies'
information management
projects (ReCoCo) and
related shared services.
Projects to be delivered on
time and on budget as
agreed in each of the
statements of work
between RSHL and the
Regional Council Corporate
Services SIG.

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

In the past year RSHL won a competitive process to implement IRIS at Environment
Canterbury, who subsequently chose not to proceed.
Information was also provided to Gisborne District Council.

ReCoCo is RSHL's main focus outside of the core IRIS platform and this continues
to grow.

ReCoCo is established as a delivery vehicle for collaborative initiatives involving
regional and unitary councils.

ReCoCo has MOUs in place with the Regional CEOs Group and councils.

An advisory group has been established which is supported by the Corporate Services
SIG.

A regular reporting cycle has been put in place.

RSHL has been established as the ‘delivery vehicle’ for collaborative and cross-sector
projects as part of the Regional Council Collaboration initiative (ReCoCo).

ReCoCo is established as a delivery vehicle for collaborative initiatives involving
regional and unitary councils.

ReCoCo has MOUs in place with the Regional CEOs Group and councils.

An advisory group has been established which is supported by the Corporate Services
SIG.

Project management is in place for all projects.

A regular reporting cycle has been put in place.

Tweleve projects are in the ReCoCo portfolio. All are operating within agreed budgets
and timetables.



MARTHA TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The Martha Trust (the trust) was established in 2001 by a joint venture known as the Waihi Gold Company, setting the sum of
$10 to create the trust fund. The purpose of the trust is to take the title to land currently part of the Martha Mine operation
following completion of mining and closure of the site and to monitor and maintain that land so it can be used for recreational
purposes by the general public.

EXEMPTION OF MARTHA TRUST AS A CCO

The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) section 7(3) provides for the exemption of a small organisation that is not a council
controlled trading organisation from being a CCO and from the accountability requirements of the LGA. The Martha Trust was
exempted from being a CCO by resolution of the council in May 2007. This exemption was reconfirmed by the council in February
2018.

It is not practical for accountability requirements and performance monitoring of the Martha Trust to take place until such a
time as it becomes operative, therefore, by granting an exemption the council has provided a dispensation from any form of
accountability and monitoring processes.

In accordance with section 7(3) of the LGA, the exemption of the Martha Trust as a CCO was reviewed at the February 2018
Finance Committee meeting due to it being three years since the last exemption was granted. The Finance Committee granted
another exemption and resolved that the exemption is reviewed and reassessed either when the mine closes or on the receipt
of further funds and at least within three years from granting the second exemption.

TRUSTEES

In April 2019, a capital sum of $50,000 was introduced to the trust by the settlor. This had the effect of activating the trust.
Although the supporting mechanisms of the Martha Trust exist, such as the trust structure and bond, the trust will not become
a fully operative entity until such time as the closure and rehabilitation conditions are finalised in the future.
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He taiao mauriora Healthy environment

He ohanga pakari Strong economy

He hapori hihiri Vibrant communities
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